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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

309 7 A% BBl e o

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
57 - +852 2218 8288 -
fHH : +852 2815 2239 FEEP11155
KR AR5

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYCHAMP WATCH &
JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Citychamp Watch &
Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 153 to 334, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Impairment assessment on goodwill and intangible assets

Refer to notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively and
the significant accounting policies in notes 4.6, 4.7 and 4.12 to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had goodwill and intangible assets with
carrying amounts of HK$1,151,788,000 and HK$52,411,000 respectively arising
from the acquisitions of bank, financial and watch businesses.

Management will perform impairment assessment on the amount of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at least annually, and will perform
impairment assessment when there is an indication that an intangible asset with
definite useful lives may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
management assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. These assets were allocated
to cash generating units (“CGU”), and the recoverable amount of each CGU was
determined by management based on either value-in-use calculations using cash
flow projections or fair value less cost of disposal.

The impairment test involves significant judgements and assumptions by the
management under the value-in-use calculation and the determination of fair
value less cost of disposal.

Management concluded that, based on the impairment assessment, no impairment
losses would be recognised for the year.

Our response

Our procedures on the management’s impairment assessment on goodwill and
intangible assets included:

(i)  Assessing the reasonableness of market data, discount rates and growth
rates applied in determining the recoverable amount;

(if)  Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry; and

(iii)  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved budgets and
considering the reasonableness of these budgets.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities in the regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

. conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai
Practising Certificate Number P06047
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

wie A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

2021 2020
SR R R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Fh 5 Tt THETT
Interest and dividend income from SRAT RS 2 R I B Bl A
banking business 136,539 156,731
Interest expenses from banking business SRAT R 2 FIE B 3L (42,375) (28,703)
Net interest and dividend income from AT EH 2P B B B
banking business LN ] 7a 94,164 128,028
Service fees and commission income from SRAT NS 2 s 2 K
banking business gl A 287,291 258,001
Service fees and commission expenses from  $R47TZEH5 2 M 2 K&
banking business A 48 BH 52 (63,921) (61,007)
Net service fees and commission income AT B 2 s e
from banking business W A\ 7b 223,370 196,994
Trading income from banking business SRAT T 2 38 H A 7c 36,197 21,702
Service fees and commission income from 4 R SE T 2 ROBS e
financial business RN 7d 5,900 10,721
Interest income from financial business & Rl ZEHS 2 AL B A 7d 330 184
Sales of goods from non-banking and FEERAT Je G Rl ZEH 2
financial businesses & i S A 7e 1,555,114 1,405,812
Rental income from non-banking and FERIT M B RIZER 2
financial businesses Al A 7e 16,024 11,108
Total revenue A A 1,931,099 1,774,549
Cost of sales from non-banking and FEERIT R S RETS 2
financial businesses B 5 LA (745,224) (647,405)
Other income and other net gains or losses A i A R At i 4 B
Jis 5 1 4 8 40,881 98,333
Selling and distribution expenses B A5 I 4y 8 (535,895) (550,428)
Administrative expenses TEEA (698,022) (728,432)
Share of loss of joint ventures JEAL &8 A SRR 25 (83) (494)
Share of profit of associates R A gt 8 2 ) ¥ ) 26 323 3,180
Finance costs from non-banking business FEERATEH 2 B A 9 (67,351) (82,956)
Loss before income tax s B 45 7B iy fes 48 10 (74,272) (133,653)
Income tax expense FRAS BB 3 11 (31,104) (25,176)
Loss for the year A A BE Jis 8 (105,376) (158,829)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B Az B A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % % ——4+ " H =1 —H I

2021 2020
TR R R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! Tt THE T
Other comprehensive income H At 2 i W A
Item that will not be subsequently AN H A% 8T 0 JH 2 i
reclassified to profit or loss SR 2 TH H
— Remeasurement of net defined — H T R E #R AR A
benefit obligations AL 15.2 42,515 3,646
— Change in fair value of financial assets — N TEFR A H A
at fair value through other AT Z 4 RlE E
comprehensive income N TAE 5 ) 20 33,127 47,933
75,642 51,579
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to ] fig i H 1% 47 43 48 22 ¥ F
profit or loss SR 2 TH H
— Exchange differences on translation to — B2 KK
presentation currency [FE 5, 2 BH (9,893) 279,862
— Share of other comprehensive income — M Bt F 22 oA
of associates ESTN 26 188 (490)
— Release of exchange reserve to — it [ ) 2
profit or loss upon disposal of 15 fife Bk A1 RE 1t 2
a subsidiary i F1 =Xk 18 (744) (405)
(10,449) 278,967
Other comprehensive income for the year 7% 4F J8 3 il 2= 1 e A 65,193 330,546
Total comprehensive income for the year S 4F Ji 4 i W A 48 % (40,183) 171,717
(Loss)/profit for the year VLR N BEAG AR 4 i
attributable to: (k48 B
Owners of the Company N/NEIE: ZS DN (100,907) (169,233)
Non-controlling interests Ik 52 B 4 (4,469) 10,404
(105,376) (158,829)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

i Az B A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

2021 2020
TR R R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! Tt THETT
Total comprehensive income for the year DA A b B4 A< 45 i
attributable to: ST B -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE7 2PN (35,727) 164,456
Non-controlling interests I A (4,456) 7,261
(40,183) 171,717
Loss per share attributable to owners A vl BEA N AL
of the Company (5313 7Fi] 14
— Basic —HA HK(2.32) cents HK(3.89) cents
(2.32) #All (3.89) #: A1l
- Diluted — HK(2.32) cents HK(3.89) cents
(2.32) W Al (3.89) il
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B BN DL

As at 31 December 2021 j* % ~—4F+ A =+—H

2021 2020
TRT AR TR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Rt 5 Tt T
Assets &
Cash and deposits B AT 17 6,531,968 5,612,645
Due from clients JE W25 5 3 18 3,068,719 2,463,225
Due from banks JE W ERAT 3 18 2,034,190 5,466,260
Trading portfolio investments Lo AR E 19 86,130 80,310
Financial assets at fair value through FeNFEFEA A 2 H A Z
other comprehensive income 4 Pl 4 20 504,117 470,794
Derivative financial assets i A 4 il g 21 34,608 29,224
Trade receivables JRE ST B K 22 378,227 391,747
Other financial assets at amortised cost FEHESH LA S R 2
L fth <55 il 23 1,852,934 1,449,886
Inventories 5 24 2,193,281 2,255,553
Income tax recoverable CINQENRE T 460 2,299
Interests in joint ventures RIS -Se 25 519 602
Interests in associates ST A Y 2 ) R 26 113,687 113,176
Property, plant and equipment W WE KRt 27 1,348,154 1,270,726
Investment properties "EWE 28 210,159 195,427
Intangible assets HETY & 29 52,411 54,415
Goodwill ik 30 1,151,788 1,144,071
Deferred tax assets B IE 38 9,179 13,961
Other assets Hopth & 31 391,888 370,874
Total assets A s 19,962,419 21,385,195
Liabilities =K
Due to banks JEAS $R AT 3 15,126 2,639
Due to clients JEAS %5 5 3 I 32 12,750,292 13,965,477
Derivative financial liabilities T A= 4 il B A 21 47,955 31,334
Trade payables JREAS] B 33 409,555 360,624
Contract liabilities BHAM 34 26,510 13,824
Income tax payables JEAS) T 45 32,559 36,799
Borrowings (=S 35 1,176,635 1,564,822
Provisions A 36 379 368
Lease liabilities HE A E 37 77,228 57,570
Deferred tax liabilities AR S Fd TH 1 £ 38 55,180 55,377
Due to a shareholder JREAS) — 44 I R 2 R I 45 12,000 12,000
Due to directors JRE AR 5 = S I 45 73,515 21,233
Other liabilities HoAb A fH 39 661,945 526,901
Total liabilities UGN 15,338,879 16,648,968
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR BN DL

As at 31 December 2021 A — & ——4F+—H =+—H

2021 2020
SRS R OEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! Tt TUs I
Equity HE 2
Equity attributable to owners of Aoy v BN A BE AR
the Company

Share capital Jie A 40 435,189 435,189
Reserves fiti 41 3,925,944 3,983,490
4,361,133 4,418,679
Non-controlling interests IE P A 2 262,407 317,548
Total equity HE 25 4 4,623,540 4,736,227
Total liabilities and equity 00 BB £ BB 19,962,419 21,385,195

The consolidated financial statements on pages 153 to 334 were approved and 45 153 % 334 B 2 45 & WIS R ik — & — —4F =
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2022 and are signed on  H = - H & F5 @ It i L P2 BT 58 > Wi DL R

its behalf by: EHMAEEE
Hon Kwok Lung Siu Chun Wa
i 1] fiE o 2 3
Director Director

#=H HHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % — % ——4F -+ H =+—H IL4FJE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KR NEI R
Fair value
through ~ Reveluation
other reserve for
Share Goodwill comprehensive property, Non-
Share premium Other arising on Statutory Exchange income plantand Retained controlling Total
capital account* reserve®  consolidation® Teserve* Teserver reserve™  equipment* profits* Total interests eqity
HATE
ARl 0E EE
& GRKA EITION Restlh

ik MR fUbRE  EfuEBe EERE HERE R EFERE RERM At FEREE  BE%E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

T Tk T T T T T T T T Tk Tk
(note 40) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41)
(W) (W) () M) Ok (R M) (i)

Belance a1 Jauary 2000 REBoBE-f-A24% s @7 (s W%l ) () UGG I 4B MSET 408
Transactions with onners LL N Y]
Deemed acquisition of inteestn RAMRREAES

susidaes 1t 46 (H2h4600) B - ) - - - - - B () 1) )
Dividends paid to non-controlling nterests 1 £ R IR F R - - - - - - - - - - (38762) (38762)
Dispose of a sy e 12 - EREAR (k) - - - - - - - - - Sy ()
Totaltransactions with owners REH AR AR - - (849) - - - - - - (849) (95530) (96379)
Comprefensive income Al
(Loss)fproft forthe year RER (E8B) /%A - - - - - - - - (169,233) (169239) 10404 (158829)
Other comprehensive income L ETTION
Remeasurement of cefined benefi B RERRARE

obligations - - - - - - - - 3919 3919 (n) 3646
Change infir value of fnancial assesat far -~ Sk /A TR A SR IAZ

value through other comprehiensive income. £ EEA TS - - - - - - 479% - - 4193 - 4193
Exchange iffrences on tranleton to RAZAIENELZ

presentation curency ERES - - - - - 8% - - - 813 (2870) 219862
Release o exchange reserve toproftorloss A E— B AR R RN E

upon disposal of asubsicry (note 12(0)) AR RIS (3 L2) - - - - - (405) - - - (405) - (05)
Share of exchange differences on tanlation B 4 7B S £ 3

of associates - - - - - (490) - - - (190) - (490)
Total comprehensive income for theyear K2 A% - - - - - 81837 093 - (165314) 164456 126 mm
Anproprition to tautory resenve: HREETRE - - - - 8 - - o (2m9) o = =

Balance at 31 December 2020

REB-BEHZA=E-0
25k 435189 662,08 (13560) (1530 106209 158 (1.116) US6 30T 446N WS 41
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % % ——4+ " H =1 —H IL4F i

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

LYTE SN 154
Fair value
through  Revaluation
other  reserve for
Share Goodwill comprehensive property, Non-
Share premium Other arising on Statutory Exchange income plantand Retained controlling Total
capital account* reserve®  consolidation® reserve* reserve* Teserve™  equipment* profts* Total interests equity
HAFHE
A R R
et HakH ET1N Ritlh
23 BER HRRE EEeR® BeRbr ERE Rl EWRE RERA it kEREE  EasE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk T Figr Figx Tk Tk Tk Tk T Tk T
(note 40) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41) (note 41)
(W) (Wka)  (Raka)  ORsba)  (Wba) (R ORet) (W)
Balce by 2021 HoRo-f-A-R25h G GROB (B (5A) D618 T8 (BUS M6 30 4BER 0S8 4T
Transactions with onners LEIINY
Deemed acquisition of inteestn REMEREATES
subsidae (1ot () (#2460 - ) - - - - - Sy (%) (B8
Dividends paid to non-contolling inteests i % SR AR MRS - - - - - - - - - - (11,63) (11,632)
Totaltransactions with owners WHH AR AH - - (21819 - - - - - - (21819) (50,685) (12504)
Comprefensive income 2iilA
Proitfor ey HEERA - - - = . . . - (g (100900 (89 (105375)
Other comprehensive income B LT TION
Remeasurementof cefind beneft B R TR
obligations - - - - - - - - 3 aim 4783 12515
Change in fai value of financia assts at fair A FEFFASE B AL
valuethrough other comprehensiveincome 4 B K EAT({EH - - - - - - kekbil - B - BT
Exchange diffrences on tenlationte e RAI R LR EE
presentation currency - - - - - (5.163) - - - (5,163) (&730) (989%)
Share of exchange diffrences on translaion 182 /4 Al 1 4
of associates - - - - - 188 - - - 188 - 188
Release of exchange reserve toproftor loss & —FIHE A RV E
upon disposel of asubsiiaries (note 120) el E i FIEB R (3% 12(0) = = = S = (144) o o o (144) - (144)
Total comprehensive income for the year  AAF B2 A S0 - - - - - (5719) gkl - (63,135) (%721) (4456) (40.183)
Balance at 31 December 2021 REFZ-EFZA=-H
b1 435,189 662028 (3319) (15,300) 106,209 1804 401 34916 3,147,655 4361133 262401 4623540

= These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$3,925,944,000  * PR IRE A4 T

(2020: HK$3,983,490,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
H5IT) ©

WA IR DL A 2 55 6 ff
3,925,944,000 % 76 (— & — % 4F  3,983,490,000

g The entire balance of fair value through other comprehensive income reserve belongs ~ # F AT R At 2 T YA 5 2 2B A5 R )

to non-recycling portion. J& AR Y o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BABaSmER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % % ——4+ " H =1 —H I

2021 2020
TR R R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! Tt T
Cash flows from operating activities KEWBEAEZHENE
Loss before income tax % 7 15 6 i e 48 (74,272) (133,653)
Adjustments for: TR
Depreciation and amortisation P S 4 10 117,887 161,873
Provision and impairment losses T R A R 1R 12,918 49,588
Net surplus on revaluation of investment BB YT AL 2 BT
properties 28 (12,736) (9,723)
Share of profit of associates JRE Ak Wt 5 ) s 26 (323) (3,180)
Share of loss of joint ventures JEAL &8 A 2 1R 25 83 494
Interest income from non-banking FEERAT TS 2 B A
business 8 (1,863) (4,222)
Finance costs from non-banking business FFERAT TS 2 BA S E H 9 67,351 82,956
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - E RS
equipment Wi 4 8 (925) (531)
Gain on the modification of leases BB Ikt 8 (7,664) =
Loss/(gain) on disposal of a subsidiary o —HME AR Z
18, (%) 12 469 (405)
Dividend income B A (11,605) (10,232)
Operating profit before working capital a1 4 B Y i 2 AR e
changes 89,320 132,965
(Decrease)/increase in due to clients JREAT % 5 A (kb)) s (824,873) 1,900,586
Increase in due from clients JRE 2 5 K JEL 3 (771,253) (310,110)
Increase/(decrease) in due to banks JEAH SR AT SRIE R I, (i) 12,505 (16,785)
(Decrease)/increase in due from banks JREMERA T A (kb)) 1 3,346,232 (548,913)
Decrease in trade receivables JREE W B e 2 11,359 84,952
Decrease in inventories FEwWAD 50,651 62,080
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients & F A 2 B (11,354) (6,758)
Increase/(decrease) in other assets HoAth g A s, (k) (32,740) 48,203
Increase in derivative financial assets miﬁ PRl /28 14 (6,166) (20,086)
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial A G a3~ (i)
liabilities 16,621 (20,669)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables JE AR B (B b)) B 48,271 (56,754)
Decrease in contract liabilities G HAa D 12,686 (5,335)
(Increase)/decrease in trading portfolio o HERE ()
investments (6,613) 103,062
Increase in other liabilities FoAt B A4 90,624 18,231
Cash generated from operations REXBELZBE 2,025,270 1,364,669
Income tax paid EYRPIREE) (30,024) (55,063)
Net cash generated from operating HERBEEZHETFH
activities 1,995,246 1,309,606
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HaBlelifg

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

2021 2020
TR R R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it Tt T
Cash flows from investing activities BEWEHEAZHERE
Proceeds from disposal of property, B - BB R
plant and equipment A5 3K IE 33,000 3,014
Dividends received B ik S 11,605 10,232
Increase in other financial assets at o i B AL A 51 B 2 L Ath 48
amortised cost  E (440,293) (154,668)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEE Y2 - W Mk (203,291) (186,069)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank B MR TR ()
deposits - 111,763
Interest received from non-banking business 7k 4R 47 ¥ 15 2 E U FILE. 1,863 4,222
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal of a 4 5 — [i] Fff J&§ 2 7 51 4=
subsidiary WA (i ) 1 AR 12 17,084 (10,198)
Net cash used in investing activities GG BT 2 Bl & (580,032) (221,704)
Cash flows from financing activities Tl B A 2 BT
Acquisition of non-controlling interests e T I 42 S HE 4 46(a) (60,872) (2,979)
Interest paid A AL (61,795) (82,956)
Proceeds from borrowings (ER=VIREET- @] 1,134,366 765,148
Repayment of principal portion of the lease  fif #& il & £ fif 2 A & &85
liabilities (39,635) (41,596)
Repayment of borrowings A (1,552,823) (939,838)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests Ti] I 442 B HE 4 UR A 1% (11,632) (16,860)
Advanced from directors K[ 2 B 60,300 3,992
Repayment to directors B 78 5 KA (8,018) (5,000)
Advance from a related company 2 B — [H] B A /] 2 3R 126,000 =
Repayment to a related company Tia] — [H] R 8 A ) 28 3K (38,000) =
Advance from associates Wi 285 s ) EGK 20,000 =
Repayment to associates I e A ) 2 K (10,000) =
Net cash used in financing activities A T B B A (442,109) (320,089)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BABERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{% —F ——4F+ - =+—H I

2021 2020
TRT AR R R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &1 Tt THsTT
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3 4 K 3 & % {5 P 3% Jn 5 5 973,105 767,813
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—H—HZB&EK
B &% 5,447,595 4,631,702
Effect of foreign exchange rate i 35 5 ) 5% BV B
changes, net (69,376) 48,080
Cash and cash equivalents at RT_H=E=+—HZBE&ER
31 December Bl&%EY 6,351,324 5,447,595
Analysis of balances of cash and cash B4 B B 4 25 E W 45 Bk 4 A
equivalents
Cash and deposits B & B A7 3 17 6,409,629 5,500,306
Bank overdraft HATIE X 35 (58,305) (52,711)
6,351,324 5,447,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B £ B 5 ¥ A ik

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # & & ——4F+_F =+ —H IL4F ¥

GENERAL INFORMATION

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands. Its registered
office address is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church Street, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is
Units 1902-04, Level 19, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road
West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) include:

- Manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces;

- Property investments; and

- Banking and financial businesses.

There was no significant change in the Group’s operations during the year.

The Group’s principal places of the business are in Hong Kong,
Switzerland, United Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC™).

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January
2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “new or revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are relevant to
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, - Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent

Concessions

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material impact on
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior
period. The Group has not early applied any new or amended
HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S B A M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{% —F ——4F+ - =+—H I

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (*“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been issued but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies*
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current*

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —

(2020) Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause*

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction*

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use!

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 References to Conceptual Framework®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 20212

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16
and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
2018-2020*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022.

g Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition
is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

o The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # & & ——4F+_F =+ —H IL4F ¥

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (*“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments seek to promote improved accounting policy
disclosures that provide more useful information to investors and
other primary users of the financial statements. Apart from clarify
that entities are required to disclose their “material” rather than
“significant” accounting policy, the amendments provide guidance
on applying the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

The amendments clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence
of the amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the amendments to HKAS 1 with no
change in conclusion and do not change the existing requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S B A M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{% —F ——4F+ - =+—H I

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (*“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates. Among
other things, the amendments now define accounting estimates
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty, and clarify that the effects of a change in
an input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting
estimate are changes in accounting estimates unless they result from
the correction of prior period errors.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so that it does not apply to
such transactions as leases and decommissioning provisions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Consequently, entities will need to recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising on these transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract
comprises the “costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # & & ——4F+_F =+ —H IL4F ¥

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (*“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 instead of
the version issued in 2010. The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a
requirement that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a
levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the
obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 - COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendment extends the time limit in one of the qualifying
criteria of the practical expedient for COVID-19-related rent
concessions from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022. As such, the use
of the practical expedient is available to more rent concessions, in
particular those involving reduction in lease payments originally
due after 30 June 2021 but before 30 June 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{% —F ——4F+ - =+—H I

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (*“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and HKAS
41, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards, including:

. HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of
HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on other’s behalf are included.

. HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative Example 13
to remove the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold
improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in
that example.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint VVenture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction with an associate or joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method, any gains or
losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate
or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from
the remeasurement of retained interest in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture) to fair value are
recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group is in the progress of making assessments of the potential
impact of these new or revised HKFRSs upon initial application.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) issued by the HKICPA.
The consolidated financial statements also included the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value. The
adoption of new or revised HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are
used in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$7000”) unless otherwise stated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{% —F ——4F+ - =+—H I

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates
of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure non-controlling interest that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010
(i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been
accounted for in accordance with the transition requirements in the
standard. Such balances are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business combinations
and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Structured entities

The collective investment instruments of the Group are structured
entities as defined under HKFRS 12. If the Group operates such an
investment instrument acting as an agent primarily in the interests
of investors, this structured entity is not consolidated. Investments
in such investment instruments held by the Group are recognised as
financial instruments. If the Group acts as principal primarily in its
own interests, the investment instrument is consolidated.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

4, FEGFFIEOR @)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Wit J 2 )

T o > )4 A 4 W) W] 3 FLAT o o
MEZWBE DT - M T O =HE R 2
FRAFAE > AR 2Y B S B T
EPBE DT AR - BTy
T A2 [ R A JE g A A L e
900 758 LR ) R B S T B I R
W T 1T DU A T 2 S A
SNG4 A58 3 O IR g 8 T
e HE -

TR T Z BB IRBL R > T4 T
O ) 22 A A A AT A Bl L e 4
(W) BUBR o A28 7 4 2 i dic
I 5516 Y B 2 ) SRR B

Bt

7 412 ] 41 B 4504 B A U A
HHERI S 12 5% B U 2 SRR
it A% 5 ) = 22 20 BB 2 M 4 R
BB Z G T H > AL
WA THEEAR - AEEFFAR
Z A E TR 2 SE MR &Rl T
HLo fi A 45 B 12 2 1 3 5 A 45 AT
HEREANTE MBETRESA
IE o

W 2 )

W On B o A SR T T S AT R
2 SIRNER I ) A S B RS
Prz fri - R B 11582 A
7 2 B R A R E - H
e $B 2 45 ACSRE T t 42 Al B R 4 o
ZHETy -

ACHE [ LARESE & A I B A A A
AR o WD A RS, AR HE AR
PR A B ) 2 R S S
& 2 8 P LR T - MR
H AR A W 8 w2 2 T R A
THERD > BRIEALE A BT W %
SRR -

A A [ BRI 8 m) 2 VAT R B
7 1 2 Y M) B 4R DA R O ) 2
I B 43 65 AR D, o B R
AT W% 55 58 oy i 4 A W 8 ) 2 ik A
T e 48 B W 8~ ) R T (L3 & o
AR5 B A R R R CHGR
B BB A v ) s 1 R o



173

CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED

e S S A T A I A B )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

45

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets. Accounting policies on impairment of interests
in associates are described in note 4.7 below.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the relevant
activities of the arrangement to the group and at least one other
party. Joint control is assessed under the same principles as control
over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either:

. Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the net
assets of the joint arrangement; or

. Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights to assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint arrangements, the
Group considers:

. The structure of the joint arrangement;

. The legal form of joint arrangements structured through a
separate vehicle;

. The contractual terms of the joint arrangement agreement;
and

. Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the
carrying amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint venture has
been impaired the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests over the fair value of identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. The consideration
transferred is measured at the aggregate of fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A cash generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets on pro-rata basis over the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less
cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

4, FEGFFIEOR @)

4.6

[k

31 B0 e S A TR o BT R A
i Ll £ 1 i e R 2 O AR
it BT WS T R K
REMAFEZFRIY « TR 1%
AR F A 224t HU B A T EOE - B
SR IE AR R AT IR T
B2 &t A FERE -

il s EE - AR ARREE L
AFE R BT AAUE 2 2 5E - ik
S P A AT S 2 P 2 R I WA
7 SE IR A 2 WO I HE A W
TR - IR AR ) A AR AR AE
e 0 2 v ) B 8 T AR o

7R B A A1 BR 2 Rl (s 18 R
B ot E R & o O A 2
B) e 2 T & 52 2R WO 1 R 2
4t 2 45 A B B 4 E AR B o Bl
A AL 2% Y EE 2 /N T A AL
% B E A 2 B i AEAR KRR
B S A FL A U AL 2 B
WA o M5y e o B 2 Bl R B
(VA-ESEVNENE S A S AT
RE th B U (IR 28 47 (B B0

T SR S S  JE  A E A 2 T
B E > MR R B E R
i (8 4 A2 BEAR ) A 2% B A T2
SE A RERT BUE T - B &k
BV 2 T i) < D I % B R
TR - 8 516 20 T ol (L M 48 A Bl 2D
% B 73 e 2 AT ] TR R T (L
AR B 5% B85 19 4% JFU 7 R T
Z Lo o3 Bl 2 % B 2 HA K E -
IR > 73 L 245 B 2 s B A & A
I8N 7 B T {3 2 AR -
Bl B A (A ] ) sl
{6 (0T 5E) > DA & e - 7
B 2 AT AT IR e 4 i ) B 1R A
HERS > IR A T fe] -



175

CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED

e S S A T A I A B )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the following assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

. property, plant and equipment;
. intangible assets; and
. interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit (note 4.6),
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8
@

(b)

Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

0]

(D)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

4.9

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(if)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the buildings could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease,
and other items of plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress (“CIP”), are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated
depreciation and any identified impairment.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss in the year in which they are incurred.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9

4.10

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the terms of the leases or estimated
useful life ranging between 3 to 50
years, whichever is shorter

Right-of-use assets

Buildings Over the terms of the leases or estimated
useful life, ranging between 10 years
and 50 years, whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the terms of the leases, or estimated

improvements useful life of 5 years, whichever is
shorter

Plant and machinery 6% to 20%

Furniture, fixturesand 6% to 50%

office equipment
Motor vehicles 9% to 30%

The assets’ estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

CIP, which mainly represents renovation work on buildings and
installation of machinery, is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs incurred during the periods
of construction, installation and testing. CIP is reclassified to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in
respect of CIP until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Fair
value is determined by external professional valuers, with sufficient
experience with respect to both the location and the nature of
the investment property. The carrying amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the reporting date.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10

411

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from either change in the fair value or the
sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Leasing

Accounting as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
low-value assets and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term 12 months or less. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the Group applies the revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of an investment property, they are carried at
fair value.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are held
for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Leasing (Continued)

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liabilities by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liabilities; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, or to
reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the
carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make
over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discount
rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when
the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a rate
or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In
both cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further
reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Leasing (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with
the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the
modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all other cases,
where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether that
is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional assets
being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount
rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset
being adjusted by the same amount.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number
of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases are
classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption, then
the Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Intangible assets

0)

(if)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangible assets with definite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Supplier and distribution networks 10 years
Brand names 10 years
Patents 10 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be
amortised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at

cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Internally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is capitalised if
it can be demonstrated that:

. it is technically feasible to develop the product for it to
be sold;

. adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

. there is an intention to complete and sell the product;

. the Group is able to sell the product;

. sale of the product will generate future economic

benefits; and

. expenditure on the project can be measured reliably.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research and
development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the periods
the Group expects to benefit from selling the products
developed. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are
tested for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (note 4.7).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount; however, the carrying amount should
not be increased above the lower of its recoverable amount
and the carrying amount that would have resulted had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
All reversals are recognised in the profit or loss immediately.

4.

EEFFBOR @)
412 JEIBEE (47)

(i)

(iii)

PR A 2 TP R (F %
WA) (#8)

C A EA 2 B M A R A
A 98] TS5 DA 4 T B %
JEE fib 2 )t 0 R o S 2
JR A 3 1) S5 8 R

AFF G R AUEE 2 BRSO e
AR [ FET I B 2 32 ik
A IR A i 1 s 8 P R o

AR

B W 5B s E AT AR B (E
Ry > ELA PR AT i R 4 1A 2 4T
S E U E W o B PR AT
i 747 1 2 T & B X I R
A 2 MY B e 1 A A
TR AERE > NS A 5
BN %55 G ] BBV E - SETY
T 97 A Ll 5 L iR T (A B
AT A ] < A ik (e
FE4.7) -

O 2 AR AT ] A D
TR MR TEMELIRY > % 7 2 B T {H
1S A B 2 T i [ B o

WA BV TR B . -

i HAZ 488 I S A s 1R > P
ZMRTHIME 1 2 HAE T A% 2 fil
FT AT ] A 5 SR AR T (E
A 22 A T o o] i
B R 5% Y A AR A 4 2 3
it 8 981 M 48 1T T E A 2
HRMI{E W& P 2 B < P A
85 o] B IR 78 v ) s 1R E R



TR T ARAEHL 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

184

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S B A M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % % ——4+ " H =1 —H I

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments

0)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL™), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

0)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
solely payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

0)

(ih)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured at
fair value. Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables, contract assets, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and debt investments
measured at FVVOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at
an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets at amortised cost or at FVOCI,
the ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

For the due from clients and due from banks, except for
precious metal, ECL is determined by reference to the
estimation of the exposure at default (“EAD”), probability
of default (“PD”) as well as a loss given default (“LGD”).
The 12-months and lifetime PDs represent the probability of
default occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining
maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents
the expected balance at default, taking into account the
repayment of principal and interest from the reporting date
to the default event together with any expected drawdowns
of committed facilities. The LGD represents expected losses
on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account,
among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral
value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time
value of money.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For loan commitments, the date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to be the date that
the group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the
Group considers changes in the risk of default occurring on
the loan to which the loan commitment relates.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative
is prohibited.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(v)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or
(iii) the financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains and losses arising
from the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, borrowings, and other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in accordance with
principles of the the accounting policy set out in 4.13(ii); and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished.
If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

Financial instruments (Continued)

(viii) Write-off policy
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the group determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average basis, and in the case of work-in-progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any
applicable selling expense and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, demand
deposits with banks, and short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in values.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.17

4.18

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as described
above and the amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under HKAS
40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties are measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case
the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Income tax (Continued)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,
and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in
net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

4.19 Revenue recognition
(i)  Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

0)

Revenue from contract with customers (Continued)
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

. does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the payment
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

0)

Revenue from contract with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

(@)  Service fees and commission income
Service fees and commission income is generally
recognised when the corresponding service is
provided.

Service fees and commission income are recognised
at a point in time when the relevant services such as
broking services, provided to the customers and there
is no unfulfilling performance obligation after services
rendering. Except for a few services, such as custody
account services, of which revenue is recognised over
time so as to depict the pattern of delivery of services.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the
Group which result in the creation or acquisition of
a financial asset are deferred and recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate. When a loan
commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down
of a loan, loan commitment fees are recognised.

(b)  Sales of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point
in time as when the control of the goods has been
transferred to the customer and there is no unfulfilling
performance obligation after the acceptance of the
goods.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i)  Revenue from other sources

@)

(b)

©

Interest income

Interest income arising from the use of entity assets
by others is recognised in profit or loss based on the
duration and the effective interest rate. Interest income
includes the amortisation of any discount or premium
or other differences between the initial carrying
amount of an interest bearing instrument and its
amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest
rate basis.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of financial assets
and liabilities and of allocating the interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial instrument. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, call and similar options) but
does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and interests paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest on the impaired financial assets is recognised
using the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows (“unwinding of discount”) for the purpose of
measuring the related impairment loss.

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on straight-line method over the term of the relevant
lease.

Dividend income
Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the
dividend is established.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans and defined benefit pension plans.

0]

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payment of the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect of defined
contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities
and assets may be recognised if underpayment or prepayment
has occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets as they are normally of a short-term nature.

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme™) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees in Hong Kong who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government (the
“Scheme”). These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The Scheme is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees and the Group
has no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or other post-retirement benefits beyond the employer
contributions. Contributions under the Scheme are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the PRC.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Retirement benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Defined benefit pension plans

Defined benefit pension plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position in respect of defined pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflow
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related services.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

4, FEGFFIEOR @)

420 BARHEF (%)

(i)

(iii)

E TR I G A A

TE BB R A A s S (R A
TR HE AR I S BRI 2 2B A < AR
AR BB AR T ARG
e 5 4F 5 T N 4 — TH B
THR M E ©

TR 5 BV 5 R L 3R A1 g RE R
BIR R RRERR 2 B - At
el R 2 78 BEAR A AR B
(BT B < A TE - 2R
8 A T AT 4 4F o 8 52 RS L
o PTG B BT R -
TR AR ) AR B AE 4% DL ST AT AR
Mz —&HaHE - BEIM B
BELAF IR 8 PR A A BAE A A 2
B Oy RE S5 I 2 0 B A st
ARAR R 4 i T A 2 © 75 B
RIS AT 55 2 B R > J)
{5 BUR 5 20 2 T 35 0] 2

K] 788 15 9 B T RS SR s A )
v 7 AR 2 RS W AR K 1R TS
R 7 A T 7 B 2 L A 4
T A I BR R A

A IR 5 B A B IR A das A1) Bl
N R TR -

e 391 i B 5 A

JE ) R S AR AR 1S T R H
B AR B A 55 2 4F B2 i
[ N I 3 e [D5 17
WS 2 (R BAR A (BT AR A1)
BrAh) o SR B AR A E 2
SRAEAR B RS < 4R A R, -

i (Bt B 7 A < I B2 A R
JAA P U A R 7 T Tk R



201

CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED

e S S A T A I A B )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

421

4.22

4.23

Share-based employee compensation
The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans
for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any
share-based compensation are measured at their fair values. These
are indirectly determined by reference to the share options awarded.
Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions.

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve and the proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs up to the nominal value of
the share issued are reallocated to share capital with any excess
being recorded as share premium. When the share options are
lapsed, forfeited or still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

4.

AR ER ()

4.21

4.22

4.23

B B i oy il £
ASAE 75 FLAR B B AR 45 5 UK
173 5y HE i 2 A AT ) o

HLHTA 8 B 4R (IR 1 % A A
PB4 4B 1 HL 2 P (E AT o %554
BT 2575 A5 L R0 IS 73 ] 4 et
FE o HAFEAZ H H RPAl > 36 A6
AT A I i 357 B A A o 2 R

A RO A AT AR AR AR R
I I 3 R 5 T 0 - R I BT WU T
Z AR S E N BR AT o B 4G 2 5
WA (EAS 2 B 3547 e 2 T {ED)
S 1 R 20 2 FBEAS o AT Y
I3 6 ROk 2% R A AR AR o i R 8 TR £
RER BN B AR30 ORI R AT
i SRR R R U I 3 M ot A i 52

NCREIF 438 22 R B i A o

fif B A

WS ~ R R AR E S IR I A
et iR 2 A B EREZ
HIZEAMG S ERA > TLUERLE
RSB IR 2 — W o I A
PR % 56 B 2 4 A B AR A
BT 2 WA B R B AL 2
BERRASIIER o A1 & B & 2 T
B T ik i B 2 A KT 20 15 B
5E LR B AL BSR4 0 o
o A Al i B A I 7 A A0 T S i
A B 1R T RR -

b

A ) T L0 A T i 7 T A
et Bt ([ThRe s ) LIS I
HISL 2 22 5 TR 28 5y H ) 2 e 56
ROk o SR W E I AR IR
A5 H 2 MRS o IAMIE
RHEIZATPESIIR B IEA TS
F o T8 AL I v N 2 R
BB o HANEBIE AR B 2 &
W IH F O R



TR T ARAEHL 2021 ANNUAL REPORT

202

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S B A M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{% —F ——4F+ - =+—H I

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.23

4.24

Foreign currency (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment in the
foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the exchange
reserve.

Share capital and share premium
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined
using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the issuance of
share over the par value. Any transaction costs associated with the
issuing of shares are deducted from the share premium (net of any
related income tax benefit) to the extent that they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.24

4.25

Share capital and share premium (Continued)

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to owners of the Company until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued any
consideration received net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following the Group’s major
lines of business.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments: (a)
manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces; (b)
property investments and (c) banking and financial businesses.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
the product and service lines requires different resources as well
as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs.

Segment assets include all assets but interests in associates, interests
in joint ventures, and certain trading portfolio investments. In
addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a
segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. These include certain
borrowings and due to a shareholder and certain lease liabilities
related parties.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
Such estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group tests on an annual basis whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 4.6.
The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD”),
whichever is higher. The value-in-use calculations require the use of
judgement and estimates of the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGUs, the timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable
discount rates in order to calculate the present value. In the process of
estimating expected future cash flows management makes assumptions
about future revenues and profits. These assumptions relate to future
events and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may cause
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill within the
next financial year. Determining the appropriate discount rate involves
estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific
risk factors. Calculation of FVLCD may involve the selection of valuation
model, adoption of key assumption, and input data, which are subject to
management judgement. Details in impairment assessment are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, the Group would evaluate ageing analysis
of inventories and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective estimated net realisable value. The assessment of the provision
involves management judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories and provision
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets with definite useful lives using straight-line method over
their respective estimated useful lives, starting from the date on which the
assets are available for intended use, in accordance with accounting policy
stated in notes 4.9 and 4.12. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’
estimate of the period that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables on a forward-looking basis. The provision matrix is
determined based on the Group’s historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. Other receivables is
considered 12-months expected credit losses, given credit risk has not
increase significantly since initial recognition. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information such as actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of customers, actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed by the Group’s management.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of non-
financial assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is determined. The recoverable amount is determined
based on value-in-use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD”). The calculations of value-in-use require the use of judgement
and estimates of the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUSs,
the timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable discount rates in
order to calculate the present value. In the process of estimating expected
future cash flows management makes assumptions about future revenues
and profits. These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances.
The actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of non-financial assets within the next financial
year. Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk factors.
Calculation of FVLCD involves the selection of valuation model, adoption
of key assumption, and input data, which are subject to management
judgement.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Switzerland, United
Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income taxes and the timing of
the payments of related taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Warranty provision

Warrant provision is made for expenditure associated with future variable
repair services and repair cost related to warranty claims. The management
makes an assessment of the future costs related to this work by using the
proportion of actual tasks related to warranty work as the basis for the
calculation. The assessment of provision involves management judgement
and estimates. When the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
carrying value of warrant provision and provision charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimation of defined benefit obligations

The Group operates three defined benefit plans. Pension costs for defined
benefit plans are assessed using the projected unit credit method in
accordance with HKAS 19, Employee Benefits. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions is charged to the profit or loss in accordance
with the advice of the actuaries who carry out a full valuation of the plans.
The pension obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period based on government agency
or high quality corporate bonds with currency and term similar to the
estimated term of benefit obligations. All actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in full, in the year in which they occur, in other comprehensive
income.

Management appointed actuaries to carry out a full valuation of these
pension plans to determine the pension obligations that are required to
be disclosed and accounted for in the accounts in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRSs.

The actuaries use assumptions and estimates in determining the fair value
of the defined benefit plans and evaluate and update these assumptions on
an annual basis. Judgement is required to determine the principal actuarial
assumptions to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations
and service costs. Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can
significantly affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs
in future periods.

Valuation adjustments on credit positions

Various factors can influence the expected credit loss allowances for
credit positions. Management considers factors such as external rating and
days past due to determine the HKFRS 9 staging allocation. Management
further estimates the exposure at default, probability of default as well as
loss given default to calculate the expected credit losses allowance.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for imminent threats if in the opinion of
the responsible experts the probability that losses will occur is greater than
the probability that they will not occur and if their amount can be reliably
estimated. In judging whether the creation of a provision and its amount
are reasonable, the best-possible estimates and assumptions as at the end of
reporting periods are applied. If necessary, these will be adjusted to reflect
new knowledge and circumstances at a later date. New knowledge may
have a significant effect to profit or loss.

As part of the normal business activities of banking business, the Group
is exposed to a wide range of legal risks. These include in particular risks
relating to litigation. The Group recognises provisions for such litigation
risks if the Group’s management and its legal advisors are of the opinion
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The amount of the
provisions and their timing are by their nature subject to uncertainty.
However, these uncertainties are evaluated as being low since it was
possible to reliably estimate the individual amounts and the majority of the
recognised provisions will probably become due within one year.

Research and development costs

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4.12, costs
associated with research activities are expensed in profit or loss as they
are incurred, while costs that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they meet all the
requirements as set out in note 4.12. This requires the management to make
judgements to distinguish the research phase and development phase of the
projects being undertaken. Research is original and planned investigation
undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding. Development is the application of research,
findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for the production of new
or substantially improved materials devices, products, processes, systems
or services before the start of commercial production or use. Determining
the amounts to be expensed in profit or loss or to be capitalised required
management to make judgement, and assumptions regarding the expected
progress and outcome of the research and development activities the future
expected cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied, and
also the expected period of, probable future economic benefits. Because of
the nature of the Group’s research and development activities the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are generally not met until late
in the development stage of the projects. Hence research costs are generally
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The Group uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group
‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease.

The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates.

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s financial
statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value. The
fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements are categorised into
different levels based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy’):

- Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: observable inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1; and

- Level 3: unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the lowest
level of the inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value
measurement of the item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair value:

- Due from banks — precious metals (note 18)

- Trading portfolio investments (note 19)

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(note 20)

- Derivative financial assets (note 21)

- Derivative financial liabilities (note 21)
- Investment properties (note 28)

- Due to clients — precious metals (note 32)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value measurement of
the items above, please refer to the respective notes.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. mHEHR
The chief operating decision-maker is identified as executive directors. TR (AT ES) CAFAEE
The executive directors have identified the Group’s product and service FEE i SRS 4 B AR 22 458 4
lines as operating segments as follows:
(@  manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces; (a)  SEER IRF T i R T8
(b)  property investments; and (b) WEKRE: K
(c)  banking and financial businesses. (c)  SRAT M4l o
These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made IS BRI 4E 2 B R W PR e A R
on the basis of adjusted segment operating results. BB SEREEL -
2021 TR
Banking
Watches and Property  and financial
timepieces  investments businesses  Unallocated Total
kR BTk
Wt W% SREH KR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Segment revenue: AR :
Net interest and dividend income from hanking /7 %% 2 FI 8 RIS
business AR - - 94,164 - 94,164
Net service fees and commission income from 447 275 < MR & Jfil 4
banking business N i - - 223,370 - 223,370
Trading income from hanking business BT ER 2 WA - - 36,197 - 36,197
Service fees and commission income from financial 4: il 3575 2 R H % &
business LET/ON - - 5900 - 5,900
Interest income from financial business SREHZHERA = = 330 = 330
Sales of goods from non-banking and financial 7877 K 4 B3R 2
businesses A ERA 1,555,114 - - - 1,555,114
Rental income from non-banking and financial 7877 % & BT 2
businesses WA - 16,024 - - 16,024
Total revenue MR 1,555,114 16,024 359,961 - 1,931,099
Segment results Vg ES 19,002 25,423 47,808 - 92,233
Unallocated corporate income and FATA AR
expenses, net - - - (99,394) (99,394)
Share of loss of joint ventures FEfh A8 2R - - = (83) (83)
Share of profit of associates A B A i - - = 323 323
Finance costs B (29,760) = (449) (37.142) (67,351)
(Loss)/profit hefore income tax VBB A (k) /i A (10,758) 25423 47,359 (136,296) (74,212)
Income tax expense P B8 B 5 (18,391) - (11,709) (1,004) (31,104)
(Loss)/profit for the year RERE (BH) /A (29,149) 25423 35,650 (137,300) (105,376)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. HER @)

2021 (Continued) TR A ()
Banking
Watches and Property  and financial
timepieces  investments businesses  Unallocated Total
R Bk
I it 2 W RE SHER KA st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T T T
Segment assets AERE 4,698,865 21466 14300170 o 192150
Unallocated corporate assets: FARAFERE :
Interests in joint ventures ey 4 o - - - 519 519
Interests in associates A s 24 7 = = = 113,687 113,687
Trading portfolio investments Tl AT E - - - 48,820 48,820
Financial assets at fair value through RAFEFFALMRRRAZ
other comprehensive income SHYEE - - - 497970 497970
Cash and deposits RSN - - - 18,529 18529
Other unallocated corporate assets HikARATEE - - - 71,393 71,393
Consolidated total assets HRMEE 4,698,865 211,466 14,301,170 750,918 19,962,419
Segment liabilities AR 1,296,786 33,292 13,088,159 = 14,418,237
Unallocated corporate liabilities: FARATALR:
Borrowings {58 - - - 695,188 695,188
Due to a shareholder Tt — 2 R 2 508 - - = 12,000 12,000
Lease liabilities HEARK - - - 41484 41484
Other unallocated corporate HiR R AR
liabilities (note) £fE (5E) - - - 171,970 171,970
Consolidated total liabilities BRI 1,296,786 33,292 13,088,159 920,642 15,338,879
Other segment information b G R
Interest income and other interest income B BA R A S A 1517 2 211 133 1,863
Expected credit losses on trade receivables BRI ARG &R (2361) = = = (2361)
Expected credit loss on other assets LG sGE S ER (474) ©) (78) (231) (786)
Provision of expected credit losses FEMBRAT R & P Sk TR
on due from banks and customers REEREE - - (593) - (593)
Reversal of expected credit losses for S A T R 2 Ho A 2
other financial assets at amortised cost 7 L £ B i R R ) - - 2,014 - 2,014
Provision for litigation risks, net Bl e s - - @) - @)
Provision for inventories e (29,325) - - - (29,325)
Reversal of provision for inventories R 18,154 - - - 18,154
Depreciation and amortisation EYE 3 (86,583) - (13,187) (18,117) (117,887)
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE 51,511 = 151,780 - 203,291
Net surplus on revaluation of HEMEEZ
investment properties BT - 12,736 - = 12,736
Note: Other unallocated corporate liabilities mainly included amounts due to a BibaE « AR 4y i A R A6 B AR &

related company and associates as at 31 December 2021.

T A= A MR
A RN F AROH -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HER @)
2020 —EFE
Banking and
Watches and Property financial
timepieces  investments businesses  Unallocated Total
FEdh K AT R
REPEM  WERE  SRER RO Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
Segment revenue: AEWA
Net interest income from hanking SRATER ZFI B
business N - - 128,028 - 128,028
Net service fees and commission income #4725 2 I 2 K 4
from banking business WA BH - - 196,994 - 196,994
Trading income from banking business 8847 5 2 2 Bt A - - 21,702 - 21,702
Service fees and commission income from 4 i SE 75 2 MRS 2 1%
financial business EON = = 10,721 - 10,721
Interest income from financial business 4 Al £ H 2 A1 E A - - 184 = 184
Sales of goods from non-banking and JERTT Rm R 2
financial businesses EhSHEA 1,405,812 - - - 1405812
Rental income from non-banking and FRIT Rm R
financial businesses A A - 11,108 - = 11,108
Total revenue Al A 1,405,812 11,108 357,629 - 1774549
Segment results Vi B3 (51,612) 16,067 22,531 - (13,013)
Unallocated corporate income and R A A B
expenses, net - - - (40,370) (40,370)
Share of loss of joint ventures JEAG &8 R - - = (494) (494)
Share of profit of associates R 6 B /A ¥ = = = 3,180 3,180
Finance costs W2 (23,863) = (543) (58,550) (82,956)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BR TR (B548) /it A1 (75,474) 16,067 21,988 (96,234) (133,653)
Income tax expense F A3 BB 5 (18,904) (689) (5,026) (557) (25,176)
(Loss)/profit for the year KA (1R) /i F (94,378) 15,378 16,962 (96,792 (158,829)
Segment assets ARE B 4,775,170 196,708 15,560,071 - 20,531,949
Unallocated corporate assets: RO BT EE -
Interests in joint ventures it & &4 SR 4 - - - 602 602
Interests in associates I A 8 T HE A = = = 113,176 113,176
Trading portfolio investments THHAHE - - - 29,054 29,054
Financial assets at fair value through AT EFALBATERA
other comprehensive income ZEMEE - - - 464,843 464,843
Cash and deposits B KAr 5 = = = 151,882 151,882
Other unallocated corporate assets Hopth R A il A 7B = = = 93,689 93,689
Consolidated total assets AR 4,775,170 196,708 15,560,071 853,246 21,385,195
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 4HER @
2020 (Continued) ZERRE ()
Banking and
Wiatches and Property financial
timepieces  investments businesses  Unallocated Total
Fish )k AT R
WatiEm  WERE  SRER ROE EE

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T T

Segment liabilities AHAME 1,109,730 30,627 14,283,267 - 15423624
Unallocated corporate liabilities: KATAFAAE:
Borrowings B = = = 1,125,028 1,125,028
Amount due to a shareholder JEAT— 2 oK 2 3K0E - - - 12,000 12,000
Lease liabilities HEAR - - - 19,336 19,336
Other unallocated corporate liabilities Hoh K73 B s 7 B 15 - - - 68,980 68,980
Consolidated total liabilities G AR 1,109,730 30627 14283267 1205344 16,648,968
Other segment information A &R
Interest income and other interest income & It A K HAl AL A 3,365 214 630 13 4222
Expected credit losses on trade receivables [ i i 21 15 £ k5 41 (16,960) - - - (16,960)
Expected credit loss on other assets HAbE B SR (826) - - = (826)
Provision of expected credit losses on JEWCSRAT B % F K S
due from banks and customers G gt - - (278) - (278)
Provision of expected credit losses for % & Al AR 51 R 2 H At 4 il
other financial assets at amortised cost & /= TH M7 ¥ 5 1R ¢ 5 - - (29,348) - (29,348)
Provision for litigation risks, net AR AL B 18 i A - - (1,907) - (1,907)
Provision for inventories R (13,088) = = = (13,088)
Reversal of provision for inventories 12 B A 3 ) 12,819 = = = 12,819
Depreciation and amortisation Y (121,057) = (21,612) (19,205) (161,873)
Additions to non-current assets REFNEEE 61,864 - 128,993 87 190,944
Net surplus on revaluation of REMERLZ
investment properties BEEH - 9,723 - = 9,723
Unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly comprised dividend F N WANSIL N SRk Y Y=
income from trading portfolio investment and financial assets at fair value A BE B AN FEFEA A 2 A Z
through other comprehensive income, gain or loss on fair value changes in SREEZREIRA - X5 HEHENT
trading portfolio investments and other corporate income and expenses of (B 5 ) 2 Wi 4 S 48 B AN B 2 5 g TR AT Al
the Group’s headquarter which are not directly attributable to the business KBSy B SET I B) 2 A B [ AT A A
activities of any operating segment. Other corporate expenses mainly WA RS o HoA 28 7 52 32 B4 68 R
included employee costs and directors’ remuneration for administrative TIECH W18 B AN K 2 = 357 o

purpose.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s revenues from external customers and its non-current assets
(other than financial assets and deferred tax assets) are divided into the

following geographical areas:

Revenue from

external customers

5 G R )
ARSE A E AN P 2 A K IR B

(4 Al 8 8 T R AL JE I E BR A 4 DA M
[ 1) 7

Non-current assets

% E AR E R R Ik i BY e
2021 2020 2021 2020
S e TR TRAR e e TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THsTT Tt THETT
Hong Kong EoRTE 42,808 35,076 245,563 225,976
PRC H 1,344,064 1,162,732 1,464,976 1,418,524
Switzerland Fri -t 3,250 7,412 459,970 464,890
United Kingdom i 56,735 48,968 10,661 15,184
Liechtenstein Ll 353,731 346,724 694,301 652,561
Others HAth 130,511 173,637 1,247 1,282
1,931,099 1,774,549 2,876,718 2,778,417

The geographical location of revenues from watches and timepieces and
property investments segment are based on the location of customers,
and the geographical location of revenues from banking and financial
businesses segment are based on the location of operations of the cash
generating units (“CGUSs”).

Non-current assets (other than financial assets and deferred tax assets)
include interests in joint ventures, interests in associates, property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and goodwill. For
interest in joint ventures, interest in associates, goodwill and intangible
assets, the geographical location is based on the areas of operation of
CGUs. The geographical location of other non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets.

The Group has a large number of customers and there is no significant
revenue that is more than 10% of the Group’s revenue derived from
specific external customers for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

BBk R E b DA B BB M A
3 I8 DL %5 5 P TE B A YE o T ERAT Bl
SES T MO Ml DA B 45 7 A A6 ([ B
B AR LA ) KRR T TE Ml Ry ME o

VY U (<l AT A N A S I R
Sh) ELAE BT AL A A S AR~ BTGB
FIMEE - M - WS KB~ BeEE
W EE KR - TGS RS - P
TR s RIS ~ T T ST A i LA
B A B A BT AR M 5y E o oAt IR O
Y 5 7 (8% DA T R O TE M B 2 M

AEMEFRL  HE T —F R F
ZFAEF T H =+ HIEE > BT
A H 47 SRR PG AR 4R F A A A 10%
ZERIA o
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REVENUE

The Group is principally engaging in manufacturing and distribution of
watches and timepieces, property investments and banking and financial
businesses.

For banking and financial businesses, revenue mainly comprises net
interest income, net service fees and commission income and trading
income (notes 7(a), 7(b), 7(c) and 7(d)). For non-banking and financial
businesses, revenue mainly represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowance for returns and trade discounts and rental income received
and receivables (note 7(e)).

LN

A A ) A e S Rk K R i Y R
8~ WIS DL T SRAT T 4 26T

LERAT B4 BCERS T = > A EE SR
ST RE - IRBs 2 A I R AR DL K
Lo (Mt 7@) ~ 7(b) ~ 7(c) & 7(d)) °
IR SRAT R B ERS T 5 > WA EZ AR 40
FRiR & R B2 g Frdn s 6 T B S DA &
E s B e AR U A (B EE7(e)) o

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FERTERBZ AT
Net interest and dividend income from banking business (@) SATEEB A B B B WA TR
2021 2020
R AR e Sk 240
HK$’000 HK$°000
TG T
Interest and dividend income from T %) %% YE B e A 2 SR AT SE B
banking business arising from: Z B B BB -
Interest income — due from banks FEMA — HE S8R4T 3K IH 54,792 91,259
Interest income — due from clients FE A — BN & P 3KIH 37,400 25,899
Interest income from mortgage loans i £k 2 A Bl A 22,181 19,240
Interest income from money market papers £ #5135 2248 2 Al Bl A (585) 551
Interest income from financial assets & RE E 2 AR A 21,066 18,963
Dividend income from trading securities BHEEHFZBEIRA 922 -
Negative interest expense on due to clients i % 7 ZIE 2 & ) BB 32 763 819
136,539 156,731
Interest expenses from banking business T %1l % J8 ff i 2k 2 SR AT 3 %
arising from: ZHBHX :
Interest expense on due to banks JRE A R AT R JE 2 1) B B 32 (42,215) (24,437)
Interest expense on due to clients JRE A} 25 5 Rk IE 2 )R B 32 - (3,163)
Negative interest income on due from JRES ERAT I P R I 2
banks and clients =SS ON (160) (1,103)
(42,375) (28,703)
Net interest and dividend income from  $RATZE#H 2 Fl B KB B A
banking business T 94,164 128,028
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7.

REVENUE (Continued) 7. WA @
(b)  Net service fees and commission income from banking (b) SUTEFHZ MRk E LM &WAFHE
business
2021 2020
I et TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt THs T
Service fee and commission income from T %1 4% 8 fif & A2 2 SRAT
banking business arising from: Z s e A WA
Commission income from loans =E- IR EA L ON 6,785 4,215
Brokerage fees FE = 50,703 54,412
Custody account fees IR # 28,703 24,714
Commission on investment advice and 10 gk N A R
asset management 106,952 92,597
Commission income from service fees IR 5 2 A 4 g A 41,413 39,554
Commission income from fiduciary fees A ON 390 413
Commission income from retrocession o R AR A 5,144 4,923
Other commission income oAb AM 5 Y A 47,201 37,173
287,291 258,001
Service fees and commission expenses SRAT S 2 s K
from banking business iE (63,921) (61,007)
Net service fees and commission income 8473 % = IR % % K&
from banking business 1 W A 5 4 223,370 196,994
(¢) Trading income from banking business () SMITEBEZRHWA
2021 2020
RO R R
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt THs 0
Debt instruments 8 T H 25 28
Securities i 25 183 30
Forex and precious metals S K B 4 52,691 40,915
Funds R (16,702) (19,271)
Trading income from banking business 47 ¥ %2 2 H WA 36,197 21,702

e S S A T A I A B )
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7. WA @)
d) EBMEHEZBRA

2021 2020

ZRT 4 R R

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T 0

Service fees and commission income IR 5 2 K AR < Uie A 5,900 10,721

Interest income FE A 330 184

Revenue from financial business SERIEHBEZBRA 6,230 10,905

(e) Revenue from non-banking and financial businesses (e) FHITREMEBLZRA

2021 2020

R SRR

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tkt T 0

Sales of goods e 1,555,114 1,405,812

Rental income FH AU A 16,024 11,108
Revenue from non-banking business FEHAT T I R E B Z WA

and financial businesses 1,571,138 1,416,920
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8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET GAINS OR 8. ol Wi A B i Wt £5 5K s 18 5 AR
LOSSES

2021 2020
I et TR R
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt THs T
(Loss)/gain on disposal of a subsidiary o —HME AR 2
(1) /g (469) 405
Gain on fair value changes in trading portfolio FRITEB LG HAGHEN
investments from non-banking business, net 8- 5 B MR A TR AR 2,290 36,162
Loss on fair value changes in derivative financial ~ JE4R1T 2B T SRl B2
liabilities from non-banking business 8- 5 B s 1R (1,647) =
Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties 1% &4 3£ T 1l 2 &1 5 15 48 12,736 9,723
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment &) 2 ~ R = Kk 2 ez 925 531
Gain on modification of lease B BRIt 7,664 -
Bank and other interest income from non-banking  JF 847 3£ %5 2 $R 17 %
business HAFLE A 1,863 4,222
Dividend income from trading portfolio FRITEB LG HAGHEN
investments from non-banking business B A 11 1,417
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value %/ F-{H 1 A HoAth 2 1 fig A 2
through other comprehensive income SRE EZ BB A 11,594 8,815
Sales of scrap materials JBERL G = 22
Other operating income A 2825 e A 14,992 14,880
Government subsidies (note) B A Bh 4 (B RE) 9,014 21,474
Provision of litigation risks IR A JE g 4% A (21) (1,907)
Provision of expected credit losses for due from  JEWER4T X % 5 2 VE 7 1)
banks and clients IEREY FicEe (593) (278)
Reversal of/(provision of) expected credit losses % f#ff & il A 51 B 22 H: Al 4 it
for other financial assets at amortised cost W TR A S R ]
(#EH) 2,014 (29,348)
Exchange (loss)/gain, net HNEE (F518) i 5 1 48 (19,672) 27,643
Other sundry income, net A A6 TE S T AR 180 4,572
40,881 98,333
Note: Government subsidies mainly comprised of unconditional subsidies received R 5« UGl B 48 T B A0 456 i SR R Al G A

for subsidising the Group’s business. EEHEF MBS -
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FINANCE COSTS FROM NON-BANKING 9. JEMATEBZMBEM
BUSINESS
2021 2020
G- e e e 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T
Interest charged on bank borrowings, bank SRATAE R ~ SRAT 75 S ] HoAtA 15
overdrafts and other borrowings 1B BH 52 65,182 79,456
Margin loan interests = O DS = 109
Interest on lease liabilities iEN=S= R IDSS 2,169 3,391
67,351 82,956

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

10. BR P 45 B wii s 18

BRETASBLRT RS I E H0BR GEA) F3I&IH

RS

2021 2020
- JERE 1 e ke 2
HK$’000 HK$°000
T o0 T

Cost of inventories recognised as expense, Tl w8 F BH S 1 A7 B A - A -
including: 745,224 647,405
— Reversal of provision for inventories — f7 B A A T (18,154) (12,819)
— Provision for inventories — 1 BB 29,325 13,088
Depreciation and amortisation s R 117,887 161,873
— Depreciation for owned assets (note (a)) —HAEENE (K5 () 75,331 102,518
— Depreciation for right-of-use assets (note (a)) ~ — i Fil 1 & 2 47 8% (W5 (a)) 41,820 57,571
— Amortisation of intangible assets (note (b)) — I TE A (P 5E (D)) 736 1,784
Short term lease expenses beR i3 29,050 18,014
Auditor’s remuneration AR 4,900 4,800
Gross rental income RN (16,024) (11,108)
Less: direct operating expenses o HESE R L 2,280 2,080
Net rental income TR 4 AT 3 (13,744) (9,028)
Research and development expenses (note (b)) i 5% A BH %% B % (K} & (b)) 39,711 24,526
Expected credit losses on other assets H A ¥ 2 TE A (S S 1R 786 826
Expected credit losses on trade receivables R W R K TR A B 1R 2,361 16,960
Advertising JE 92,010 140,653
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10.

11.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Depreciation expense of HK$18,241,000 (2020: HK$15,047,000) has
been included in cost of sales from non-banking and financial businesses,
HK$24,902,000 (2020: HK$58,746,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and HK$74,008,000 (2020: HK$86,296,000) in administrative expenses.

(b) Amortisation expenses and research and development expenses had been
included in the administrative expenses.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong profit tax has
been provided for certain subsidiaries within the Group and is calculated at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits (2020: 16.5%). The subsidiaries
established in the PRC are subject to income taxes at tax rates ranging
between 15% and 25% (2020: 15% and 25%). Overseas tax is calculated at
the rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

The Group is also subject to PRC withholding tax at the rate of 5%
(2020: 5%) in respect of dividend income derived from PRC incorporated
company.

10.

11.

Bk Ffr 15 ¢ il 75 48 (0)
EE

(@) I S 18,241,000 # IT (& A 4E ¢
15,047,000 #5 75) B 5FA JEERAT K a2 il 2E
W5 2 845 A ~ 24,902,000 76 (% =
A 1 58,746,000 5 0) 1A 84 B K 43 8
% i LA % 74,008,000 #5 I (=& AR
86,296,000 T ) i A AT ELER ] o

(b) BRSPS DL R T K B B S R AAT
B2 o

Fie 153 Bt BA X

BE X FRZFZRIE A
=+—HI1EFEE ¢%@E%E$W%A
Al EHR A WS RIS B M > MR TR BL
I F) 16.5% (—F “F4F : 16.5%) w5 - it
w8 7 22 fi S A R ZEHE A T 15% % 25%
(T F AR 159 % 25%) Z FT 15 4%
Bl o V3 5B TE Fi A B w3 [ 20 A B R
ﬁ o

ZF%@JT?JE LA A BRI A R 2
B AFERE F50% (. FAE : 5%) #%
x*li‘ﬁ?ﬂﬁé

2021 2020
—® 4R SR RAR
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt TH 7T
Current tax for the year AT A B I Fod T
Hong Kong Fits 1,186 577
PRC G 18,427 24,883
Liechtenstein B 3 H A 12,290 6,767
Switzerland Fiy 1 1,497 1,527
Over-provision in respect of prior years b — R R R A
Hong Kong e (1,140) =
Deferred tax for the year AF [A] 2 4iE Fod TH (1,156) (8,578)
Total income tax expense Jr 154 BA = 4 AE 31,104 25,176
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting loss at

11. FrfaBEB =2 ()

T A B ARG 2 P AR B SC B 4R

applicable tax rates: Z R
2021 2020
I St TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG T
Loss before income tax W5 ST 15 5t i e 4R (74,272) (133,653)
Tax on loss before income tax, calculated at % T 45 4 Hil s 18 2 Bl JE
the rates applicable to the tax jurisdictions (AR AR BB TS v BE A [
concerned BT 2 BREHE) (12,959) (23,071)
Tax effect of non-taxable income W ZE B U 2 B 5 2 (7,251) (11,087)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ST 06 BH S 2 B A s 13,502 8,893
Effect of change in tax rate (note) Bl R0 2 5 2 () = (7,960)
Over-provision in respect of prior year b A R R A (1,140) =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised o e R B T i 48 2 B S i 38,952 58,401
JIr #5854 B 52 A8 A 31,104 25,176

Total income tax expense

Note: The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries of the Group in Switzerland has
changed from 19.8% to 15% with effective from 1 January 2020.

H A o

e R N SY 1 ol < /N i D =
19.8% %4 5 £ 15% >

SE A
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12. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

@)

ek i B R B AR P AT PR )

12. B — R 2 v

In November 2021, the Group has disposed the entire shares (@)
of Bendura Fund Management Alpha AG at CHF2,000,000
(equivalent to HK$17,084,000) to a related company, which is
controlled by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a director of the Company.
The Group recognised a loss on disposal of approximately
HK$469,000. Details of the Group’s loss on disposal of Bendura
Fund Management Alpha AG for the year ended 31 December 2021

were set out as follows:

W_EF_Z—FE+—H > AEH
LA 2,000,000 Hi -+ i BB (A &
17,084,000 ## 7T) ] — [A] BH 7 2\ &)
(H AR 2 B =8 = B RE S A= e ) i
£ Bendura Fund Management Alpha
AG Z 2B o 752 B ERR i 2
JEi 45 #7 469,000 5 7T © A7 [ A% £ F i
BE_F_ 4+ -H=t—HIt
4F J& £ Bendura Fund Management
Alpha AG 2 fG B FF IG5 an T

HK$’000
Tt
Net assets disposed of: B R E
Due from banks JRE Wi BRAT BRI 20,003
Other assets HAh 5 12,406
Other liabilities HoAh & i (14,112)
18,297
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal A B 15 Ml O 1 W frti fh (744)
17,553
Less: proceeds from disposal B T e ROE (17,084)
Loss on disposal HEZ EH 469
HK$’000
T o0
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: B A AR 2 B AR AR
Cash consideration received e B < AUE 17,084
Net cash inflow for the year ended R -_EX - —9F+=-H=1+—H
31 December 2021 AR 2 Ui A A 17,084
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12. W& — 8 A\

On 4 May 2020, the Group redeemed 3,840 shares of Metasequoia (b)

Investment Fund SPC — Global Opportunities Fund SP for
USD5,907,000 (equivalents to HK$45,794,000). The Group
recognised a gain on disposal of approximately HK$405,000.
Details of the Group’s gain on disposal of Metasequoia Investment
Fund SPC — Global Opportunities Fund SP for the year ended 31

December 2020 were set out as follows:

H

TG

AR FAERH I H 5 A i
KIS E A — IRk e I &
3,840 i i 4y » £t 1E £ 5,907,000 3
(FH & Jix 45,794,000 # JT) © A< 4R
¥ Ffe 8 B i 35 47 405,000 6 T -
HEAAREFNRE F FEL
= — H IR K

4 — BR R o B 2 A R E A A

mr :
HK$°000
THE T
Net assets disposed of: B T E R E
Trading portfolio investments ToAARE 60,879
Cash and deposits B K AT 55,992
Other assets Hofth & 19,126
Other liabilities HoAh & i (21,638)
114,359
Non-controlling interests IEFE e HE 2 (54,638)
59,721
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal T LB 15 il O 1 £t (405)
59,316
Less: proceeds from disposal Bk BT S ROE (45,794)
Fair value of trading portfolio investments REZGHHEREZAFE
retained (13,927)
Gain on disposal B 2 A (405)
HK$°000
THsTT
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: o B E AR 2 B U R A
Cash consideration received E B 4 AR 45,794
Less: cash and deposits disposed of W T B 2 Bl AR (55,992)

Net cash outflow for the year ended
31 December 2020

WE-F-FF A=+

S J3E 2 B 4 AR

H 1k
(10,198)




225

CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED

e S S A T A I A B )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{%F —F ——4F+ = +—H L4

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to owners

of the Company are based on the following data:

it B
EHARBRBWE T = =)

Zt—HIRFERA R (SR ZF A
&) -

(5309 F i

A R N A B A T v e 1R T
HR4E LT W st

2021 2020
TR AR CE R
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt THs T
Loss i 15
Loss attributable to owners of the Company 715 45 i 55 A % 48 v 1 48 T 1k 9% 2
for the purpose of calculating basic and N/NCIE R EWN A Y
diluted loss per share (100,907) (169,233)
2021 2020
TR TR CE R
Number Number
of shares of shares
Bt ¥ H Ji&t % H
’000 000
T3 T
Number of shares Jit % H
Weighted average number of shares for the #1334 i 3k A% K 4 fis 18 For Ak 9% 2.
purpose of calculating basic and diluted JIRE T34 R 4
loss per share 4,351,889 4,351,889

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share, as the
Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020.

HRAEBMREE T R R E
AR H = b H R A A VA
A > ST A v A 5 B P R AR T 4 A
[ -
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

151

15.2

15. @ B 6 A b 52 (B9 4 )

Employee benefit expense 15.1 1@ B A B %
2021 2020
R TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG T U T
Wages and salaries T R ¥4 616,514 544,917
Pension costs BAR G AR 70,011 69,580
686,525 614,497
Employee costs, including directors’ emoluments, of g B A (6245 25 55 M <5) 26,216,000
HK$26,216,000 (2020: HK$54,964,000) has been included VI (T T4 1 54,964,000 IT)
in cost of sales from non-banking and financial businesses, ELFE A R SRAT B 4 il ZE TS 2 8 B AR
HK$280,928,000 (2020: HK$160,654,000) in selling 7 ~ 280,928,000 TG (% " AF -
and distribution expenses and HK$379,381,000 (2020: 160,654,000 70) ELFIA S [ 7612
HIK$398,879,000) in administrative expenses. JA LA K% 379,381,000%5 7T (28 —FRA4F
398,879,000 78) £ FHAATEE »
Defined benefit pension plans 15.2 & BB Pk 4 8 At 3
2021 2020
R TR FAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T o0 T
Net defined benefit obligations E FEAR A TAT T A 68,883 113,354

Net defined benefit liability has been included in “other liabilities”
(see note 39) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The defined benefit pension plans are primarily arising from
Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik and its subsidiaries (together the “Eterna
Group”), Montres Corum Sarl and its subsidiaries (together the
“Corum Group”), Bendura Bank AG and its subsidiaries (the
“Bendura Group”), and also Ernest Borel Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Ernest Borel Group”). The Group makes
contributions to the defined benefit pension plans that provide
post-retirement benefits for employees upon retirement. Under
the schemes, the employees in Switzerland and Liechtenstein are
entitled to retirement benefits based on the plan assets accumulated
on attainment of the retirement age and a fixed annual rate. Since
there is potential down-side risk for the employer to pay additional
contributions in case the plan has a deficit, plans in Switzerland and
Liechtenstein are classified as defined benefit pension plans.

SRR A AL B R A SR A
JRVLE [ At £ 65 ] (LB RE39) TH T »

FEREIR IR G AR A 5T £ 52K [ Eterna
AG Uhrenfabrik & i J& 23 5] (55 1%
[#i4E2E4EE ) ~ Montres Corum Sarl
FHEMEAR (G EwEm]) &
HuERAT A5 RS R B FL B A ]
(T 5 0 0 ] J) D J A4 ipl I 42 15 A KR
ST R H A R (MK BEEEE ) o
A £ (5] [7) 78 AR AR AR G AR A T EIAE
LR > B R B R AR R 4R (LR AR
EA o ARAEFEH > FG ok & A+
BAR Bl A RMAE A > TR
BRI AR 5 R [ 28 4 2R 7 BT 2t
B T o R — BLEtE R
5o {E E2H AT B IMIL R
TEAR BN > WOER 1 B S s
w50 2 5 BB AR AR A T
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 15. 1@ B & A B 2 (6 45 3% i 4)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (480

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued) 15.2 EHB W E&mA G B ()

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation on the Eterna Group
were carried out at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by Patrick Bonadei
and Victoria Steib, a member of the Swiss Associate of Actuaries in
Switzerland, using the projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
defined benefit obligations on the Corum Group were carried out
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by Nicolas Colozier, a member of
the Swiss Associate of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected
unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
defined benefit obligations on the Bendura Group were carried out
at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by AXA Pension Solutions AG, a
member of Swiss Associate of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the
projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the
defined benefit obligations on the Ernest Borel Group were carried
out at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by Swiss Life Pension Services
AG, a member of the Swiss Associate of Actuaries in Switzerland,
using the projected unit credit method.

There were no contributions forfeited by the Group on behalf of its
employees who leave the MPF Scheme (as the case may be).

(@ The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group’s obligation in

o AP FELE [J] 5T B K B 2 R B SRS
AL E K FEAR A AT 2 BUE TS
Fi - Swiss Associate of Actuaries 2 & £
Patrick Bonadei /% Victoria Steib it —. %
TR CECREF A =+—H
{553 R FEL S BE AL A BT AT o

H AR Rl B B 2 o oL RS
At (B M 78 A8 A 35 4T 5 H Hi - Swiss
Associate of Actuaries 2 € £ Nicolas
Colozier A =% = —4F Jp =& — R4
T H = B E A AR
IRHEAT o

CREUESEES K-yl & A
SR E K BEAR A AR S d g
Swiss Associate of Actuaries Z & E AXA
Pension Solutions AG it — & ——4F &
SRR H = B
AT AR IREAT o

MR % A T A 2 b M ST AL
A (B S 72 BEAE A B AT T He iy 1 Swiss
Associate of Actuaries Z & B Swiss Life
Pension Services AG it & ——4F ]
T AR f = A H i FE
AR IREAT o

AR AR AR e wt B Ao
B R (P DM E)

() FHAZREMBRILER AL
P A L E AR A R B SR P

respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows: FEAEZ BEEIT -
2021 2020
R4 TR R
HK$°000 HK$°000
TG T

Present value of defined benefit JERAAR R EAL BE

obligations 478,817 563,407
Fair value of plan assets FT ) E E A E (409,934) (450,053)
Net liability arising from defined EFRAMEAEEEZ

benefit obligations A 68,883 113,354
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

(b) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations for both the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

15.

D B 6 A B 32 (0035 2 35 <)

(%)

15.2 5 HUR o 4 i R0 0 (480
(0 WE-F - FR-F %
A = — B R
IS A 4 B (5

AR :

2021 2020

I St TR R

HK$’000 HK$°000

TG T

At 1 January w—H—H 563,407 509,891
Current service costs B IR MR 5 e A= 36,135 36,069
Past service costs i RS A (94) (1,381)

Interest cost FILE A 833 1,199
Actuarial (gains)/loss K8 (We2s) k518 (31,481) (7,830)
Benefits paid e A 48 A1 (75,703) (35,680)

Contribution by plan participants w3 2 B {1 3K 12,844 14,100

Exchange realignment [ 52, 3 % (27,124) 47,039

At 31 December Rt+—_H=+—H 478,817 563,407
(¢)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both the () BRE_F_—FN T LA

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

T H = B 1k AR
FHHE A A B IR

2021 2020

R TR FAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T o0 T

At 1 January w—H—H 450,053 418,983
Interest income FLE A 918 637
Return on plan assets w3 E 2 m] R 16,428 (4,228)
Contributions by the employers 1§ = ft 3k 22,545 18,328
Contributions by plan participants w3 2 B K 12,844 14,112
Benefit paid EERE L (75,703) (35,680)
Exchange realignment [P 5, 7 (17,151) 37,901
At 31 December wtr=H=1+—H 409,934 450,053




229

CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED

e S S A T A I A B )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #{%F —F ——4F+ = +—H L4

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

15.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

(d)

D B 6 A P 32 (B0 35 2 35 <)

(%)

15.2 5 #UB P 4 1 At 8 (70)
(d)

HRZ S T AR A R AR 4

HK$35,250,000) has been included in the administrative

expenses. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit
obligation is included in other comprehensive income.

comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit TH AR N FERR 2 RN
plans are as follows:
2021 2020
I et TR R
HK$°000 HK$’000
T 0 THs T
Service cost: JIR 5 A
Current service costs B IR MR 5 e A= 36,135 36,069
Past services costs i RS A (94) (1,381)
Net interest expense FILEL B S5 AR (85) 562
Components of defined benefit costs /i % 1] 2 5 15 = e 52
recognised in profit or loss E AR A A 2
AR 35,956 35,250
Remeasurement on the net defined R R AR R AT
benefit obligations: A
Return on plan assets w3 E 2 R 16,428 (4,228)
Actuarial gains/(losses) KA, (kG18) 31,481 7,830
Deferred tax arising on T R FEAR A AT
remeasurement of the net defined TR 2 IR AE B IH
benefit liability (5,394) 44
Components of defined benefit A At A TH A PR RR
costs recognised in other JE FEAR A LA 22 41 A
comprehensive income, net o> 42,515 3,646
The defined benefit cost of HK$35,956,000 (2020: 7E R4 A B AR 35,956,000 5 76

(& &4 1 35,250,000 its

Jt) BRFATTECE

o BT Rf

B E B A AL W A A

M AT YA
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D B 6 A B 32 (0035 2 35 <)
(#0)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 15.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 5 #UB P 4 4 A 8 (70)
T ¥ ot SR R B N - fE

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)
(e)  The major categories of the fair value of the plan assets at the (e)

end of reporting period are as follows: ZEBEFRIT
2021 2020
=
HK$’000 HK$’000
R RV THTT
Equity instruments A TR 114,914 109,208
Debt instruments s LH 152,396 165,336
Properties /S 107,551 116,842
Commodities instruments P L 2,964 3,048
Assets from reinsurance R G 7,722 7,942
Hedge funds ERLIE S 13,081 14,109
Cash B4 10,726 33,021
Other HoAth 580 547
409,934 450,053

The fair values of the above equity and debt instruments
are determined based on quoted market prices in active
markets whereas the fair value of properties, commodities
instruments, assets from reinsurance and hedge funds are not
based on quoted market prices in active markets.

b A RAGH TR 2 A TFE
i BT 2 TR E R E
M4 ~ P TR - BT RER
T B AR 2 AR FE
i B B 2 IR E ROE -

(f)  The principal assumption used for the purpose of the actuarial M FARRERMEE N FER
valuations was as follows: SR
2021 2020
= =t “ECRE

Discount rate(s)
Expected rate(s) of salary increase

GBS
TE I 2 4 R

0.10%-0.70%
0.1%-1.0%

0.10%-0.20%
0.1%-1.0%
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

(9)

Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit pension plans

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the
defined benefit obligations are discount rate and expected
salary rate of increase. The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

. If the discount rate is 50 basis points higher/(lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$22,482 (2020: HK$43,803,000)/increase by
HK$38,490 (2020: HK$82,685,000).

. If the expected salary rate of increase/(decreases) by
50 basis points, the defined benefit obligations would
increase by HK$11,463 (2020: HK$8,267,000)/
decrease by HK$367,000 (2020: HK$7,731,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,
the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied
in calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

15. @ B 6 A b 52 (B9 3 &)

(%)

15.2 5 #UB P 4 1 At 8 (70)

()]

TE B PR 4 A ) w2 URR
B 53 #r

fifE 5 S BER M AT 2 T ZOR
BB R 2y Y B R R TR A
B LR o N S0 U A
T 4% E A A AR R PR S
SEIRF > R R BT A A B AR

R HIL A RE A T8 T i

. filg B 3R E T (R
[%) 50 %= 2 > A AR
F] 5 AT % Wk 2 22,482
W (& ZFF
43,803,000 #:7C) ¥
38,490 (ZE - F
4E : 82,685,000 5 7C) ©

. i TE A 357 4 144 G L 2% 3
/(3 250 {1 2 2
E B AR I AT % 8 om
11,4635 0 (& &
418,267,000 9 7T) I
367,000 JC( & —
FL4E 17,731,000 #57T) ©

L B3 T B A
SRR B 2 EEERIL -
IR B 5 T B3R T A 1
i - [t 2 SR A AT ML
W -

BeAh o i A R S A 2 B
B> TR R A B A AT
2 B FECB BE LA BR D7
WA RBR &5 BB IR DL
R o T e R E AR A AR
FHE BT E AR o

8 A AR R DA 52 SO 4y
W 2 T7 35 I Ml MR e 5 ) -
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16. 3 4 5 AR P T 4
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
16.1 Directors’ emoluments 16.1 #HFEM &
Details of emoluments of the directors of the Company in AR A s ) B A W S
connection with the management of affairs of the Company and its ZARN R E R 2 RS
subsidiaries are set out below:
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
Directors’ and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
Wik > EEW Bk &
EHE KB WA w3 4t 5% At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#x T T T
2021 —F 4
Executive directors HATES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung R - 2,115 18 2,133
Mr. Shang Jianguang (note (iii)) 74 #6554 (Kl &E (i) - 9,219 96 9,315
Mr. Shi Tao AiELE - 1,690 18 1,708
Mr. Lam Toi Man (note (iv))  ARAASCIEAE (BEGE (iv)) - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Bi Bo Rk sk - 1,456 18 1,474
Ms. Sit Lai Hei [FZ 0 - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Hon Hau Wong WA - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Teguh Halim Teguh Halim 5¢ 4 - 4,279 151 4,430
Mr. Siu Chun Wa (note (v)) AR ST A (I 5E (v) = = = =
Mr. Hao Xiaohui (note (vi)) HBREE M S A= (I 5E (vi)) - - - -
Independent non-executive  MrJEHATE S
directors
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael &l % {8 fifi + 200 = = 200
Mr. Zhang Bin e ek 200 - - 200
Mr. Li Ziging (note (vii)) 2T IAEA: (B RE (vid)) 200 - = 200
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk  H7& (i JE 24 (Bt 3T (viii)) 200 = - 200
(note (viii))
800 23,049 855 24,204
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16 ¥ 3 4 B v AR A PR I 4 ()
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
16.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 16.1 HEFEM 4 ()
Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
Directors’ and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
Fra o Al LS
FHEM S K EWEF aH & itk M5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THE T R P T T T T
2020 —RIFE
Executive directors HiwHE
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung HEFE A = 2,025 18 2,043
Mr. Shang Jianguang (note (iii)) ¥ &% S5 48 (K &k (i) = 4571 96 4,667
Mr. Shi Tao VaR: Y = 1,612 18 1,630
Mr. Lam Toi Man (note (iv)) ARSI (BE5E (iv)) = 1,364 18 1,382
Mr. Bi Bo e - 1,389 18 1,407
Ms. Sit Lai Hei RERI 4+ - 1,364 18 1,382
Mr. Hon Hau Wong [ E SR = 1,364 18 1,382
Mr. Teguh Halim Teguh Halim 552k = 4,240 148 4,388

Independent non-executive M JEHLAT E

directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa (note (ix)) #5234 (3L (ix)) 190 = = 190
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael i & f#: i -+ 151 = = 151
Mr. Zhang Bin TR e 151 = = 151
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher Rudolf Heinrich Escher 191 - - 191
(note (x)) FErE (B EE (X))
Mr. Li Ziging (note (vii)) S (R &E (vii) 31 - - 31
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk  H 7RS4 (B (viii) 31 = = 31
(note (viii))

745 17,929 352 19,026
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

Except for Mr. Teguh Halim, there was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any remunerations during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). Mr. Teguh Halim waived his
remuneration on the directorship of subsidiaries of HK$50,000 (2020:
Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed in the above table, the Group also provided a
quarter to the executive director, Mr. Shi Tao at HK$10,000 monthly
rental for the year ended 31 December 2020. The lease arrangement
has been terminated on 31 October 2020.

Mr. Shang Jianguang has resigned as chief executive officer and
executive director with the effect from 5 January 2022.

Mr. Lam Toi Man has resigned as executive director with the effect
from 5 January 2022.

Mr. Siu Chun Wa has been appointed as co-chief executive officer
and executive director with the effect from 5 January 2022.

Mr. Hao Xiaohui has been appointed as co-chief executive officer and
executive director with the effect from 5 January 2022.

Mr. Li Ziging has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 6 November 2020.

Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 6 November
2020.

Mr. Fung Tze Wa has resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 September 2020.

Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher has resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 1 September
2020.

16. F B Ko AE B & s

16.1 #HM & (4D

B

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

% Teguh Halim Je 424 » 0% — %
A= HIREE
SIf: 06 S 4 4 [ AT AT P
G WP (D AR ) o
EoECAEF A= —HIE
4% > Teguh Halim 954 it 3£ H %
AT Bt 8§ 2 =) # 95 2 1 4 50,000 i
TC (R R ) o

B bRk #% & 4h > E T
THEF A= —HIEEE > &
45 I8 2 AT B S T S AR R
— i 15 ¥ > H A £ 10,000 % IT ©
P EHSRO R —F FFE A
=t+—H#%lk -

O e A B B AEAT BUBBGIRBL
fTEHE A _F__HF—HAHH
AR o

MASCEAE T BHERATES > B
ZE A —H R HBAER -

R A 2 51 A L A 2 I AT B
MHESRPUTESR > A F
—HILH®AER

0 DB HAf 51 A 48 2 £ /0 Wik e 7 B
RMBSHATESR B T4
—HIEHRAER -

2P B RAT AR A
B EPTESR . g oF FF
+— AN B -

HRE I ECERERARNFZ
WAL EHATE S > B S F R
T AN HARAER -

W T3 SE L CLRHE AR A W) Z 5T
FPATES - B -F FEIA
— HH AR -

Rudolf Heinrich Escher 2¢4E E BT
ANFEZBSLIERATES > A
T RAENH— HAEER -
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16.
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.2 Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two (2020: two) directors, details of whose remuneration
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 16.1. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining three (2020: three) non-director,
highest paid individuals of the Group for the year are as follows:

HREME S REBEMWNE @)

162 héakmBH AL
AR AR 4 e N S
WB (CF R H4) Ef s
S5 T 4 17 S A B s 16,0 197 871 43
Bre FNARLEMG N =4 (ZF
FTAE : = 4) FEE B H A LBE
FEIBLNR

2021 2020

ZRT TR TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt TG

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind B~ RS R E AR A 8,834 13,958
Contribution to pension scheme AR R4 T ) A K 110 938
8,944 14,896

The emoluments of non-director highest paid individuals were
within following bands:

FEFREHALZHENTLUT
Bl

2021 2020

TR TR TR

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

N 1 N

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 #5 7t % 3,000,000 #5 7T 2 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 # 7t % 3,500,000 # 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 # 7t % 4,500,000 # 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 # 7T %% 5,000,000 # 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 #5 7t % 6,000,000 #5 7T - 1
8 8

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or the three
(2020: three) highest paid employee(s) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2020:
nil).

A FERER =4 (CFF
M =) R B AT 1R 5
T TR I A A 48 B 1 2 3% I - 5k
VE By BB A (8 (% 4R - JE) o
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16. 3 4 K AR A B N 4 (a0
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
16.3 Emoluments to members of senior management 16.3 i A4 PHL L P
The emoluments to members of senior management (excluding the = SR TR AR < O 45 2R
remunerations to directors which have been disclosed in note 16.1 b SCK R 16.1 B BR 2 G /T
above) were within the following bands: LR85
2021 2020
SR R R
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AN# A8
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7t £ 2,000,000 #5 JG
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 JT £ 2,500,000 # JG 2 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 # 7T £ 5,000,000 #5 7C -
3 8
17. CASH AND DEPOSITS 17. B& Rk #%
2021 2020
B R R
HK$’000 HK$°000
TG THETT
Cash and bank balances (note (a) and (b)) B R SRAT 45 6% (M 5E (@) 22 (b)) 107,175 303,644
Cash held on behalf of clients (note (c)) REF A 2 B4 (5L () 122,339 110,985
Sight deposits with central banks (note (d)) SR 47 2 I HI47 3k (Kt 5% (d)) 6,302,454 5,198,016
6,531,968 5,612,645
Cash and deposits as per above b SCH g KR 6,531,968 5,612,645
Less: Cash held on behalf of clients (note (c)) ¥k : & F fifi 2 Bl (F5E (c) (122,339) (110,985)
Restricted bank deposits % BRI $RAT A7 2K = (1,354)
Cash and deposits for the purpose of MERBERER
consolidated statement of cash flows & 2 Bl AT 6,409,629 5,500,306
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17. CASH AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Notes:

@

(b)

@

©)

Cash at bank earns interest at the floating rates based on the daily bank
deposits rates.

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group are the amount of
approximately HK$31,792,000 (2020: HK$119,402,000) denominated
in RMB which are placed with the banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB into
foreign currencies through the banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

In respect of the Group’s financial business of securities dealing, the Group
maintains segregated trusts accounts with authorised financial institutions
to hold client’s monies. The Group classifies clients’ monies under cash
and deposits in the consolidated statement of financial position and has
recognised the corresponding balances due to cash and margin clients
separately under trade payables (note 33) on the grounds that the Group is
liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients” monies and does not have a
currently enforceable right to offset those payables with the deposits placed.

These balances with central banks represent sight deposits placed by the
Bendura Group and they can be withdrawn immediately without any
restrictions.

As at 31 December 2021, cash and deposits of HK$6,449,487,000 (2020:
HK$5,338,687,000) are attributable to banking and financial businesses.

17. B& KRG 40

b -

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

®

SRATB & 415 B SRAT A KA R FH 2 77
B -

A4 E B & KR AT A5 R A TS 2 B
#131,792,000% JC (= F = F4F ¢
119,402,000 75) A RMEFHEAAR P
ZERATZ B 0 AR B R A
A B o AR R B B A A1 T A B % &
[~ 5 B S Ao B4 B 2 > AS 4R [ W] 7B
A REAETT A ZE 5 22 SRAT A N R
S Ay K o

WAL BB B W2 EMER TS A%
VB A < AR 8 B e 8 S (5 E AR P
DAFEA % 5 R IH o A 52 B R 5 BB IR
YLK A 3 5 BRI 0 2 B e A
A AR EL IR 5 S AT AT R R A
FRAT:A] 80 B T 2 B T 0 2 B A M
T & BB THEZF 2 Bla KR
A4 2 AHEAS B (K 3k 33) - HA S @B
I3 Y07 8 T, o AL AT 2 AR Bl H T A
AR DA RS A IR A R R

%S U ERAT A5 BR AR T M4 [ BT A7
T 7 > T YR R BT A o] PR o)

REF-—F+H=1+—H > Bl&X
A7 #6,449,487,000% TC (=% = & 4F
5,338,687,000 %5 70) T2k [ $R47 Je 4 il 2
W e
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18. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS

18. MEWCERAT K% P kA

2021 2020

TR TR R

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T

Due from clients — mortgage loans JRE R % Pk I — e 4 R 1,969,124 1,476,436

Due from clients — other JREMS %5 5 K I — oAt 1,109,003 994,955
Valuation adjustments for default risk TR A JRUS A (B T (B 5E (b))

(note (b)) (9,408) (8,166)
Total due from clients JE WL & 7 K JH AR AR 3,068,719 2,463,225
Due from banks on a daily basis JREUS ERAT H 8 3K 1,830,121 5,229,597
Due from banks other claims JRE S SR AT HoAth PR 2R 83,218 107,966
Due from banks — precious metals JRE S ERAT AR I — 5 4 JE 121,114 130,055
Valuation adjustments for default risk TR A JRU A (B T (B 5E (b))

(note (b)) (263) (1,358)
Total due from banks JRE W B AT K JH ARAR 2,034,190 5,466,260

Notes: 21
(@  Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for due from banks and clients are as (@)  MEMERAT Ko % 5 K VE AR R TH (B 2 SR AN
follow: B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BB oM B 3B e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SR Tt SR SR
As at 1 January 2020 W oEEFE—H—H 6,943,986 - 3,730 6,947,716
New financial assets originated, JRH T A E 1
net of amount derecognised R 4 1E il R 2 BE 212,778 = - 212,778
Amounts written-off g 4 - - (1,797) (1,797)
Exchange realignment E 52, 3 % 650,028 = 229 650,257
As at 31 December 2020 and W EZREF A
1 January 2021 =t+—HEK
—E— 4
—H—H 7,806,792 - 2,162 7,808,954
New financial assets originated, JE BT R A R EE - 4
net of amount derecognised o 4 1 e R 4 A (2,459,610) - - (2,459,610)
Amounts written-off T < - - (185) (185)
Exchange realignment [iFE 5, 5% & (357,633) - (60) (357,693)
31 December 2021 W_FE A
=t+—H 4,989,549 - 1,917 4,991,466
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18. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS (Continued) 18. MEWCERAT K% P K E ()
Notes: (Continued) FERE ()
(b)  Movements in the expected credit losses in respect of due from banks and (b)  FEUERAT KT OE 2 TG SR A
clients are as follows: BnE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
IR B 2R B IR B #ast
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THs T THs T RPN T
Balance at 1 January 2020 W TE—]—H
2 HER 6,475 - 3,730 10,205
Changes in valuation adjustments & 44 &5 £ (£ 74 44 5 )
for default risks 278 - - 278
Amounts written-off 8 < - - (1,797) (1,797)
Exchange realignment T 54, 54 609 - 229 838
Balance at 31 December 2020 and it & — &4+ A
1 January 2021 =t—Hk
—F_—4E—H—H
Z R 7,362 - 2,162 9,524
Changes in valuation adjustments 7 47 &\ (B 78 %% 5 B
for default risks 593 - - 593
Amounts written-off bRk - - (185) (185)
Exchange realignment T 52, 54 (201) - (60) (261)
Balance at 31 December 2021 AT —4FE+TH
=+—H2Z& % 7,754 - 1,917 9,671
(c)  Non-performing loans () AREXK
No interest income impact from non-performing loans was recognised for the BE_Z R _F_FF£+_H
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. =+ —HILFE > BMERE R R ENE

FEZ R B A 2 -
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19. TRADING PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

B

S 85 T e B

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % —F ——4F+ ] =+ —H IL4FE

19. REMEGRE

2021 2020
—R SRR
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T
Equity instruments Je A% T2 A
Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong at % i1 {E A & #s BT 2 A T H.
market value 626 649
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong % 17 {EL A & ik 55 41 B 2
at market value A TH 3,944 4522
Total equity instrument JBeAS T H 48 %5 4,570 5171
Debt instruments fEH%TH
Unlisted debt instruments of financial SRR JE BT ER TR
institutions 7,234 12,938
Total debt instruments &% T H A% 7,234 12,938
Investment fund units V2@ TN A
Unlisted investment fund units EI S T < e KA 67,780 55,843
Total investment fund units P& 5L 4 AL A 67,780 55,843
Investment in other financial products H i 4> il g B 6,546 6,358
Total trading portfolio investments R YA E AE 86,130 80,310
The investments under trade portfolio investments are held for trading BEET 2 RE R AERE M

purposes.

5

Fair value of the listed equity instruments have been determined by
reference to their quoted market prices at the reporting date in an active
market. Fair value of the listed trading portfolio investments is Level 1
recurring fair value measurement.

Fair value of unlisted debt instruments have been determined using
significant inputs, which are market observable, directly or indirectly. The
fair value of the unlisted debt investments is Level 2 recurring fair value
measurement.

The fair value of certain unlisted investment funds is Level 2 recurring fair
value measurement while the fair value of remaining unlisted investment
funds is Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. The details of
assessment are set out in note 49.9 to the consolidated financial statements.

EM A TRZ A VETI RS % R
I 7 15 8 T 45 B il R A DA S o Tl

%QEAEQZ/\yﬁE%42&2(<( i/\
qzﬁﬂ'i °

e b TR BB A SPELTS ) T B
T H2 AR T 35 5 1) B R A BB o - 9F
T R B B T S R
%ﬁﬂ'% °

T LA RERES A TEE S R
WA TERNE > AR N LR EES
HIATAEE 56 = RS H WA TERHE - 5F
e R4 A I HS IR R Mt 5k 49.9 »
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19.

20.

TRADING PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS (Continued) 19. REHAGHE @)
Other financial products are referring to the insurance policy entered by the A 465 S e AR AR B (R o (R
Group. The fair value of investments in insurance policies are determined B PE H AR B A m) 88 i B4 AR AR
based on the account value as stated in cash surrender value statements B R T 7R o LAt B EE T A S FHE
issued by insurers. Fair value of other financial products is Level 2 TS R E A AR o
recurring fair value measurement.
There is no transfer under the fair value hierarchy classification for the BE _EF - —FRZFRFET N
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. = — B R > A A SR S A
o
The fair value gain during the year was amounted to HK$2,290,000(2020: AR FE 22 N VB 5 4% 2,290,000 95 78 (-
HK$36,162,000), which has been recognised in the consolidated statement FFAF 1 36,162,000 0) > EARE
of comprehensive income as “other ordinary income and other net gains or EZ T A=A IEEEZEAES
losses™ (note 8) for the year ended 31 December 2021. THT MSC A 35 TR HE 8 5 A T8 e A B H A
i 2 B 1R AR | (B 5E8) o
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. AP AR 2B A Z
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 il ¥
2021 2020
R AR TR R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
3 Tt THs T
Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong WA B A T H (a)
(note (a)) (KH3E () 350,837 333,207
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong i & s 5i 4h b Tl 2 A (b)
(note (b)) T H (H3E (b)) 147,133 131,636
Unlisted equity investments I b A 6,147 5,951
504,117 470,794

The Group designated its listed equity instruments in or outside Hong
Kong and unlisted equity investments at FVOCI as below, as those
investments are held for strategic purposes.

ASSR % 51 77 2OH H i A B A B A
Z WA TR K IE A G2 5
AR A BT - R 2 3% 55
B TR B A -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

@)

(b)

As at 31 December 2021, the listed equity investments in Hong
Kong represented 14.76% (2020: 14.76%) equity interest in Min
Xin Holdings Limited (“Min Xin Shares”). As at 31 December
2021, the Group held 88,150,000 (2020: 88,150,000) Min Xin
Shares. A dividend income totalling HK$8,815,000 (2020:
HK$8,815,000) was recognised by the Group in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Particulars of the Group’s investments in Min Xin Shares are as
follows:

20. A PFHEFIARMBERIBEAZ
4 VB B ()
@ RoF-—FEFZA=Et—H R

Tt b T 2 AR 18 45 A [ £ 4
HIRA T Z14.76% (% A4
14.76% ) JCHE ([R5 B M ]) o i —
Eo—HE+A=+—H  AEH
5 49 88,150,000 fft (% . F 4 ¢
88,150,000 /i) [ {5 e 3 o A< 4E [l i
#HgE_F-—4F+ZA=1+—HIt
AR 2 AR A T A R I 18 25 TE R
BB de A & 3£8,815,000 5 T (&
TURAE : 8,815,000 U6) o

AL FA B AR O BOERE TR

Percentage

of ownership

Number of interest

Country of Particulars of issued shares held attributable

Name incorporation shares held by the Group to the Group

7 42 [ JE A

LM R AR

e LRI WATER Ji ¥ B 8847 1B 4 AR J& i H [ipid:a

Min Xin Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 88,150,000 14.76%
) 5 5 A BR A ] i Eegiiliie

The listed equity investment at fair value of HK$147,133,000
(2020: HK$131,636,000) represented the investment in Citychamp
Dartong Company Limited (referred to “Dartong” and its shares
referred to as the “Dartong Shares”). During the year, dividend
income of RMBO.7 per 10 shares totalling HK$2,779,000 (2020:
Nil) is recognised by the Group in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau Wong, the executive directors of
the Company are also the executive directors of Dartong. Dartong
is owned as to approximately 33.95% (2020: 33.95%) by Fujian
Fengrong Investment Company Limited (“Fengrong”). Ms. Sit Lai
Hei and Ms. Lu Xiaojun are the daughters-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok
Lung and the beneficial owners of Fengrong. Mr. Hon Hau Wong,
an executive Director of the Company, is the spouse of Ms. Lu
Xiaojun.

(b)

e FESRZ B ARE
147,133,000 ¥ J6 (= &F — F4F ¢
131,636,000 i 7T ) F& jiA 76k 3k K 48 B
A BRA A (TR > HBE R 45
(R ]) 2 & o SN > ARLEE
WEE_F - —Ft+_H=1+—H
AE A B S A A TR R Y 35 45 1
R B A A 108 AN R 0.7 A
3£2,779,000 % T (& T4 ¢ ) o

AN A PUAT B R L
FIE TR K AT - K
7 H A RS G A BR A ] ([
W) Fi A #133.95% (% AR ¢
33.95%) o BEEL IR b MRS 4+
¥ 0 v I E S A 2 G ML SR A
Ha A N o ANl T #EE
YRS 7y e B e - 2 T A o
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. A PFHEFFARMBERBAZ

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued) < il B S (s90)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (A
Particulars of the Group’s investment in Dartong Shares are as A EE E A KR B BB R IR
follows:
Percentage
of ownership
Number of interest
Country of Particulars of issued shares held attributable
Name incorporation shares held by the Group  to the Group
A 42 [ A
AR BEAHERE SR
4 1% B3 AT ES Jii 5 © 84T 1B 4 wF 46 Bty ¥ H Hork
Citychamp Dartong PRC Ordinary A Share 30,389,058 2.04%
Company Limited
68 30 8 R 4 A BR 2 ) o g A B 78 B
During the year, the increase in fair value of financial assets at fair AR o HE A TE FEA AL 2 TE YA
value through other comprehensive income of HK$33,127,000 2 4 BB 7 T (E 1 033,127,000
(2020: increase of HK$47,933,000) has been dealt with in other Wt (S F AR 047,933,000
comprehensive income and FVOCI reserve. There is no transfer of W TT) B A A m IR B kAT
cumulative gain or loss within equity during the year. BT A LAt 4 T WSO ot 5 A9 B B o
AR o RE 4 A M AN B S i B
1 -
21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. fik&m T H
2021 2020
R R ST T
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt 5 T o0 T
Derivative financial assets A5 A 4 T
Forward and option contracts = S ARE A 4 (@) 34,608 29,224
Derivative financial liabilities i 2k & b MR
Forward and option contracts A R HREA & (a) 46,308 (31,334)
Interest rate swap contracts FI R HH G 4 (b) 1,647 =
47,955 (31,334)
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

@

21, fiAE @ TH @

Forward and option contracts arising in banking business (@  REBATIEG 2 m RS A
The Group’s subsidiaries under the banking business segment act as an A AR B SRAT SEHS 40 B T 2 M A RIAE 5
intermediary to offer derivative products including interest rate and currency g B F R A TR E & > i
forwards and swap to its customers. These derivative positions are managed Il 32 DL Je B8 W A B st ) o R% 5 AT AE T
through entering back-to-back deals with external parties to ensure the BB TEAEINA N LR BT AL
remaining exposures are within acceptable risk levels. Gy AT B B DR OR 5 T RS A T 42 32 JE
B KPR o
The following tables and notes provide an analysis of the nominal amounts N2 R B sk st B = 5% B4R 2 AR T
of derivatives and the corresponding fair values as at the year ended date. LT B AR E A ST (BB B 43 AT © i A L
The nominal amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of transactions B2 TR BN A RS H O R S8 R 2 5
outstanding as at the reporting date; they do not represent amounts at risk. 7 37 40 2 35 4 B o
31 December 2021
R AT ZH=ZTH
Nominal
amount Assets Liabilities
T {f ¥ e 1%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tt
Non-hedging instruments FE¥uh TR
— Currency derivatives — AT R 7,020,076 34,608 (46,308)
— Option — At 195 = =
7,020,271 34,608 (46,308)
31 December 2020
SERCEET_A=1T—H
Nominal
amount Assets Liabilities
THI B B £
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T o T 0
Non-hedging instruments W TR
— Currency derivatives — B TR 4,575,322 29,224 (31,334)
— Option — W 194 —* —*
4,575,516 29,224 (31,334)

&7 Represents the amount less than HK$1,000.

Z ¥ 48V 1,000 ¥ 7C °
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(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@

(b)

e S S A T A I A B )

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21, fiE&m T H ¢
Bt (48)
Forward and option contracts arising in banking business (Continued) (@ AR HERATIEG 2w RS A ()
Nominal amount analysed by remaining maturity FedR B B b 2 T (E
2021 2020
ZET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T 0
Within 3 months 3fHA A 5,468,640 3,760,096
Between 3 months and 1 year 3 H E 14 1,551,631 23,728
Between 1 year and 5 years 14 %5 4F - 791,692
7,020,271 4,575,516
The remaining term to maturity of derivatives does not represent the Group’s e T E B B &R T BRI AR AR
intended holding period. Change in the fair value of forward and option W 2 B A o AR B SRAT SE 2 T
contracts arising in banking business has been recognised in the consolidated MRS K 2 NP EEZE) O ARG T I
statement of comprehensive income under “Trading income from banking AZRIN [ SRATHEH 2 38 5 I | T FERR
business”.
Interest rate swap contracts arising in non-banking business (b) PR HE AT 2 M G %
The Company has entered interest swap contracts with the bank. These Ay E B BLERATRT LA RS 4 o 5%
derivative positions are managed through entering back-to-back deals with SEAT A L HAR R T BN RN AR TS
external parties to ensure the remaining exposures are within acceptable risk B 3 5 HEA T A B DA RE (R B8 T LR 7%
levels. A 42 R R K F A
The following tables and notes provide an analysis of the nominal amounts TREMFEHREEZH EFEZATAET
of derivatives and the corresponding fair values as at the year ended date. LA} B B AR JE A ST (LB AR 43T © A7 A T
The nominal amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of transactions B2 T {E BER RRE H M R 58 L2 3 5
outstanding as at the reporting date; they do not represent amounts at risk. 2 I A 2 B R B < A o
31 December 2021
—E_—#+_HA=+—H
Nominal
amount Assets Liabilities
[1 A R £
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T#n T#x
Non-hedging instruments TR
— Interest rate swap — | R e 531,000 = 1,647
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21.

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Interest rate swap contracts arising in non-banking business (Continued)

Nominal amount analysed by remaining maturity

i ek T H o)
WESE © (40

(b) PR FRERAT IR 2 AR A A ()

65 N B A 2 1 {E

2021
. Sy 3
HK$°000
T 0

Between 3 months and 1 year

30 H £ 14

531,000

The remaining term to maturity of derivatives does not represent the

Group’s intended holding period. Change in the fair value of interest rate

swap contracts arising in non-banking business has been recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income under “Other income and

other net gains or losses”.

firde THE B 8T R A R A
P 2 R AT I o 2I€ B IR SRAT S 2 Al A
G R 2P B O R A5 A 2 T I
AR [ Al S A B H At i 6 550 1 75

T T HERR o

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. MR
2021 2020
- et R R
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt THs T
Trade receivables arising from watches and 4% & Ff st fh s = AR 2
timepieces business: (note (a)) FENS R« (B 5E ()
Trade receivables JE WS R K 452,838 458,698
Less: Provision for impairment loss Wk U E e TR (80,641) (76,607)
372,197 382,091
Trade receivables arising from financial 4 Rl SETS A 2 BRI
business: (note (b)) (5% (b))
— Margin clients —REBEF 2,199 402
— Cash clients —BEEF 3,708 4,631
— Clearing house — & T 123 4,623
6,030 9,656
Trade receivables, net JARE M i 2 R AR 378,227 391,747
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

@

The Group’s trading terms with its customers of watches and timepieces
business are mainly on credit, except for certain customers, where payment
in advance is required. The credit period is generally for a period of one
to six months (2020: one to six months) for major customers. The credit
term for customers is determined by the management according to industry
practice together with consideration of their creditability. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a wide
range of customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables arising from watches and
timepieces business are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

Movements in the expected credit losses of trade receivables arising from
watches and timepieces business are as follows:

22. MEWCEK (40

b -

(C)

B T % B HTE S AT R > 7 B B
S Gk B IRF T E M EEB R P Rl L 2 B E R
A EEATIRT R o« FERF — &
—EARMA (SR RE  —FAMHA)
ZAEEH - BF 2 {5 8 b & U R
BB S R 2 (58 E - R
e = T e A A I R MR R I R AR
6] 5 5 o HOOT A w2 AR v A5 £ S B o MR
W RO A FEE. o

S ik % I i S T 2 2 WA
(LM 18 79 {6 P BB R 51 M > B R AR 4 1
17 Ay i 1) A A8 <6 2 AT R A R AT B £ 3
i o AEBEAE UL o Gl (M 18 e

83 ik % I o S E AL 2 EMUIR AR 2
HHE SR B T

2021 2020

TR CE AR

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt T 0

At 1 January w—H—H 76,607 58,347
Expected credit losses for the year AF N TE (5 S 1R 2,361 16,960
Exchange realignment it b 3 & 1,673 1,300
At 31 December w+—H=+—H 80,641 76,607

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

A G2 [ 7 A0 % 5 A6 SRS AT TR iy
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22. MEWCHERK (40

Notes: (Continued) B 5E : ()

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@  (Continued) (a) (#)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from watches and
timepieces business as at the reporting date, based on invoice dates,
and net of provisions, is as follows:

SR S RS S S AR 2 RN K (411
Wi a8 ) 4% MR85 22 A A 3G B 2 BRI
SAATUNR

2021 2020
- S S TE AR

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt T 0

1 to 3 months 1ZE 38 H 219,217 267,893
4 to 6 months 45610 A 36,300 29,796
Over 6 months A 611 A 116,680 84,402
372,197 382,091

The directors of the Company consider that as trade receivables arising from
watches and timepieces business are expected to be recovered within one
year, their fair values are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their inception at the
reporting date.

The settlement term of trade receivables arising from the financial business of
securities dealing is two business days after trade date (“T+2").

Margin loans due from margin clients are current and repayable on demand.
Margin clients are required to pledge securities as collateral to the Group
in order to obtain credit facilities for securities trading. As at 31 December
2021, the total market value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the receivables from margin clients are approximately HK$20,178,000
(2020: HK$840,000). Margin loans are interest bearings at fixed rate of
8.25% (2020: 8.25%) per annum. Subject to certain conditions, the Group is
allowed to repledge collateral from margin clients. There was no repledge of
collateral from margin clients as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. No aging
analysis is disclosed for trade receivables from margin clients. In the opinion
of the directors, aging analysis is not meaningful in view of the business
nature of securities dealing.

AT B Ry  RHE o pR sk
% TR T E i S5 1 A 2 TR WA TR A
AR el > EAT B A5 R B B 4G DL
A 2 B3 H A > SR (B BUE R T
L3I 0 K 2 B

o

i R B 4 RS BT A AR R AR K
ZHEFHR A 5 % W E A 2E A
(TT+2)) -

JRE A A 8 4 % 5 2 A il 4 SE 0 B EL
TR BERIRFAE R o (a5 & % 7 JHIRRE 55
HEA AL > R IR R AL 2
FERME - N _F_—F+_A=1+—
H o BE U (R 78 4 % P R KCA BRAE 73 3K
R 2 78 I T (E AR AR 44 2% 20,178,000
WG (% T F4F 1 840,000 70) © i
b BT 4 [ 78 A A F 8.25% (—F —F
4F 1 8.25%) FHE o FESA THMHIRT » 4
5 1) A AR R 5 4 R 2 AR o R
SRR R R =
H oo M0 A (R 58 42 5 5 2 AT fo 47
iho MR ERRE > BB rEE %
LR BRAS 5 A7 I 1 0 22 > O B
PR MR 5 4 & P AR Z MR 44T
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. JEUWR
Notes: (Continued) Mt 3E -
(b)  (Continued) (b)

Trade receivable from cash clients related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. Based on the past experience,
current assessment and the available forward-looking information, the
management believes that no additional impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

Trade receivables from clearing house, i.e. Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Limited, is current which represents pending trades arising from the
financial business of securities dealing and are normally due on “T+2” day
in accordance with the requirements of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing
Limited.

The Group has policy for impairment allowance which requires
management’s judgement and estimation as mentioned in note 4.13. The
directors are in opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of trade receivables arising from the financial business of securities dealing
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 23. %#
COST

MR (40)

(##)
(##)

SRR P A B 2 BB 6 & P AR
AT SIS A R T Bk o AR 1 KRB - BN
GREVEEL LS e s R
S % 5 A R R RN L (E A - T9 e
TR A R kSl e K 5 ) L A% B 4
] 2 B[] o

JRE S5 BT (B b S A5 A R D)
Rk Ay BV > O W8 05 B 2 il SE S
BELEZfFRA Y H—RIEBEERLS
L& B A BN R 2 BUE T [T+2] H 5
# o

TN B 4.3 Biralt - A 4 [ h A s (43
i B A O 5 R B AR 0 I A
Fho MRRL > R -F - —FER T
FEFZA=Z+—H BARBLEES
2.4 T ZE TS O A R AT SR S T T Dok (L
Al o

B AR B MR 2 LAl <5 kS

2021 2020
R AR TR R
HK$°000 HK$°000
TG THs T
Listed debt instruments, at amortised cost T ER LA > R AT iR 1,852,934 1,449,886
Issued by: B PATF AN 817
Governments and public sector B BN & 334,076 84,447
Financial institutions S A 1,014,986 1,053,351
Corporations 3% 503,872 312,088
1,852,934 1,449,886
The listed debt investments represented the investments in listed debt TR GG T H R < R A A
instruments mainly issued by financial institutions and corporations in HBITZ Bl A LERE -

Europe.
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23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 23. SRS A DR Z T Ath 4 ol
COST (Continued) (%)
(@)  Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for other financial assets at (@)  FERHESH A A R 2 H A 4 R E
amortised cost are as follow: AR (BB AR AT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
51 B B2 M B IR B )
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T-HIT T o T
1 January 2020 ZERCFRE—H—H 1,308,809 - - 1,308,809
New financial assets originated, — J& [ 5 H4 4 RlU&E 8 > IR
net of amount derecognised KRB 50,389 - - 50,389
Transfers: L
— Transfer to stage 2 — B A S O R B (2,737) 2,737 - =
— Transfer to stage 3 — 4R 28 55 S B (31,177) - 31,177 =
Exchange realignment HEE 5, ] 120,734 114 1,939 122,787
As at 31 December 2020 and W_F_FRELH
1 January 2021 =t—HE-ZE -4
—H—H 1,446,018 2,851 33,116 1,481,985
New financial assets originated, — Ji [ # # 4: fill & 2 > 1B
net of amount derecognised KRR S 442,005 (2,760) = 439,245
Exchange realignment T 51, 71 B (38,087) (91) (917) (39,095)
31 December 2021 SE - —F+TH
=+—H 1,849,936 - 32,199 1,882,135
(b)  Movements in the expected credit losses in respect of other financial (b) i A 5 B 2 HAh 4 B EE 2
assets at amortised cost are as follows: TS SRR B I -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
SR B 2R B IR B FE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T-H 0 T-H T
Balance at 1 January 2020 N _FZRE—H—H
P i 849 - - 849
Change in valuation A ST B A (R R A2 )
adjustments for default risks (38) 45 29,341 29,348
Transfers: T
— Transfer to stage 2 L E e (8) = -
— Transfer to stage 3 — 4R 28 55 QR B (92) - 91 -
Exchange realignment [FE 52, 3 68 3 1,831 1,902
Balance at 31 December 2020 and X — & “F4E+ %)
1 January 2021 =t—HERZZ -4
—H—H 780 56 31,263 32,099
Change in valuation adjustments % 1 JE b fi (& 94 4 4 )
for default risks 879 (55) (2,838) (2,014)
Exchange realignment E 5, ] 17) (1) (866) (884)
Balance at 31 December 2021 W_EF_—F+_H
=1 —HZ &R 1,642 - 27,559 29,201
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24. INVENTORIES 24. #E
2021 2020
R4 R R
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Raw materials b R 382,625 358,304
Work-in-progress TE i 328,663 75,528
Finished goods and merchandises BB T2 T 1,481,993 1,821,721
2,193,281 2,255,553

A reversal of provision of HK$18,154,000 (2020: HK$12,819,000), was
recognised in cost of sales and consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, which made in prior years against the
carrying value of raw materials and finished goods have been reversed due
to an increase in the estimated net realisable value of certain products as a
result of the increase in the demand of products as well as the production
needs.

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

B A i 7 2R B A T SR T 2 GRS 43 2 i A
TE TR S R (RGN > £ 95 B A B A K AR
i S H Al A THT g 4 % v E BRI 488 445 18,154,000
Wt (CF FAF 12,819,000 00) - A B
T’ L HE A B AT B DA e B S R Y B T
(N

25. Fifhi&E sk s

2021 2020
R TR FAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T 0 T

At 1 January w—H—H 602 1,096
Share of total comprehensive income of JEAG A 78 A 2 2 A T A S

joint ventures (83) (494)
At 31 December = H=+—H 519 602
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 25. Fnfhif e AR (a0
Particulars of the joint ventures, which are accounted for using equity HAMBHER AR IEARZ 8
method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows: FEET
Principal activities and
Particulars of  Place of Percentage of  principal place of
Name issued capital  incorporation interest held  operation
C#1fT Fe A R4
Fy JEAFENS R L b B URLNER o A U= Y & T ]
2021 and 2020
TR R
e Jawe 213
Corum Investment Management US$100  Cayman Islands 40%  Investment holding in
Limited (“Corum Investment”) 100%76  HEHE Hong Kong
i A e AR
Corum Capital Partners Limited US$10,000  Cayman Islands 40% Investment holding in
(“Corum Capital”) 10,000%76 HEHE Hong Kong
i A e AR

Despite the Group’s holding of 40% equity interest in Corum Investment
and Corum Capital respectively, the directors have confirmed that neither
the Group nor other shareholders of the joint ventures has unilateral
control over the operating and financing decision of the joint ventures in
accordance with the joint venture agreement. These joint arrangements are
classified as joint ventures and have been accounted for in the consolidated

financial statements using equity method.

1545 A 48 [ 7> 7l 5 4 Corum Investment &
Corum Capital & 40% BEAHE 25 » ARIE A &
Wik > 2B ER MR ALE WS A 2
A P R B TR 42 A A S KR T
W PR - %S G B LU B A G B R
25 HLA 5 B BA 2R ORI RE 2 15 ALK ©

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 26.  FrAdi Mgk 2 2 ) BE AR

2021 2020

e Sl e

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T T

At 1 January w—H—H 113,176 115,486
Share of total comprehensive income of JEAG T A F) 2 A T A

associates AR 511 2,690

Dividend income from an associates TR/ NP 38 (N - (5,000)

At 31 December wmt+—H=1+—H 113,687 113,176
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal associate, which is a limited liability company,

at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of

Fv 405 16 2 2> W 4R (g0

AR —4E+ZH=+—H > TERE
NaEl (BARARE) Z#EEmE

Percentage of  Principal activities and

Name issued capital  incorporation interest held  place of operation
E R
EA AT IRATEN Rl o FifiE e REEER R R
Fair Future Industrial Limited HK$600,000 Hong Kong 25%  Manufacturing of watches
(“Fair Future”) 600,000 C i (2020' 25%) and related accessories in

BOLH A R A ([HRE])

The summarised financial information of the Group’s material associate
extracted from its management accounts for the years ended 31 December

2021 and 2020 is as follows:

TR T RAE the PRC
25%) A v B Bk g gk A
A B 44

UTABE-F R _F_FFE+-
H=4—H IR FEAEMEREE AR Z
WA BRI (F % B S AR H)

2021 2020
TR R R
HK$’000 HK$°000
BRI THs o0

Fair Future .o n
As at 31 December ®»+—_H=+—H
Current assets it ) A 632,295 581,866
Non-current assets IE Ui B & 133,826 163,699
Current liabilities it B B 1 (459,176) (429,906)
Non-current liabilities I E) AR (3,376) (14,517)
Net assets R 303,569 301,142
Less: Non-controlling interests W IR AR R (699) (654)
Net assets attributable to owners of Wk oy i) BE A N TR A % VA

the associate 302,870 300,488
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in - 7S 48 Jl i 48 6 2 Hi 5 2 BHIR ¢

Fair Future:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A 55 [ A RE 2 L4 25% 25%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate A4 [ JiE A5 B 25 8 7] 2 W 7 1R 75,892 75,286
Goodwill on acquisition Wi i 2 7 37,987 37,987
Effect of unrealised profits arising from the ~ 2¢ [ 81— & A R 5 2

transactions with an associate % B 3 ik ) g (457) (379)
Other reconciliation items HoAth 3 HRTH H 120 132
Carrying amount of the investment 8 R T (H 113,542 113,026




26.

TR T ARAEHL 2021 ANNUAL REPORT 254

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S B A M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % % ——4+ " H =1 —H I

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

26. FrAliE o IR AR ()

2021 2020
R TR FAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T o0 T
For the year ended 31 December BET A= HIL4EE
Revenue A 976,221 796,706
Profit for the year A FE Y ) 1,651 9,771
Other comprehensive income HoAth A HE A 755 (1,960)
Total comprehensive income 2 TH A SR 2,406 7,811
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ — [ B 2 /A 7 #EAT A ME A
an associate 7% 4 JBE Vi ) 1,606 9,880
Total comprehensive income for the year — (B N m) A N A A 4R
attributable to owners of an associate A TH A AR EE 2,361 7,921
Reconciliation to the Group’s share of A A5 A 1R e S A IR -
results of Fair Future:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A 45 [ 9 A HE 2 EL B 25% 25%
Group’s share of profits of the associate 745 2 [0 JRE AV T 4 2 ) 22 s 401 2,470
Effects of unrealised profits arising from the ~ #i& [ B — [ B 4 /A ®) 28 5 2
transactions with an associate % B 3 ik ) g (78) 710
Share of profit of the associate for the year {5 4F 1A 5 45 2 =] s il 323 3,180
Group’s share of other comprehensive income 7 £& [E] i {5 B 4% /8 W] 2 HiAth
of the associate ESTTLI PN 188 (490)
Share of total comprehensive income of the  FE {5 B 4% 28 7] 2 4 T Yig A 4848
associate 511 2,690




255

CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED

ek i B R B AR P AT PR )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

27. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

27. W3k ~ Wb Bk

Furniture,
fixtures
Right-of-use Landand Leasehold Plantand  and office Motor
assets buildings  improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles CIP Total
i (TS ‘
fEmEgEE  takEs  WEEE RERRE  RAERH fil ARIE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ter  FER FEr  FER et FEx Tt FEx
At 1 January 2020 REBRE-A-H
Cost B 532,521 440,798 101,878 200823 504,244 46,768 46,038 1,963,076
Accumulated depreciation Ltk (55,434) (47.434) (66617)  (137088)  (472,0)) (36,403) - (Bs0m)
Net carrying amount I 1 477,093 393364 35,261 63,735 122193 10,365 46,038 1,148,049
Year ended 31 December 2020 REZZZZELCA
ENLIL
Opening net book amount IR 477,093 393364 35,261 63,735 122193 10,365 46,038 1,148,049
Additions hE 4875 6,676 20,750 I} 2249 549 135,524 190,944
Lease modification fEEY 9071 - - - - - - 9071
Transfer i - 123815 - - - = (123815) =
Depreciation il (57571) (8479) (5912) (10,8%) (54613) (2619) - (160,089)
Disposal i3 - - - (53) (1,668) (21 - (2:483)
Exchange realignment i3k 23,995 4425 1551 3659 7,859 7| 3515 85,234
Closing carrying amount R IR T 457423 559,630 31,650 56,039 96,263 8,459 61,262 1,210,726
At31 December 2020 and REBZBEFZNH
1 January 2021 St-Hk
SRR
Cost B 513471 672,243 129172 212,569 646,963 46,167 61,262 2,341,853
Accumulated depreciation 23t (116054 (112613 (9752)  (156530)  (550,700) (37,708) - (oma)
Net carrying amount I A 457423 559,630 31,650 56,039 96,263 8459 61262 1210726
Year ended 31 December 2021 REZBZ-EHCA
ETLIL
Opening net hook amount IR A 457,423 559,630 31,650 56,039 96,263 8,459 61,262 1,210,726
Additions RE - - 12,460 3,674 17,283 2,638 167,236 203291
Lease modification HEEY 59,180 - - - - - - 59,180
Transfer g - 141,163 - 102 - - (141,305) -
Depreciation fié (41,820) (7,699) (8,441 (11,259) (4552 (2416) - ()
Disposal b = (30848) = (19) (6%9) (509) = (32075)
Exchange realignment Bk 3491 (46,614) 1257 1651 1828 107 2463 (35817)
Closing carrying amount IR 478,214 615,632 36,926 50,234 69,153 8219 8065 1348154
At 31 December 2021 [ SO OV
=t
Cost A 634998 779,360 5717 20345 671,411 43559 8065 2,567,046
Accumulated depreciation Zithik (156724)  (163728) (108791 (172111 (602258) (35,280) - (123889)
Net carrying amount IR 418214 615,632 36,926 50,234 69,153 8,279 89,656 1,348,154
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, land and buildings in Switzerland with an
aggregated carrying value of HK$103,641,000 (2020: HK$108,017,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note
35).

At 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets in PRC with an aggregated
carrying value of HK$205,932,000 (2020: HK$202,101,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 35).

27. W3k~ W Kkt

AT H=1—H > AEEE
G 137 7% ity - H 17 4 {4 103,641,000 5 It
(& 2R4F 1 108,017,000 70) 2 + 1 %
M DA T2 SRAT Rl (B 5% 35) o

AZE T A=+ —H > AEFED
I 057 7 F [ B T 4 205,932,000 # TT
(2 A 1 202,101,000 #5 7T) 2 {4 HE

B DU RAT A (HT5E35) o

Land and Motor
Right-of-use assets buildings vehicles Total
{2 ) HE B -l e b HHL At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THs T THs T TUs I
At 1 January 2020 N_EZERFE—H—H 475,423 1,670 477,093
Additions nE 4,875 - 4,875
Lease modification GER=E T 9,071 = 9,071
Depreciation e (57,057) (514) (57,571)
Exchange realignment [FE 52, 5 23,902 53 23,955
As at 31 December 2020 and h T TR
1 January 2021 TZA=+F—HK
TR T 4R
—H—H 456,214 1,209 457,423
Lease modification ish=¥ 2l 59,180 = 59,180
Depreciation Ireg (41,371) (449) (41,820)
Exchange realignment [T 53, o & 3,507 (16) 3,491
As at 31 December 2021 W oEFE AT
=+—H 477,530 744 478,274
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28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 28. ®EWME

A A [0 BT AT il TR L < B A 8 (T A AR
BHAFA <Y ehan - TR A TERB
sHE S WOBRAIRS G -

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of TG BB IR 0 2 52 41 2 R T {5 o A 2

financial position can be summarised as follows: L/
2021 2020
e e S CE R
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt THs I
Carrying amount at 1 January A—H—HZRmHE 195,427 182,186
Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties 5% &4 3£ H 1 2 &1 85 15 48 12,736 9,723
Exchange realignment e 52, 3 % 1,996 3,518
Carrying amount at 31 December A= H=4—HZREE 210,159 195,427

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment properties situated in

A 1 07 79 7 i v B DA R AR A

Hong Kong and the PRC held under medium-term leases are analysed as WG RHEE S H T
follows:

2021 2020
TR TR TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THETT
Hong Kong s 27,400 27,400
PRC 5 182,759 168,027
210,159 195,427

B AR = —H s AREEN
K wif W% T 4 (B 46,580,000 % oG (& &
1 45,615,000 95 70 ) 2 $8 G SE RS AH B
SERERS A o R4 WA A EL AR > A4
B A% s e B SRR A A o
S IE 1] AH B BURT 1% B A5 SERERE B o

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not obtained the relevant title
certificates for investment properties with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$46,580,000 (2020: HK$45,615,000). The Group’s legal advisors
have confirmed that the Group is the rightful and equitable owner of these
investment properties. The directors are now in process of obtaining the
title certificates from the relevant government authorities.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 28. REWE @
Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2021 by Asset BEWER _Z_—F+_A=1T—HH
Appraisal Limited (“Asset Appraisal”) and Chung, Chan & Associates, T ST B3 S AR A (B BT Ak 2 O E BT AE
independent professionally qualified valuers, at HK$210,159,000 (2020: B R A PR A ) ([ b e 1) & Chung, Chan
HK$195,427,000) in aggregate. Asset Appraisal is a member of Hong & Assomatesiﬁi?% & 210,159,000 i#5 7T
Kong Institutes of Surveyors and Chung, Chan & Associates is a member (ZR AR 195,427,000 78) © e
of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Both have appropriate £ 77 v ) = T2 & 8 & > Chung, Chan &
qualifications and relevant experiences in the location and category of Associates fI] /% ¢ [0 5 52 R 7 ) 5 Bl 22
properties being valued. PSRN ER )i S SRy E P A= & |
7 THT A 78 A B A B A B
Fair value hierarchy 2 PR 50
The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair value WEWHEZ N PE RS R H A TE
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value Al o R4 B AR R A TE A B 2 B IR HT
balance is provided below. HF o
2021 2020
—E TE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG T U T
Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) R AR (55 = R
AFAH) 195,427 182,186
Net surplus on revaluation of investment properties 11 [ ¥ F1 55 48 2 $ &4 3%
charge to profit or loss Al 2 B R TR 12,736 9,723
Exchange realignment i 52, 3 & 1,996 3,518
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) SRR AR (56 = RS
ARRIEN) 210,159 195,427
Change in unrealised gain for the year included in %+ = H =+ — H A
profit or loss for assets held at 31 December R R A A SO R 2
A JBE R 4 B W 4 S ) 12,736 9,723

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

EE
=t

A %ﬁiﬁ*}i@‘)\%i@ﬁ HEE=

4%32435&4 = e

H L4

— o BLEE g 2 W
EL

T o AGE I 2 UK S R B AR 2 He R
Tt R4S A SR AR /K- 22 [H] 2 i3t
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28.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

For the fair value measurement for investment properties in the PRC under
income approach, the fair value was determined by taking into account the
net rental incomes of the properties derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the tenancies,
which are then capitalised into the values at appropriate capitalisation
rates.

Significant unobservable inputs
Capitalisation rate

Range
2.70% to 6.10%
(2020: 2.65% to 6.10%)

HK$5.56 to HK$113.2
(2020: HK$5.56 to
HK$105.6)

Market unit rent per square metre

A lower in the capitalisation rate and a higher in the market unit rent used
would result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the investment
properties, and vice versa.

For the fair value measurement for investment property in Hong Kong
and certain investment properties in the PRC under direct comparison
method, it is assumed that each of the properties is capable of being sold
in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
markets.

One of the key inputs used under direct comparison method in valuing the
investment property in Hong Kong was the price per square feet and taking
into account location and other individual factors. The price per square
feet used is approximately HK$17,692 (2020: HK$17,692). An increase
in the price per square feet would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of the investment property, and vice versa.

One of the key inputs used under direct comparison method in valuing
the investment property in PRC was the price per square meter and taking
into account location and other individual factors. The price per square
meter used is approximately range from HK$6,185 to HK$74,005 (2020:
from HK$6,742 to HK$67,425). An increase in the price per square meter
would result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the investment
property, and vice versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior
year. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties” highest
and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

28.

BEWE )

2 FAE BB (48)

RS AR 5 R Al 2 T B B ) 3E AT (E R
B NFETIEEARZSEY R B A E E
2 S AR 05 I FI L BT 2

RURATE ) - HAZ 0 & AL L 268 78
EAGH A o

KN ] B8 A\ B i [

EAAL 2 2.70% % 6.10%

(ZFRZFAE £ 265% %

6.10%)

B T 4 5,56 70 113.2# T

(F-FH k) (ZEZFAF 55600

£105.63 )

o FF AR AR A b R R vy Aoz T 35 A
GEEBECEY EZ ANENN » R Z TR
9K o

HURYE B LBk R HR A I BUE W) e T Ay
TrHREEY SN FET S - J9RAH
YIS T i HBUIR 2T th 8 > S 25 A BT
Yy 45 2 W] B R IR o

FEAG A B Y ARy I BRI N &
Flg ANBUE 2 — 5y BT WAE RS > HEFR
A7 B K HAlAR A H 2 o B7 AT 77 WA A%
2 5517,6923 o0 (& U AF 1 17,6929
J6) o BT IRAE A b e E s G Y
OSTEFHEIE N > K ZIRER o

FEAL B A Y 2Ry - HEE IR IE N
B AU 2 — BT O R ER - BRI K
7 K HAtb A B R 2 o B 7 KB %
A 6,185 1k 7T % 74,005 #E T (T E T F
4E 6,742 JL % 67,4259 I0) © Tk
B b T e S E Y E A T EHE 2
o 2 IRER -

T b4 B 2 Al (B 7 0 0 S -
THETIARYR BRI fe i R S A
ST > 3% AF G S R R A
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 29. LR @
Supplier
and
distribution Brand Trading
networks names Patents rights Total
1k HE T - ‘
gtk i 144 T B Rtk At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2020 RERTRE
—H—H
Cost A 20,670 276,662 32,581 7,246 337,159
Accumulated amortisation and A5 e (1
impairment losses K1 (18,424) (234,065) (32,581) - (285,070)
Net carrying amount R R (L 2,246 42 597 - 7,246 52,089
Year ended 31 December 2020 RE-Z-Z4TA
=t BIRER
Opening carrying amount AR T ( 2,246 42,597 - 7,246 52,089
Amortisation e 1712) (72) = = (1,784)
Exchange realignment i 58, 8 2 299 3811 - - 4110
Closing carrying amount AR T4 833 46,336 - 7,246 54,415
At 31 December 2020 and /I e 21
1 January 2021 TZH=Z+—B R
"R —H
Cost L% 21,909 295,965 35,516 7,246 360,636
Accumulated amortisation and TS S
impairment losses feth (21,076) (249,629) (35,516) = (306,221)
Net carrying amount R RO 833 46,336 - 7,246 54,415
Year ended 31 December 2021 BRE-Z-4H12A
=t —BIRER
Opening carrying amount A AR T E 833 46,336 = 7,246 54,415
Amortisation e (659) (77) = = (736)
Exchange realignment i 58, 8 9 (1,217) - - (1,268)
Closing carrying amount AR MR T 183 44,982 = 7,246 52,411
At 31 December 2021 /I S
+ZA=Z+—H
Cost A 22,242 290,173 34,551 7,246 354,212
Accumulated amortisation and R TGS S (i
impairment losses i (22,059) (245,191) (34,551) - (301,801)
Net carrying amount e T ¥ 183 44,982 = 7,246 52,411
As at 31 December 2021, intangible assets of HK$45,165,000 (2020: WoE TP A =R R EE
HK$47,169,000) are attributable to watches and timepieces business while 45,165,000 #5 76 (— & — &4 : 47,169,000
intangible assets of HK$7,246,000 (2020: HK$7,246,000) are attributable WE T ) B T S R K% RE T E S ETS > T

to financial business.

8 5 7,246,000 9 TT (L F B AR ¢
7,246,000 5 7T ) HIl B & i 4 il SE T -
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29.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$107,665,000
(2020: HK$110,730,000) are attributable to the CGU of Corum Group.
The intangible assets of Corum Group had been fully impaired in previous
years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$100,771,000
(2020: HK$101,216,000) and intangible assets with definite useful lives
amounted to HK$754,000 (2020: HK$757,000) are attributable to the
CGU of The Dreyfuss Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dreyfuss
Group”). The intangible assets of Dreyfuss Group had been fully impaired
in previous years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$2,850,000
(2020: HK$2,850,000) and HK$4,396,000 (2020: HK$4,396,000) are
attributable to the CGU of Shun Heng Securities Limited (“Shun Heng”)
and Hong Kong Metasequoia Capital Management Limited (“Metasequoia
Capital”) respectively. Details of the impairment assessment of the CGU
of Shun Heng and Metasequoia Capital are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK$44,982,000
(2020: HK$46,265,000) are attributable to the CGU of Ernest Borel Group.
The recoverable amount of the CGU are determined by the directors based
on fair value less costs of disposal. Details of the impairment assessment of
the CGU of Ernest Borel Group are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

29.

& E (40

H A R oar i A 2 R
107,665,000 #5 6 (= & — & 4 ¢
110,730,000 #5 75) B 8 7 B 465 e AE B S
wHEH BEwnEENELEERNEFER
B (A -

H A e R oAT AR 2 e E
100,771,000 %5 o6 (= & = & 4 ¢
101,216,000 #5 75) Kz B A5 A R ] fii ] 48 1A
ZAETY A B 754,000 95 6 (& R AR
757,000 # 70) B 1A B 4 E A B The
Dreyfuss Group Limited 5% H:Fff & 2> =] ([ 77
TR IR AE [E] 1) o 7 A IRp 45 B 19 ST 6 A
EEARE -

ELA 2 R mTfof ) 4 A 2 4T ¥ 2 2,850,000
ot (& &4 ¢ 2,850,000 6) K
4,396,000 %5 70 (& —F4F : 4,396,000 #5
JG) 43 Pl B g A B 4 A BN AR S A
FRAT (5 F 1) RS & A fR
NEI(KIZEE]) -BEeE B EZ R
TKAZ G 2 W B RTAG FF G A S5 A B
FRIHEE30 -

HAEMBTMEHNFENZEYEE
44,982,000 # 6 (=% . FA4F : 46,265,000
T ) [ B A B 4 A B AR IR B AR o
7% B 4 T A BV T g ] 4 B AR EE S RS
BB B AR o B A A B AR I
P AR ) 2 A RTAG RIS SR A5 A B R
B £ 30 ©
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GOODWILL

The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position, arising from business

combinations, is as follows:
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30. &
SEHS G O AR 2 AR S AR LR R TR
FEE L EAL RS T

2021 2020
TR | CEF R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THs T
At 1 January m—H—H
Gross carrying amount W 1 AR E 1,296,629 1,210,135
Accumulated impairment losses E RN, F i (152,558) (145,084)
Net carrying amount H T ¥ {E 1,144,071 1,065,051
Year ended 31 December BET A= —HIL4EE
Opening carrying amount A7) HR T (B 1,144,071 1,065,051
Exchange realignment [TFE 5, o 7,717 79,020
Closing carrying amount AR BR T (H 1,151,788 1,144,071
At 31 December R+_H=+—H
Gross carrying amount AR T 48 (E 1,302,404 1,296,629
Accumulated impairment losses EaRtAEY il (150,616) (152,558)
Net carrying amount HR T ¥ {E 1,151,788 1,144,071
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30. GOODWILL (Continued) 30. FEE
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the CGUs AT WUE TR - PR T 28 R 8k % IR
under watch and timepieces segment and banking and financial businesses Oy I LA RARAT T 4 ST i 2 Bl e A
segment. The CGUs were identified as follows: B o B4 AR A Bk 2
2021 2020
TR M| DR
Segment HK$’000 HK$’000
vkl Tt T U T
Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its subsidiaries Watches and timepieces 670,859 649,530
A% G A PR A B LB N S 6% S R RTEE
Corum Group Watches and timepieces 52,963 54,471
B 7 42 ] S 6k SRR
Dreyfuss Group Watches and timepieces 97,653 98,087
ity 4 IRy 4E [ S 6k SRR
Bendura Group Banking business 262,086 269,549
A SRAT W
Shun Heng Financial business 801 801
G B RET
Metasequoia Capital Financial business 2,279 2,279
KA B 4l 2ETS
Ernest Borel Watches and timepieces 215,763 221,912
A Iz s 4 [ S 6k SRR
Gross carrying amount 1,302,404 1,296,629
$f 1 48
The Group’s management has engaged Asset Appraisal to perform A 45 |18 U O 25 W v U HEEAT Al (E - DA
valuations for the purpose to assess the recoverable amount of the goodwill AT M5 T 7 AR TR 2 R ] B o A
arising from the acquisitions. The keys assumptions as adopted in the IRF PR AN 2 T2 AR B 48 T 2 P 0 1) R
valuations, including the expected profit margins and the managements’ B 3 1 A% T S R B L .

expectations for the future market performance.
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GOODWILL (Continued)

Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its subsidiaries

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors covering a five-year period, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flow at zero growth rate (2020: zero) which
do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates, and a discount rate of 17.65% per annum (2020: 17.05%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
CGU. The directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the key
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable of the CGU
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. No impairment loss was recognised for
this CGU since the acquisition of Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its
subsidiaries.

Corum Group
The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Corum Group in the watch
and timepieces segment had been fully impaired in previous years.

Dreyfuss Group
The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Dreyfuss Group in the watch
and timepieces segment had been fully impaired in previous years.

Bendura Group

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors covering a five-year period, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flow at zero growth rate (2020: zero) which
do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates, and a discount rate of 15.67% (2020: 14.77%) per annum.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
CGU. The directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the key
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable of the CGU
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. No impairment loss was recognised for
this CGU since the acquisition of Bendura Group.

30.

LR

5 3 A B 2 ) B I 2 )
W23 4 A B 2 AT i [l 4 )G DL ETE
i (B 0 > A B 0 {1 ) 280 = P it o
T AR 2 B TR 2 B U e TR
FHREHMER (CEFF ) (A8
AR 4 AR A R 2 A R
o) J ARG R 17.65% (% AR ¢
17.05% ) #f B 7 109 B0 4 3 o o T A B R
7y I LB 4 A B A R B 2 R A L
R WA R E B AT T A
I B 52 B 5145 22 T i (] 48 B AS 2 Sl AR T
MEBRE S EER R R - —E R
BT H = — H 2 a] i B EIE A
B o WU IR B A PR ] B B A )
1% > w3 4 i A B I JE R R (S 1 -
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] i i o A B A B 6 T IRs S 0SS
A B RN AR B 2 BN E -

7 1 IRy 4 [

DR] WA S A I B (B S ik S IR T 0 B
S LB ) T R A 4F 2 BORUE o
CEE ]

W2 H 4 A B 2 AT [l 4 )G DL ETE
i BB/ 0 > A B O {1 ) 28 = Por it o
T A 2 IS TR 2 B U e TR
FHREHMER (CEFF ) (A8
WA R 4 R B R 2 A R
o) J AR R 15.67% (% W FA4E ¢
14.77%) B 7 B 4 0 o o T A B R
7y I WL B 4 A B A R B 2 R AT L
R WA R E B AT A
I B 52 B 45 22 AT i (] 4 B AS 8 Sl AR T
MEBRE SRR R R D E R T
BT H = — H 2 a] i B EIE A
B o IO A T DA S NI I AR A% B A
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30.

L N %)

GOODWILL (Continued)

Shun Heng

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs are determined by the directors
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The determination of fair value
less costs of disposal of these CGU is based on fair value less costs of
disposal of the underlying assets. The fair value less cost of disposal
of these CGUs are level 3 recurring fair value measurement. The key
significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value less cost of
disposal are the discount specific to the condition of the underlying assets
of those CGUs. The higher in the discount would result in a lower the fair
value less cost of disposal of the CGUSs, and vice versa. The directors of the
Company concluded that, based on the assessment result, no impairment
loss on goodwill has been recognised for the year (2020: Nil).

Metasequoia Capital

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a value-in-use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors covering a five-year period, followed by an
extrapolation of expected cash flow at zero growth rate (2020: zero) which
do not exceed the long-term growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates, and a discount rate of 21.45% (2020: 21.2%) per annum.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
CGU. The directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the key
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable of the CGU
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. No impairment loss was recognised for
this CGU since the acquisition of Bendura Group.

Ernest Borel

The recoverable amount of the CGU are determined by the directors
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The determination of fair value
less costs of disposal is based on the market price of Ernest Borel’s
share. The fair value less cost of disposal of the CGU is level 1 fair value
measurement. The directors of the Company concluded that, based on the
assessment result, no impairment loss on goodwill has been recognised for
the year (2020: Nil).

Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to 2001
Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to 2001 had been
eliminated against the consolidated reserves. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of goodwill in the consolidated reserves was
HK$15,300,000 (2020: HK$15,300,000).

30.

2 ()
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31. OTHER ASSETS

31, HAbE &

2021 2020

I St TR R

HK$’000 HK$°000

TG T U T

Other receivables At R R 163,476 182,385
Dividend receivable from an associate JARE e — [ W A ) I IS

(note 45.1) (Kt 3£ 45.1) 10,000 10,000
Amounts due from an associate (note 45.1) M ir — i 5 %5 4 7] 3K IE

(B 5E45.1) 38,316 18,315
Amounts due from related companies JARE i A 7 ) T (B 58 45.1)

(note 45.1) 1,065 1,065
Prepayments T A 153,829 95,002
Deposits e 14,084 23,770
Management and performance fees JRE A B )% Jr %

receivables - 11,636
Other interest receivables A JRE i )L 8,047 28,240
Settlement and clearing account R KA FRRF 3,071 461

391,888 370,874

Other receivables represented cash advance to staff, VAT receivable, other

advances and deposits in the securities accounts.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of the Group’s other assets expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense after one year is HK$12,461,000
(2020: HK$7,144,000). The remaining other assets are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Movements in expected credit losses for the other assets are as follows:

FAbREUCGR BN F A B T2 Bldr - 8 {ER
JRE W I ~ JF A 3R R i 5 R S A7 K

RoE AR A S —H s AEEE
Al T R — A AR i [F] TR e R 2 B
W2 AR 12,461,000 9 00 (—F TR
7,144,000 %5 75) o ik HoAth & 2 R —

AT PR WS [ sl 8 5 B S

o g 2 (G Sl R T

2021 2020

TR TR R4

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt THsTT

At 1 January w—H—H 8,377 7,111
Expected credit losses for the year AEINTE A SR 786 826
Exchange realignment [T 52, 7 270 440
At 31 December = =+—H 9,433 8,377
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32. DUE TO CLIENTS 32. MEAH & P wkH
2021 2020
I et TR R
HK$°000 HK$°000
T 0 Tt
Due to clients — precious metals JEEAST 2% B R I — 55 46 e 121,250 130,119
Other amounts due to clients, mainly bank ~ FHAth A % 5 2 E
deposits (EZ L ARAT A7 3K0) 12,629,042 13,835,358
12,750,292 13,965,477
TRADE PAYABLES 33. MEAFIRAK
2021 2020
R TR FAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T 0 T
Trade payables arising from watches and FEsk IR E R EAEZ
timepiece business (note a) JEEAT IR K (P 5E ) 286,617 245,246
Trade payables arising from financial business 4 il 2& %5 & 4= 22 JE A5 HE 3K
(note b): (Kt5ED) -
— Cash clients —BlekF 120,077 107,208
— Margin clients —REEEF 2,533 8,170
— Clearing house — &5 P 328 =
122,938 115,378
Trade payables JRE A} AR 409,555 360,624

(@)  The credit terms of trade payables arising watches and timepieces (@)  Sdk RINFR]E o S AR 2 B AT iR
business vary according to the terms agreed with different suppliers. AT B AR 5 BELAS [ A3 1B 7 o o
Trade payables to watches and timepieces business are non-interest G 45 5L o i gk M IRF w18 i 3E

bearing. B2 AT IR AT o
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33. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued) 33. AT HR K (40
(Continued) (@ (#)
Ageing analysis of trade payables arising from watches and §iit $k I IR st b SE A P E AR 2 AN
timepieces business as at the reporting dates, based on the invoice MR IR S A A s B 2 R
dates, is as follows: ST
2021 2020
R TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG T U T
1 to 3 months 1£ 31 H 251,146 190,025
4 to 6 months 4% 6 A 15,994 2,200
Over 6 months jetd 248 6 11 19,477 53,021
286,617 245,246
The settlement term of trade payables arising from securities dealing (b)  °5 5 E G RS E A 2 AT IR K
of the financial business is “T+2”. Trade payables arising from ZHEEMR A TTH2] - RTT+213
securities dealing of financial business during the “T+2” period are MM > 75 5 A SRS AR 2 A
current whereas those which are outstanding after the“T+2” period R RO - i s [ T+2 ) I 4%
are repayable on demand. i A AR 7 2 A TR B e B SR A
3 o
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 4. GHIAM

34.

The contract liabilities mainly represented the advance consideration
received from customers. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount
of transaction price allocated to performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contract is HK$26,510,000 (2020: HK$13,824,000).The Group
will recognise the expected revenue in future when or as the work is
completed, which is expected to occur in the next 12 month.

FHREMBEERARXF W Z BMR
e N F o+ H=1+—H
BEALEFEBAARHTEATEZ LS E
& 44 %F 26,510,000 #k T (& 4R
13,824,000 %5 0) © AR > A [E] i Bl
SR LR MERR TR HA A » BT A SR 2k
12 A #E4T o
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34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 34. HHARE @
Movement of contract liabilities HRIAEEE)
2021 2020
I et R AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt THs T
Balance as at 1 January Ww—H—HZ 4 13,824 18,565
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of A4 N fERR I AE IR A
recognising revenue during the year that was A & A 2 s 1
included in the contract liabilities at the HRIBEWD
beginning of the year (13,552) (18,419)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of IR FE T TR 4 B A
receipts in advance 26,125 13,084
Exchange realignment e 52, 7 % 113 594
Balance as at 31 December R H=1—HZ4% 26,510 13,824
35. BORROWINGS 35. 8
2021 2020
TR TR TR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THETT
Bank overdrafts (note 35.1) SRAT 5 3 (52 35.1) 58,305 52,711
Bank borrowings (note 35.1) SRAT A (B 5E35.1) 1,086,830 1,512,111
Other loans (note 35.2) HoAth 523K (B 5E35.2) 31,500 =
1,176,635 1,564,822
35.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings 35.1 SRATIE X KORAT B

As at 31 December 2020, including in the bank borrowings
that the syndicated loans with outstanding principal amount is
HK$732,630,000. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group has fully repaid the syndicated loans.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of the Group’s bank overdrafts
and bank borrowings repayable within one year or on demand is
HK$867,736,000 (2020: HK$1,554,724,000).

AZE _REF_H=1T—H>
AT AN R EREE SN
732,630,000 %5 I [ £1 [ 553k - 2
SE O —HE+ A=+ —H 14
FE > A [H] B 7 1 A T K o

RoE T A=1+—H>
7 45 [ B i — 4P N 48 R B B R
B R 2 GRAT I L RART A &4
%4 867,736,000%5 76 (& R4 ¢
1,554,724,000 #5 7T) ©
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued)

35.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings (Continued)
Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand
clause. Borrowings are repayable as follows:

35. 8@

35.1 SRATIE X R AATHHE (40
R4 7 B 3K B o 2 w2 R H
1> BT R ERME R
B o fig SR T 07 A MEAT

2021 2020
TR AR CE R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THs I

Borrowings payable: JREAST 8 £
Within one year =N 416,386 1,477,347
In the second year REE AR 215,119 5,696
In the third to fifth year RE=FERHE 480,543 81,779
After fifth year AR Rk 33,087 -
728,749 87,475
1,145,135 1,564,822

The abovementioned borrowings are charged at floating rates
ranging from 0% to 5.75% (2020: 0% to 5.94%) per annum.

At the reporting dates, the Group’s borrowings were secured by:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(v)

V)

corporate guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries within
the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020;

entire equity interest of certain subsidiaries within the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020;

subordination deeds signed by the Directors of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020;

guarantee provided by the government of certain country as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020;

personal guarantee provided by an non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary of the Group and certain independent third
parties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020;

b AR T AR R SR A 0% &
5.75% (& —FA4F : 0% %5.94% )

FTE

T H o ARG 2 AR L 51 4%
TEAF AT -

0]

(D)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

AR A T M E A A =&
TR CECFEF A
=— H Rtz A RIELR

A T R 2 AR F
et = Y
=t 2 R

AR T % 4 R
“EEE L A=A
BB WHRE

& BB R % 4
LR L ER R
PR U 2 057 -

A 1 — ] A Jo o ) 2 R i
HERS A TS = I &
SR CE R A
= — H TR A AR
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued)

351

35.2

Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings (Continued)

(vi) certain assets of the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
of the Group and certain independent third parties as at 31
December 2021 and 2020;

(vii) alegal charge over the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with the carrying amount of HK$309,573,000 (2020:

HK$310,118,000) as at 31 December 2021;

(viii) a legal charge over the Group’s certain financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income of not less than
52,890,000 shares of Min Xin Holdings Limited as at 31

December 2021;

(x)

a standby letter of credit with the correspondent borrowings’
balances as at 31 December 2021; and

(x)  personnel guarantee provided by a director of the Company.
Certain of bank overdrafts and bank borrowings contain clause
which give the banks the right at their sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether the Group
has complied with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations. Borrowings due for repayment after one year which
contain a repayment on demand clause and are expected to be settled
within one year. The carrying amounts of the bank overdrafts and
bank borrowings are approximate to their fair value.

Other loans
As at 31 December 2021, other loans are unsecured, charged at 5%
per annum and repayable within one year.

35. fHE @)
35.1 SRATIE X AT B ()

35.2

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

A K 24 1 2 9
W Bt T B S = T
e
A=t —H 2% TR :

AEFERKR —_FE - —F 1+ =
A=+ —H K & & 54
309,573,000 7t (=& — &
4F 1 310,118,000% J0) 2 ¥
E NN & Py ek T

AE A=t
H AP 52,890,000 % [ {5 4
] A R ) By 2 A 4 ]
T 42 - {E w1 A H At 22 T Ui
AZ & RE RE 2k E MR
WoER A=t —
H 1 1 F A5 F e 28 ] A B 1
BEEER S K

Ay R AL ATE LR

aTHRITELRBIOTHEELTRT
SRAT AT SR AT T B[R] B BRp 4 1 2
Y A7 HE 2 A0S T AN i A 4
ST O T 2wk AT A Rt BIMEA B
£ o M—FRBIMEMN ZEEEE
HESRAE AT RS B — S &
5 o SRAT % S0 I SRAT A 4 R T (L 5L
HAPAEAA

oAb 85 3%

AE - —FEF+H=+—H  H
by B2 R SRS~ i 59% 1A A SR
B RIE R — N -
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36. PROVISIONS 36. B
2021 2020
—® 4R T RAR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T U T

Provision for litigation and tax risks e B Bt 25 D e % A

At 1 January n—H—H 368 =
Utilised in accordance with designated purpose AR 95 15 7& F #: 8 H - (1,654)
Newly formed and charged to profit or loss 3 &7 B i fas 1 % s 15 o $10 Bk 21 1,907
Exchange realignment [FE 5, 5 B (10) 115
At 31 December wtr=H=+—H 379 368
Maturity of the provisions B A

Within one year —4ER 379 368

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for litigation risks
of HK$21,000 (2020: provision for litigation risks of HK$1,907,000) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

As part of the normal business activities of banking business, the Group
is exposed to a wide range of legal risks. These include in particular risks
relating to litigation. The Group recognises provisions for such litigation
risks if the Group’s management and its legal advisors are of the opinion
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The amount of the
provisions and their timing are by their nature subject to uncertainty.
However, these uncertainties are evaluated as being low since it was
possible to reliably estimate the individual amounts and the majority of the
recognised provisions will probably become due within one year.

BE_ZFZ - —F+_H=1T—HIFEF
FIF A JEL B 8 445 21,000 5 U0 (B AT
R B 45 45 1,907,000 9 0T) E RN S A
EWA%¢@MD

W%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%*%ﬁaﬁ%
V) T 2 5T e % 56 gy L 4% B
A B 2 E S o ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ@&
TR D 2 R B A A i 2 YR AT RE AR
H HL BB AE T SE AL R o AR 4 B A
@@ﬁ%%ﬁ SRR < A S FC IR ] AR
kB 52 AN AE PR R ARBR © SR > pli A RE T
ﬂﬁﬁ@%%ﬁ&k%%EﬁEWﬁT
— N BN > O RS RS A E
ﬂ%%ﬁo
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37. LEASE LIABILITIES 37. MEHAM
The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position ENFR AL G MBHIR LR N A B & A 4R
in respect of the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements S T L A A R DA S B A

during the year is as follows:

Land and Motor
buildings vehicles Total
EY2: £ HHL At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THs T T 5T TUs I
As at 1 January 2020 N_EFEZFFE—H—H 82,036 1,939 83,975
Additions wE 4,875 - 4,875
Interest expenses FILE B % 3,327 64 3,391
Lease modification GENE T 8,926 - 8,926
Lease payments GEN-XRE ¢ (44,451) (536) (44,987)
Exchange realignment [FEE 5, 3 R 1,341 49 1,390
As at 31 December 2020 and AZE ZEE+H=+—H
1 January 2021 IrZFZ—4—H—H 56,054 1,516 57,570
Interest expenses FILE B 32 2,125 44 2,169
Lease modification TH B 15 0 51,516 = 51,516
Lease payments TR A5 3K (41,335) (469) (41,804)
Exchange realignment P 5, 7 8,108 (331) 7,777
As at 31 December 2021 S e e e e 76,468 760 77,228
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37. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 37. MEAME @
Future lease payments are due as follows: RACHH B AT Z B R BLan T
2021 2020
I St TR R
HK$’000 HK$°000
TG T U T
Minimum lease payment due F IR & AT 3B A AR
— Within one year — 4N 34,556 35,755
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive — 5 BB AR
(5 B WA A5 N) 44,199 18,793
— After fifth years — AR E 16,998 17,850
95,753 72,398
Less: future interest expenses W RAH] B 52 (18,525) (14,828)
Present value of lease liabilities B A FEBE 77,228 57,570
2021 2020
SR e S 240
HK$’000 HK$°000
T 0 THs T
Short term leases expenses S S LB B S 29,050 18,014
Aggregate undiscounted commitments for S HAH B R TG B R s AR
short term leases 14,729 9,134
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38. DEFERRED TAX 38. MEAERLIH
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the 3008 U o L R R P A A B 255 P 7E )
liability method using the applicable tax rates prevailing in the jurisdictions IR 2 BAT 8 P Bl Sl T IR 2 B A T R
in which the Group operates. Ho
Details of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and AAEE 2 CERRIR LR E G B (BfE) X
movements are as follows: HEHFEERIMT

Revaluation  Revaluation

of  of property, Decelerated Other

intangible plantand tax temporary
assets equipment Taxlosses  depreciation differences Total

B Bl s B )
EYRE  RF R REE# it R At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T

At L January 2020 R 2E-A—A (11515) (32434) 431 228 (1085) (48.255)
Credited(charged) to profitor ~ IME RSB HFH A/
loss (note 11) (8 (HzE11) - % (24) (986) 1461 618

Effect of change in Switzerland Rl Al st AR
taxrate credited toprofitor L HEEH 2 HE

loss (note 11) (3 12) - - - - 7,960 7960
Charge to other comprehensive i F At 2 T A R TR

income (note 15.2) (f3E15.2) - - - - 44 4
Exchange realignment 5. 883 (2,661) 45 (%) 45 (1,783)

At 31 December 2020 and WZZZFEFZA=T—HR

1 January 2021 ~2-—F—f-H (10632) (34,709) 4113 1147 (13%) (41,416)
Creditedl(charged) to profitor ~ INEFI BB FFH A/

loss (note 11) () (HfzE2) = 157 (10) (21) 1,030 1,156
Charge to other comprehensive i E Al 2 A B

income (note 15.2) (Hik15.2) - - - - (5,394) (5,394)
Exchange realignment T 5. (215) 78 50 45 (245) (347)

At31 December 2021 e S Sl o e (10.907) (34474) 4153 1171 (5944) (46,001)
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

38. WHEPLIH (41)

RINAR S MBHIR LR P 2 & TIEER
TH R Te SR THEE o LU 2 TR B 5
oy 2 IR SEBLIE A BRI

2021 2020

TR AR TR TRAE

HK$’000 HK$°000

T T

Deferred tax assets 0% A T 9,179 13,961
Deferred tax liabilities AR JE o TEL B iR (55,180) (55,377)
(46,001) (41,416)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$570,455,000 (2020: HK$493,223,000),
subject to the agreement of Inland Revenue Department, that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated unused tax losses in
United Kingdom of HK$174,879,000 (2020: HK$177,563,000), subject
to the agreement of tax bureau in United Kingdom, that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. No deferred tax assets (2020: nil) have been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused tax losses as these were
incurred by the companies that have been loss-making for some time.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has estimated unused tax losses in
Switzerland of HK$1,419,285,000 (2020: HK$1,332,094,000), subject to
the agreement of tax bureau in Switzerland, that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets of HK$4,153,000 (2020: HK$4,113,000) have been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused tax losses to the extent of
deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of revaluation of identifiable
assets as a result of the acquisitions. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses as these were
incurred by the subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time.
These estimated unused tax losses will be available for offsetting against
future taxable profit for a maximum period of five years from the reporting
date.

MRoF_—F+ " H=+—H  AREER
F Wb EE A A R AR B A B JE 5 15 570,455,000
W0 (2 AF 1 493,223,000 #570) 0 A
fop BB 55 o) i e » o] JHE B R A I 1 A
A /2 H & BB i ) o

MRoF——F+ " H=+—H > AREER
B 2 AR A R AR B A B JE RS 15 174,879,000
Wt (& 4 1 177,563,000%70) A
o BEL % [ 5 5 T e - T 4HE R U D A K8
FE A TR N\l 2 H AR B R s A1) o S
5% S R A B P B e 1 R A0 AL A T
BE(CE A ) » Tl A B SR E
A B — B R B R IR A ] o

W oE - —Ft+_A=+—H A&
AR R R AR AR R B F B s
161,419,285,0004 o6 (= &F 4 ¢
1,332,094,000 #5 7G) > A fF B iy - BB )=
ok > Al A TESESE = A R A B 2 H AR
B R A o DA B EE A RISk 2 B
RO Sl TE A A A PR > % S Al T R )
Tt T s 4R e 8 2 A0 S ol TH ' £ 4,153,000
W0 (2 A 1 4,113,000 70) © Sl 41E
HR 5% S A A S 70 T e 1 R A IE
BEE > IR E B E A B R — B R
BT 1= Pl ) /N IO/ 2 ey B N D
Tl TEU S 48 AT FH VR R 8 fc = B B 0 H R T
FAF 2 H AR BB i ) o
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38.

39.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 38. WEHEBLIH (1)
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of AN > AR ) 7 48 8] 1) EL P R S A R L T
dividends by the Company to its shareholders during the year. JE RS AT 0] B A5 Bl A% R -
As at 31 December 2021, deferred taxation has not been provided in AR AR H = —H o SRR
the consolidated financial statements in respect of taxable temporary e 2 S A0 gk e IR B 2 ) o S BB A TR
differences attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries Z JRE T i BT Ry 22 %61,918,165,000 #5 7T (=
amounted to HK$1,918,165,000 (2020: HK$1,873,215,000) as the Group R4 ¢ 1,873,215,000 5 7T) 1 H R AEFL
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences TETEA > Do ] 2 A 402 A /6 A0 2 ol 48 7 Ty
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the ZEHE L WRETH] > T IR 2 AR AT RE S € iR
foreseeable future. TG A 4 [l o
OTHER LIABILITIES 39. At £
2021 2020
e et TR R
HK$°000 HK$’000
T 0 THs T
Accruals JE T2 82,832 81,518
Warranty provision TRER 1,069 1,383
Net defined benefit obligations JE RAAR R EAL R A 68,883 113,354
Accrued interests and commission JEFEAIE I A 4 6,097 11,332
Other tax payable HC Al A B K 5,860 30,644
Interest payable JEAS A1 7,120 6,269
Commission payable JEEASH A 42 61,250 34,308
Other payables HC Al A Rk 428,834 248,093
661,945 526,901

Other payables represented accrued management and performance fees,
accrued services fee, accrued salaries and bonus, accrued audit fee and
accrued other operating expenses, amount due to a related company and
amount due to associates.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of the Group’s other liabilities
expected to be due after more than one year is HK$68,883,000 (2020:
HK$115,480,000). The remaining other liabilities are expected to be due
within one year.

JFC A B A 5K B 4 B A R R A 22 - E T
s & - MR T M AEAL - MR R
B T A 48 B 52 ~ RS — I B 2 ) K
JE % B AT W6 8 % R A

MRoFE——HF+_H=+—H > AEH
T B — FEB M K& ESE S
68,883,000 7 It (& - F4F © 115,480,000
WIT) o iR T A & R — AR R
Y o
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SHARE CAPITAL 40. WA
2021 2020
D e TR TFRAE
Number of Number of
shares shares
Ji ¥ H &4 % H
000 HK$’000 000 HK$°000
Tk Tt Tk THs T
Authorised: BE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 /% —H —H &+ H
each at 1 January and =t—H&K
31 December T {4 0.10 9 T2
il 6,000,000 600,000 6,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT SR -
At 1 January and H—H—HK
31 December +—-H=+—H 4,351,889 435,189 4,351,889 435,189
RESERVES 41. Gkt
Group A4

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein during the
year are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The share premium account mainly includes shares issued at a premium.

The share options reserve represents the cumulative expenses recognised
on the granting of share options to the employees over the vesting period.

Other reserve represents (i) the cumulative expenses recognised on the
granting of share options to an independent third party and (ii) the effect
of transactions with non-controlling interests as disclosed in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements and (iii) the effect of the redemption of
convertible bond.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in
prior years remain eliminated against the consolidated reserves.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax
to the statutory reserve before profit distributions are made. The amounts
of the transfers are subject to the approval of the boards of the directors of
these subsidiaries, in accordance with their joint venture agreements and/
or articles of association. The statutory reserve is non-distributable and has
restricted use.

A B2 [ A TN 2 s s OB A B S B TR A
EHER BB R RS o

FE A3 T 8 1 A e i A o A T 2 ey
R I L 3 W fts 4 7 B J A T o R B 2
PRI B RE T ERR 2 BB L o

HA T (i) m— 4 058 = 4% 3R
Hxﬁﬂ‘%ﬂiﬂﬁﬁ Rz BEBE S 5 (i) B IR fE i
HE 5 HEAT 8 5 2 5 2B (i & A B T 3= B
REA6 TEER) K (iii) B ] nT R A s IR 2 R o

T A A B A 2 W B A 2 A T 7
BT AR B ok 4R 3

T MR BE A > AR B TR P B 2
W6 8 2 W TP A SR 20 IR R > ZEUH HL AR 43
AR B A5 i ) 4B 2 U E A o BB
H1 % S i o 7] 2 SR s B 2 B T
e S/ BN m ARG AL o B E AR
H 3R - EHT A B iR e
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41.

RESERVES (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted in note 4.23.

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents gains or
losses on remeasuring the financial assets classified as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

Revaluation reserve for property, plant and equipment is the revaluation
gain arising from the transfer of property, plant and equipment to

41. kit (s

A K (7E)

TRAET L 4.23 T bR A 2 & UK > SR TE
it e LA AR S5 g SN B B R T A 2
Jir A e SO ZE 3 o

OB R EA A 2 T SO fefi i 4 TRt
BB IE N FER A A 2 A 2 &
il 7 < PR 2 i AR R AR o

YIS ~ RS K O S Al A 20 ot 40 26 ~ i
[ B B gt = R Y e i AR 2 A

investment properties. % ©
Company A2 H]
The reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as b /NI e Skt O S S <3 o Y |
follows: = t—HZffEmT
Fair value
through
other
Share  comprehensive
premium income Other Retained
account Teserve Teserve profits Total
#AFHE A
it
Behr Bk A mRAG SR &R i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2020 A ZZFHE—H—H 682,028 (86,383) 22,693 142,330 760,668
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year $¢V ELNET TN
&% - 44212 - 242,584 286,796
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R Zliﬁ A=+—H
Rh=%-—%—H—H 682,028 (2.11m) 22,693 384,914 1,047,464
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year $¢EE§?§&%MZ)\
% - 15,246 = (79,384) (64138)
At 31 December 2021 REBZ-EFZA=A—H 682,028 (26,925) 22,693 305,530 983,326

Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which a dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

RIER 2 BB A FESE 225 (— LN —4F
5 3Rk ARG R AERD) =ZIV/_¥ﬁ7E%3‘
it (B AR 2 B B AT IR T AR FIBR >
BhEda IRIE R ZIK/\jlﬁﬁ
FIEIR I F O B RAR o B 0 2 A8
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42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/ 42. RWEMBPRH HRE
COMMITMENTS
42.1 At 31 December 2020 and 2021, total future minimum lease 421 RoEFB-FER EFE - —F+H
receipts by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are as =+—H > MEBEAF S
follows: #y o 7S 45 [ B MSOR AR S (IR A B R
MBI -

2021 2020

R TR R

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T U T

Within one year —4EN 4,675 3,242

In the first to second year PR AR 1,985 1,209

In the second to third year oy et 1,124 1,209

In the third to forth year 5= R AR - 1,209

7,784 6,869
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease ARAEFRBLEMALHAES T
arrangements, with leases negotiated for initial terms ranging from W REZMSHABH—F 5
one to five years. None of the leases include contingent rentals. FAFEARGE o % EH A N E SR T

4 o

42.2 The Group is required to pay an annual fee in respect of the 422 AEEHEH - ZF 2 TN AF
leasehold land in the PRC from 1992 up to 2042 with a 20% 1E > ZEE P B 2 — MR AR A i S A
increment for every five years. During the year ended 31 December EER S B ARG N 20% - B E
2021, an annual fee of HK$600,000 (2020: HK$559,000) was ZE -t ZH=1T—HIEF
charged as an expense in profit or loss of the Group. JE > 444 600,000 %5 70 (& FA4F

559,000 #5 J6) T i A% 4 9 i 1] =% 5
5 A 4 B S S8 o
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43.

44,

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43.

At the reporting date, the Group had the following outstanding
commitments:

B AR
R F o A R AT 2 RMEANE

2021 2020
TR AR R AR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Contracted, but not provided for O RT &0 4H A 93 {5
— Investment in an associate — Citychamp — R AN ) 2 A — IR
Allied International Limited (note (b)) Wt 5 I P A PR
(3% (b)) 270,000 270,000
Note: On 28 September 2016, Union United Investment Limited (“Union United”), MEsE < A ZF—NELH = FAH > AAF A
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement A JoB 2 ) W R 4R A BR A D (g A )
with Citychamp Dartong (Hong Kong) Limited (“CD(HK)”) and Fengrong LS8 3% R () A PR w ([ 3k oK
Investment (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“FI(HK)™), in relation to the W(EW) ) RERRE (BB ARA
formation of the joint venture company (“JV Company”) in the British A ([ EE (W) ) 5Tk > A
Virgin Island. JV Company shall be owned as to 40% by FI(HK), 30% by HEAR BB E LRSI A B AR ([
CD(HK) and 30% by Union United. JV Company is engaged in potential BT o MARRE (FH) - mEIK
overseas equity investment. Pursuant to the agreement, Union United W (EW) WA A S BN
agreed to contribute the maximum capital commitment of HK$270,000,000 40% ~ 30% M 30% H 25 o & B F S
to JV Company. Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s VETE S AN AR B T o IR a% 1k
announcement dated 28 September 2016. it ] 2 ) A A W) A I v AR AR A
270,000,000 # T ° 38 5 wf 17 #4824
HR —F—NEA Z FAHZ A -
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 44. BRAMBFEINIAH
2021 2020
TR R
HK$’000 HK$°000
Fe ARV
Irrevocable commitments AN ] i [a] 7R 3 30,707 34,122
Contract volume G H 7,020,271 4,575,516
Fiduciary transactions with third-party banks —BL45 = 75 147 2 {5 7635 5 573,706 407,207
7,624,684 5,016,845
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45, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45,
45.1 Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions carried out

with related parties:

(i)  Transactions with an associate, Fair Future and its

BN 52 5

451 W A B R HAL T4 4 5
O - Y BB AT LA
TR

(i) ERBEARE RN

subsidiaries BAFZRE
2021 2020
R TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG T
Sales of goods e 2 94
Purchases of goods W 17,781 13,287
Rental expenses paid BT 4B X 354 354
Inspection fee paid B AT A 2 96 55
Interest expenses 5 B 32 1,236 1,095

(if)  Transactions between Shun Heng and the related parties

(i) fRFEAEMBEALZRY

of the Group
2021 2020
==
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
[oFE NS e 2o E T#T THTT
Directors of the company and their ~ Services fees and commission
close family members income - 10
R/NGIE &SNS IR s # K AR < it A
Interest income 9 4
A A
Related company Services fees and commission
B A income 12 92
JIRHs # K AR < it A
Interest income 27 8
A A

The related company is controlled by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a
director of the Company.

7% [ 7 A W) ph AR 4 ]
B FE ST AR HE A o
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45.1 (Continued)

B RN

e S S A T A I A B )

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45, BN LR @)
451 (%&)

Outstanding related party balances included in trade (i) AR - b -

receivables, other assets, trade payables and other A Bk B H At £ fi% =2 oK B A+

liabilities PR 3N L &5 6%

2021 2020

I et TR R

HK$°000 HK$’000

Tt THs T

Dividend receivable from an JRE Wi — [ W 2 2 ) R R

associate” 10,000 10,000

Due from an associate (note (a))" JRE Wi — [T B 2 A ) O

(B 5E () * 38,316 18,315
Trade receivables from associates JRE A i 5 ) Eﬁ?ﬁ 4,224 4,108
Due from related companies JRRE A 0 2 ] T (B 5 (b)) #

(note (b))* 1,065 1,065
Due to a shareholder (note (d)) JRE Ay — 44 B R 2 R T (5 (d)) 12,000 12,000
Trade payables to associates ARG A} i 75 ) B 44,955 58,616
Due to directors (note (c)) G A} 2 R I ([ 5 (c)) 73,315 21,233
Due to a related company (note (e))* M {s — i B 4L 23 7] 5 E

(BfF5E (e)) * 88,000 =
Due to an associate (note (f))* ARG A} — [ W /5 A ) R I
(B 3E (F)) * 10,000 =

# Included in other assets
* Included in other liabilities
Notes:

(@) The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand. The maximum outstanding balance of amounts due
from associates during the year was HK$38,316,000 (2020:

HK$18,315,000).

(b) The amounts were due from companies of which Mr.

Shang Jianguang, Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau Wong,

directors of the Company are also the directors of the related

companies. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The maximum amount outstanding
during the year was HK$1,065,000 (2020: HK$1,065,000).

© AL ERE
* RRASLE R
B -

(a) A BRASER ImAE  E
K 78 1 BEOR fE R o A AR
A o e e A A R o O
N T B A R 74 38,316,000
ot (= F X
18,315,000 # 7T.)

(b) &% 55 K TE By M A W] K

T - i A 2 ) 3 o d ok
Jedk - BEARME Lt Kk
5 AR TR £ 5% 5 R LN )
2o AT B4 B B SRR
S S R BB R AE R
AR N > B AR AEAT 42 B
#51,065,000% 75 (& =
L4 ¢ 1,065,000 5 7T)
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

45.1 (Continued)

(iii)

(v)

Outstanding related party balances included in trade
receivables, other assets, trade payables and other

liabilities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

©

(d)

©

®

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, amounts due to Mr. Shang
Jianguang and Mr Teguh Halim, directors of the Company,
were unsecured, interest bearing 5% per annum and repayable
within one year. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
interest expense of HK$5,535,000 (2020: HK$946,000) was
payable to the directors.

As at 31 December 2021, amounts due to a shareholder
of aggregate principal amount of HK$12,000,000 (2020:
HK$12,000,000) was unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per
annum and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2021, amounts due to a related company
of aggregate principal amount of HK$88,000,000 (2020:
Nil) was unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and
repayable within one year. The related company is controlled
by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a director of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, amounts due to associates of
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 (2020:
Nil) was unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and
repayable within one year.

Financial guarantee provided to Fair Future

As 31 December 2021, the Group has provided a corporate
guarantee in respect of a banking facility of up to
HK$145,000,000 (2020: HK$55,000,000) granted to Fair
Future (note 49.1). The corporate guarantee is ending on the

expiry of the term of the revolving loan facility.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with
the terms mutually agreed between the Group and the related

companies controlled by the directors.

45, B N+-32 5 (4

45.1

(#8)
(iii)

(iv)

AP ABECHR R A -
AR R B At B R 2 R AE A

B\ 88 (40
fiiE « ()
© MoFEERCFECF

@

©

EFZH=Z+—H >
A F) G @O e AR R
Teguh Halim S 3 £ FE4E
i~ 35 4E I 5% 5] S K 2H
W EAERE e R
A=+ —HIE4E
JE > ) #E S AN A S B S
5,535,000 #5 70 (& F4F
946,000 7C)

e St B SRS N
H > A4 458 £ 12,000,000 7
JG (=& 4R 1 12,000,000
W 0) A — 2 IR 2 3K
TE /% TG ~ e 47 ) 2R 5%
kB A — A N fE R

REZ— T -A=1—
H » 7 4 4% /% 88,000,000
W0 (CF AR )
A5t — [ A 2L ) L
ENE s B A S
AR B - % BHLA T
H AR R R R R S A
il o

/e S B S ety
H > 74 4% £ 10,000,000
IC (BT 4E) HREAT
Y8 ) T A S A~ 4
HEFI R 5% FH B KA —4F
TR o

) IR (I 2 P TE (R
AR H =
H > REME R TR —FHR
% 145,000,000 76 (—F &
4E 1 55,000,000 6) Z $R1T Rl
B FIE LR (FiE49.1) -
SRR R A G B B Rl & 1 R
Ji Yo IR L

SR 5 T A S B
A2 20 A 2 B
HEAT -
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45, BN LR @)
45.2 Key management personnel compensation: 452 EEEHAEZ M4
Included in staff costs are key management personnel compensation FEEHANB ZMEFA B TERA
and comprises the following categories: N> AEE LB
2021 2020
I et TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
TG THs T
Short-term employee benefits 2 1 0E B A8 24,002 18,674
Post-employment benefits A Mk A% A 355 352
24,357 19,026
The key management represents all directors of the Company. FTEEMANB AR LT TAES -
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 16.1 to i BH 4 22— 2P IR O 4
the consolidated financial statements. G AR ER M 5E16.1 -
46. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 46. HIEPEBHE LR 2 A2 5
INTERESTS
(@) Deeded acquisition of additional interest in Bendura Group (a) 1R 25 W o ot 4 T 22 A AP RE 2

In May 2021, Bendura Bank AG (“Bendura Bank™) repurchased
3,000 equity share of Bendura Bank at cash consideration
CHF2,456,370 (equivalent to HK$20,997,000). Following the
repurchase, the Company’s effective equity interest in Bendura
Group increased by 1.31%. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interest of HK$12,719,000 and a increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$8,278,000.

In June 2021, Bendura Group repurchased 6,000 equity share of
Bendura Bank at cash consideration CHF4,620,000 (equivalent
to HK$39,491,000). Following the repurchase, the Company’s
effective equity interest in Bendura Group increased by 2.75%.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interest of
HK$25,975,000 and a increase in equity attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$13,516,000.

In August 2021, Bendura Group repurchased 100 equity share of
Bendura Bank at cash consideration CHF45,000 (equivalent to
HK$384,000). Following the repurchase, the Company’s effective
equity interest in Bendura Group increased by 0.05%. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interest of HK$359,000
and a increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$25,000.

MoE R & BT
A BRA R ([E HR4T ) LI 4
R 18 2,456,370 Hi: -1 i HE (AH &
20,997,000 #5 7t) i [7] 3,000 i & Hh
SRATHE 25 I o BEEIAR > AN AR E
b A [ 2 B R M 4 0 1.319% o AR
45 [ e TR e e 2 ) 12,719,000
5 0 J AR m A N A E 45 38 T
8,278,000 %k JC °

ATEZ—NH o B AEE LI
4 {15 4,620,000 F - i BB (4 7
39,491,000 #5 7G) i 7] 6,000 i & Hh
SRATRE 2 I - W I 4% > AN ERE
b A [ 2 B R A HE 48 A0 2.759% o A<
£ [ e R I 2 LA 25 Uk 2 25,975,000
5 00 T AR F A N A A 45 338 Jin
13,516,000 % JC °

AR T —FNH > = L E D
B 45 815 45,000 Fi L 75 BE (FH 3 7%
384,000 ##5 o) f [2] 100 % = Hh 4R 17
HE 55 R o W 1% > AR\ F R B 4R
[ 2 B B R AE R 110 0.05% o A 4 [Hi ik
70 I 12 PR 25 39 20 359,000 5 TT Je AR
4 A AT N A HEE 4 384 1 25,000 75
5
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46. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

@

(b)

Deeded acquisition of additional interest in Bendura Group
(Continued)

The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Bendura Group on
the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year is
summarised as below:

46.

(@)

B I 2 B e 4 2 32 B (#0)

7 WO 4 T 2 A A
(%)

AR T M T R A HE R A 2 SR
SEIAO T AT N AL 2 2 5 B
AR

2021
HK$’000
Tt
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests £, Wi I JF £ % 1 4 = AR 1hi {H
acquired 39,053
Consideration paid for acquisition of Wi B 42 IR 4 £ S A 2 AR
non-controlling interests (60,872)
Excess of consideration paid recognised A T A R 2 B S AR AE 2 22
within equity (21,819)
Deeded acquisition of additional interest in Bendura Group (b) 1R 2 W o ot 4 T 22 A AP RE 4

In May 2020, Bendura Bank repurchased 400 equity shares at
cash consideration CHF326,000 (equivalent to HK$2,610,000).
Following the repurchase, the Company’s effective equity interest
in Bendura Group increased by 0.17%. The Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$1,730,000 and
a decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$880,000.

R EREH A B MR AT
Bl 4 1R 18 326,000 Hii -t 325 BB (FH 3 174
2,610,000 5 7T) 1 1] 400 [ 4 % o
W 1A% 5 AN A i b A ] 2 B
JEEREA TN 0.17% o A% 42 [ e 5R JE FE
HE 25 32> 1,730,000 #5 70 M A4 B HE
AN E A HE 25 20 880,000 5 T e
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46. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 46. HLJE
INTERESTS (Continued)
(b) Deeded acquisition of additional interest in Bendura Group (b)
(Continued)
In June 2020, Bendura Bank repurchased 100 equity shares at cash

consideration CHF45,000 (equivalent to HK$369,000). Following
the repurchase, the Company’s effective equity interest in Bendura
Group increased by 0.04%. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of HK$400,000 and a increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$31,000. The effect
of changes in the ownership interest of Bendura Group on the
equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year is
summarised as below:

R Z 5 ()

5 % W B R b 4 I 2 AR D RE 2
(#8)

R FEZRENH > BT U
Bl 41X 18 45,000 Fir 75 BB (FH 3 %
369,000 ¥ 70 ) =] 100 B HE 43 L - B
[B] 1% > A4S A M 4E [ 2 B PR A
RERE NN 0.04% o 75 8] e 5 I 2 P
%t I > 400,000 5 76 KA I HEA A
JEALHEZS 18 0 31,000 7 7T < 4E N - &
i A [0 0 A REE 25 2 S B AR N A
W NEALHE S 2 2Bl R

i

2020
SRR
HK$’000
T
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests T A i I 2 R 2 2 MR THT
acquired 2,130
Consideration paid for acquisition of WA S 2 RO 25 L S A 2 AR
non-controlling interests (2,979)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within A JBEHE R iERR 2 B oAU
equity i 22 B (849)
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47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

47. HAEBEW R RN

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: Pl 3 o 7 AR 2 B R R
Borrowings Dueto
excluding Duetoa Dueto related Dueto Lease
bank-overdrafts shareholder directors company associates liabilities
i3 TR —% Hf S B HEft

REELRS R ZHE BEAWHE  REAWSE HEAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

Tk Tk Tibx Tk Tk Tibx

Asat 1 January 2021 e e i | 1512111 12,000 2233 - - 57,510

Proceeds from new loans AT LT 1,134,366 - - - - -

Repayment of borrowings M (1552829) - - - - -

Advance to the Group ap:S - - 60,300 126,000 20,000 -

Repayment from the Group AEEER - - (8,018) (38,000) (10,000) -
Repayment of principal portion of BEfAEAEAETD

the lease liabilities - - - - - (39,635)

Interest paid EfHHI8 (57,765) - (625) - (1,236) (2,169)

Total changes from financing cash flow ~~ AER &R & B 4% 476222) - 51,657 88,000 8,764 (41,804)

Other changes: Hibzs :

Interest expenses HERE 57,765 - 5,535 646 1,236 2,169

Transfer to accruals HEREET - - (4910) (646) - -

Lease modification &gy - - - - - 51516

Exchange adjustments i3k 24,676 - - - - 1

As at 31 December 2021 REBZ-HFZH=E4-H 1,118330 12,000 13515 88,000 10,000 1,228
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47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 47.

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

HAEBHESREEWME @

Borrowings
excluding Duetoa Due to Lease
hank-overdrafts shareholder directors liahilities
58 TEft—24 fEft &%
BATEL IR B Z 308 A HEALR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tl Tl T T
Asat 1 January 2020 e e 2 S 1,692,068 12,000 22,241 83,975
Proceeds from new loans BN HH 765,148 - - -
Advance from directors FH - - 3,992 -
Repayment of loan fEiR - - (5,000) -
Repayment of borrowings ERfEE (939,838) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of BRAEAFA2TL
the lease liabilities - - - (41,59)
Interest paid ENAE (78,378) - (1,187) (3391)
Total changes from financing cash flow MERERERD AT (253,068) - (2,195) (44,987)
Other changes: Hi 5 -
Interest accrued FEHALE 78,378 - 1,187 3391
Increase in lease liabilities from entering A R R AT LA
into new leases during the year THE A Em - - - 4875
Lease modification REGH - - - 8,926
Exchange adjustments e 5 2 (5,267) - - 1,390
As at 31 December 2020 REZ2ZZE+ZH=+—H 1512111 12,000 21,233 57,510
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48. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CREDIT CARD
COMMITMENTS

48.1 Financial guarantees

48.2

48. WA IE R B AR B R R %

48.1 BABSIEMR

2021 2020

TR | R CFRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T 0 T

Financial guarantees FA TS5 145,000 55,000

At 31 December 2021, the Group had provided a corporate
guarantee in respect of a banking facility of up to HK$145,000,000
(2020: HK$55,000,000) granted to an associate. The corporate
guarantee is ending on the expiry of the term of the revolving loan
facility.

In the opinion of the directors, it is unlikely that a claim will be made
against the Group and no cash outflow under the financial guarantee
contract. The directors have assessed and considered the financial
impact arising from the above guarantee is insignificant.

Credit card commitments

As 31 December 2021, the Group had credit card commitments
of approximately HK$94,657,000 (2020: approximately
HK$93,762,000) given to third parties. Credit card commitments
represents the undrawn amount of credit card limits. In the opinion
of the directors, those credit commitments are given with collateral
and financial impact arising from the undrawn amount of credit card
limits is insignificant.

48.2

MR_EF_—4F+ZHA=+—H>
A E Gk — M s A R R L
145,000,000 % oG (= F — F4F :
55,000,000 5 C.) 2 S8R4T il B4R I
AIYELR o 28 R Y5O 0 R B 3K Al K
A R T G R A o

EHRS > MM B RS AEA
SRR R 2 P > HLIG
Bl o 2 Btk a8 Ay bt
WEORE L 2 P B AR -

fa H -k A&

MREFZ—4E A=+ —H &
LA R THE =2 FH &
#5 49 94,657,000 %5 0 (& A ¢
#193,762,000 % 70) ° {5 H R A& T
EHREEZ KRS - EFR
By o %S5[ BRI DA 2 T
AR AL > RILICZAF RS
B A 2 BT 5 BT LA o
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49.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group has various financial assets and financial liabilities such
as trading portfolio investments, derivative financial assets, cash and
deposits, due from banks and clients, trade receivables, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, other financial assets at
amortised cost, other assets, derivative financial liabilities, due to banks
and clients, trade payables, borrowings, due to a shareholder, due to
directors, lease liabilities and other liabilities, which arise directly from its
operations. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, fair
value risk and equity price risk.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of financial
instruments for speculative purposes. Its treasury department works
under the policies approved by the directors and identifies ways to access
financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial risk exposures.
Regular reports are provided to the directors. The board has reviewed and
agreed policies periodically for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

49.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49. T35 Il B A BE H B B BB ()

49.1 Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities by 49.1 ARLE B M 4l A S N
category
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial I SIS N e S |
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are = — B OERR 2 A A T < O
categorised as follows: 4 A IR TE (B 4 BT R
2021 2020
R4 R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T 70
Financial assets B g B
Financial assets at fair value: Fie N THESIIR 2 S RilEE
— Due from banks — JE W SR AT B IH 121,114 130,055
— Trading portfolio investments — G MGG 86,130 80,310
— Derivative financial assets — AT A A& = 34,608 29,224
241,852 239,589
Financial assets at amortised cost: T SN A S iR 2
SrRlE E
— Cash and deposits —Bl4 R A7 6,531,968 5,612,645
— Due from clients — R & PRI 3,068,719 2,463,225
— Due from banks — B W ERAT AR IE 1,913,076 5,336,205
— Trade receivables — MEWSCHR 3¢ 378,227 391,747
— Other financial assets at amortised cost — P AR S R 2 HAt
4 V& B 1,852,934 1,449,886
— Other assets — HoAth ¥ 2 234,988 258,809
13,979,912 15,512,517
Financial assets at fair value through other AR R A A A T
comprehensive income A 2 4 Rl& B 504,117 470,794
14,725,881 16,222,900
Financial liabilities 4 il £ i B
Financial liabilities at fair value: TN TESIE 2 4 Rl A K
— Due to clients — A% 5 R 121,250 130,119
— Derivative financial liabilities — A 4 LB 47,955 31,334
169,205 161,453
Financial liabilities measured at PR AT R 2 4l
amortised cost: 418 -
— Due to banks — JREAT SR AT R I 15,126 2,639
— Due to clients —JEAT & F IR 12,629,042 13,835,358
— Trade payables — AT AR K 409,555 360,624
— Borrowings —fE8E 1,176,635 1,564,822
— Lease liabilities —TH 5 A 77,228 57,570
— Due to a shareholder — A — & B R 2 3K 12,000 12,000
— Due to directors — B4 HE 2 3KIH 73,515 21,233
— Other liabilities — HoAth £ £ 586,133 381,520
14,979,234 16,235,766
15,148,439 16,397,219
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.2

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings and bank deposits. Borrowings and bank deposits
bearing variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
interest rate and repayment terms of the borrowings outstanding at
the end of the reporting period are disclosed in note 35.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings and bank deposits with
a floating interest rate.

Sensitivity Analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s loss after
income tax and increase/decrease the Group’s retained profits
by approximately HK$16,219,000 (2020: increase/decrease the
Group’s loss after income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$16,427,000). The assumed changes have no impact on the
Group’s other components of equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of reporting
period. The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to
be reasonably possible changes on observation of current market
conditions and represent management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the next twelve month period.

The calculation is based on a change in average market interest rates
for each period, and the financial instruments held at each reporting
date that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. All other variable
are held constant. The sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31
December 2020 has been prepared on the same basis.

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

49.2

ESIN

) 25 g B 4 il R 2 A T B
5 L B PR TR 5 8 25 A T e B 2 J
B A B o AN AR 2 ) e L By T R
H H B R RATAR 3K o A< 22 B 50 1l R
iR B RGE BB 2 8 RRITH
AT 3] B < i i ) 5 L B e T (L
QRSN RS e SR NGRS S 4
B2 A3 B AR RO i 5 35 4808k

7S 1 O T S T 55 6 5 ) L By
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5 R BE 43 M
AZEZ—HFE+ZA=+—H &
BB A A DN 2 A N A TR
A SRAE R -, W5 501 AL
SN A BOA B [ 2 [ T A5 o A% s 1R
b BN R A 4 T 2 AR B8 i A 4
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49. T35 Il B A BE H B B BB ()

49.3 A R )R B3

49.3 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly operates in
Hong Kong, Switzerland, United Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated and settled in HKS,
US$, Euro, CHF, GBP and RMB. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk primarily arise from certain financial instruments
including financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, other assets, cash and deposits, due from clients and banks,
trading portfolio investments, derivative financial assets, other
financial assets at amortised cost, due to clients, derivative financial
liabilities, other liabilities and borrowings which are denominated
in US$, Euro, CHF, GBP and RMB. The management continuously
monitors the foreign exchange exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s major financial assets
and financial liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the respective group companies as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

A1 JR B 4 < il R 2 AT ECR
BB 42 i R R 4 A3 Bl 1T 5 Bl 2
B oo AL EZIRNAWE - It
 PISE R B R AR R
oy 22 5 LA 7T ~ 30T ~ BT - it
EER - R AN RWEIIE KA -
2 SIUNITE S b N e S Y E B
TRAZETC ~ BT - i ik B - Se gt
RNRWIE 2 M T G
OFEFEA AL R T I 2 5l
E o~ A E - Bl RAF R - BB
FFRBATHE - K HAGHE
T A 4 T~ SRR A S R
Fofth il 0 - MEAH 20 P 3RO - Al
LEmMAR - HMUAaELESR -8
H g — B B A A M JEL B o

TRBER F R F L
F+ A=+ DAL B4
M AR % A RE R M LLA 2 B S
B B EERema -

Expressed in HK$’000
VT #7025

Us$ Euro CHF GBP RMB
Rt Bt I ¥ ARHE

As at 31 December 2021 KRB 4EFZHAZ+—H
Cash and deposits Bl R A 1413 4,597,020 = = 49
Due from clients JE % F RH 209,224 1,743,799 - - -
Due from banks JE IS4 R 1,393,182 84,626 - - -
Trading portfolio investments THEATE 9,558 - - - -
Derivative financial assets fiit G 24,940 205 = = =
Financial assets at fair value N TEFA M2

through other comprehensive WAZ & REE

income - - - - 147,133
Financial assets at amortised cost 488 A1 iR 2 4 i E e 1,167,302 401,302 = = =
Other assets Hib &R 24,267 3,321 - - -
Due to clients JEfT % F 30 (6,824,021)  (3,701,856) = = =
Due to banks JEAT 4R 17 3 - - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities it A (23,107) (23,202) = = =
Borrowings fi & - - - - -
Other liabilities HoAth £ {7 (11,719) (2,479) = = =
Overall net exposure 480 D e v (4,028,961) 3,102,736 = - 147,182




295 CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED  Jefdfifi &k ok B 4 Ml 47 PR A )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

49.3  Hb R BE (45)

49.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Expressed in HK$’000

DLW 70 251
Us$ Euro CHF GBP RMB
EH Bt Hi LR X NG
As at 31 December 2020 Ro-E_ZE+_H=+—H
Cash and deposits Be Bfr 101,794 1,819,104 544 350 1,193
Due from clients RN & B e 151,392 1,561,935 - - =
Due from banks TSR T 20 4,084,914 204,320 - - -
Trading portfolio investments Tl aHRE = 26,118 - - -
Derivative financial assets MEEMERE 232 28,306 - - -
Financial assets at fair value A TR AR 2T
through other comprehensive WAZLRGEE
income = = - - 131,636
Financial assets at amortised cost 8 & i A 71| B 2 4 il B 7 908,663 484,138 - - -
Other assets HApb gz 47,106 1,904 = = 10,198
Due to clients JEAT % F 2008 (8,122,566)  (4,073,165) - - -
Due to banks JEE A SR AT HOR (2639) - - - -
Derivative financial liabilities it AE (30,738) (360) - - -
Borrowings g (732,630) - = = =
Other liabilities Hih & & (6,312) (2,915) - - -
Overall net exposure o B o (3,600,784) 49,385 544 350 143,027

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s
loss/profit for the year and fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve (due to the change in fair value of the financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income) in response
to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting
period. The sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances is in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. A
positive number below indicates decrease in loss (2020: a decrease
in loss) and increase in fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve where the underlying functional currency weakens
against the relevant foreign currency. For a strengthening of
the underlying functional currency against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss/
profit and fair value through other comprehensive income, and the
balances below would be negative.

TREURAEE (H %A EFA
FOAt 2 TS 2 4l 2 N T{E
S E) WA 42 B O R A R
JE\ B 2 S RE I 5 2 5 38 W B 58 ) fT
1ty 2 AR BE R 4Rt A1) R 4 00 F
s A SH A 4 T A fob A 2 AR A6
By o BRI S0 T B4 AR 42 T 2 7 )
R o AEER DL IR SN BAE A
ZURE R BWHIE - LT IEH
7 H I 2 E M LA B S B (L
BT - R (R T4E
D) Bl N FERE A A A T
it H G < ik A R D B R R LA
BRI THE - RS4RI R d
O PAEFTA FCA 2 T A A RS K
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49.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.3  Hb R B (49)

49. T35 Il B A BE H B B BB ()

2021 2020
SRk -l

Effect on Effect on

fair value Change in fair value

Change in Effecton  through other foreign Effect on through other

foreign loss for  comprehensive exchange loss for  comprehensive

exchange rates the year  income reserve rates the year  income reserve

B n T HEATE

At ASLAl R A A

BARERE 2O BAEE  AWRARE

EREEH  EHZEE 2 Ex%E  EHPE Va7

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000

T Tt T T

uss$ ey +5% 201,448 - +5% 148,338 -
-5% (201,448) - -5% (148,338) -

Euro o +5% (151,136) - +5% 2,469 -
-5% 151,136 - -5% (2,469) -

CHF B 1A HB +5% - - +5% (27) -
-5% - - -5% 27 -

GBP gk +5% - = +5% (18) -
-5% - - -5% 18 -

RMB ARH +5% %) 7,356 +5% (569) 6,582
-5% 2 (7,356) -5% 569 (6,582)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is
assumed that there is no significant exposure expected on financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ for Group companies
whose functional currency is HK$ since HK$ are pegged to USD.
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the group entities’ profit
for the year and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of reporting period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

B 7 2 5 3 AR 3R A B i 3 A1 B MR 56
REZET FEREH IR Z &
FH W] REAE B 2 Al o mEULIN > R
WEoCHL ST - MO R IIRER
W T s oo 2 AR S B 3 R LA S ST Tt
{2 =l EE & B A G RIEAEAT
FERER - EREINZAER
PR 4% 52 T B A 4 AL i ) 2
A (L4 2 BE 8 Wt B R i il
WRKRE A 251 Tl 2 AR/
WBIT) AR T RS
Z 53 KT R A ] S e
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instruments and cause a financial loss to the Group.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the assets
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition.

It considers available reasonable and supportive forward looking
information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

. external credit rating (as far as available)

. actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligations

. actual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of the counterparty

. significant expected changes in the performance and
behaviour of the counterparty, including changes in the
payment status of counterparties in the group and changes in
the operating results of the counterparty

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are
unbiased and probability-weighted, and incorporate all available
information that is relevant to the assessment including information
about past events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable
forecasts of future events and economic conditions at the reporting
date. In addition, the estimation of ECL should take into account the
time value of money.

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

494 f B )R B
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued) 49.4 5 8RB (48)

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to the cash
and deposit, due from clients and banks, trade receivables, other
financial assets at amortised cost and other assets.

The credit risk of the cash and deposit is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with good reputation. No
impairment had been provided under 12-month expected credit loss
assessment.

The credit risk of due from clients and banks (excluding the precious
metal) is determined based on the combination of the internal
and external credit rating, the average debt recovery, peer review
information and comparison with publically available date. The
Group calculates ECL using three main components: a probability
of default, a loss given default (‘LGD’) and the exposure at default
(‘EAD’). The 12-month ECL is calculated by multiplying the
12-month PD, LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using
the lifetime PD instead. The 12-month and lifetime PDs represent
the probability of default occurring over the next 12 months and
the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD
represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the
repayment of principal and interest from the balance sheet date
to the default event together with any expected drawdowns of
committed facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the
EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other
attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money. Expected credit
losses for due from banks and clients of HK$593,000 has been
recognised (2020: expected credit losses for due from banks and
clients of HK$278,000) under expected credit loss assessment for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The balance of due from clients also subject to concentration
risk which the ten largest single exposures encompass
HK$1,402,533,000 (2020: HK$1,116,031,000), which are related to
due from clients of the banking business as of 31 December 2021.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group adopts the “ECL model” on its debt instruments which
are classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost in
accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 9. For financial assets
that are included in the measurement of ECL, the Group evaluates
whether the credit risks of related financial assets have increased
significantly since initial recognition. The “three stage” impairment
model is used to measure their loss allowances respectively to
recognise ECL and their movements. The ECL assessment made
by the Group mainly reference to the internal and market credit
rating information. Amount to HK$2,014,000 (2020: provision for
impairment allowance of HK$29,348,000) impairment allowance
on other financial assets at amortised cost has been reversed after the
assessment during the year.

For the trade receivables, the Group carries out regular review
on these balances and follow-up action on any overdue amounts
to minimise exposures to credit risk. The Group measures the
lifetime expected credit losses based on the outstanding balances
and historical credit loss experience adjusted to reflect the Group’s
view of current and forecast economic conditions that may affect
the ability of the debtors to settle receivables. Amounted to
HK$2,361,000 (2020: HK$16,960,000) impairment allowance
had been provided under expected credit loss assessment which
calculated using simplified approach according to the ageing by due
date disclose in note 22.

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

494 5 BJRBE (4%)
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)
The loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 was determined for
trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces business as
follows:

49.4 f5 8 By ()
AR —FE+_HA=1+—HEE
2 S b T R R S S R ROR
HEAHWT

31 December 2021

—2-—#+ZA=+—H

Gross carrying

amount

Expected credit  (after excluding

loss rate —weighted  credit-impaired
average (%) balance)  Loss allowance Net amount

T B I T 4 0

— T2 (bR 5 £
(%)  WAKERR) i 4R 8t T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ttz Tt Tt
Not yet pass due 1 7 i 14 0.4% 213549 (854) 212,695
Overdue within 90 days 3 M/ R A 90 K 11% 36,538 (402) 36,136
Overdue 91 to 180 days 91 % 180 K 31% 51,713 (1,603) 50,110
Overdue over 180 days R 180 K 7.10% to & 100% 151,038 (77,782) 73,256
Total A5t 452,838 (80,641) 372,197

31 December 2020 R OFRET+A=1+—H

Gross carrying

amount

Expected credit  (after excluding

loss rate —weighted ~ credit-impaired
average (%) balance) ~ Loss allowance Net amount

LI agiEs R T 4 1

—InHEF-y (AR £
6)  BEARE) AN X
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tk Tt Tk
Not yet pass due i A48 4 0.40% 268,969 (1,076) 267,893
Overdue within 90 days /S R A 90 K 1.10% 30,129 (333) 29,796
Overdue 91 to 180 days 91 F 180 K 3.10% 45,543 (1,412) 44,131
Overdue over 180 days s 4 At 180 K 7.10% to % 100% 114,057 (73,786) 40,211
Total B3t 458,698 (76,607) 382,091
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

For the other assets mainly comprise of rental deposits, dividend
receivables, amounts due from an associate and related parties.
Management considers rental deposits do not have significant
credit risk since the deposits are refundable from landlords upon
end of lease term or recoverable by the Group through using
the leased property. For the remaining balance, given the short
term nature of these assets, the ECL is had been provided under
12-month expected credit loss assessment given credit risk has not
increase significantly since initial recognition. The management has
provided an ECL provision of HK$786,000 (2020: HK$826,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2021 after their assessment.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
have assessed the past due status of the debts under guarantee, the
financial position of the debtors as well as the economic outlook
of the industries in which the debtors operate, and concluded that
there has not been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly, the
loss allowance for financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

In both years, the amount of loss allowance is lower than the
premium less cumulative amortisation, therefore, no loss allowance
was recognised in profit or loss for the financial guarantee contract.

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

494 5 BJRBE (4%)

HoAth & B FE T A 4R 4 ~ Bk
Ji 2~ e — FHT e 2 2 ) T TR
K IE o I R A A 4 i 4 I 4
KA SR o TR IR 2 AR A Ry
SN AT ply 2 R R R A s 4R [ ]
7 it A AR B 2 el 4 4 o SR
ERESER S > R L B E 2
PR - R G B R B A W) AR
DLACSIE R i T FE (G Bk iR
2 128 A IS B AT G a4
5o BEHGKFTEBEOHBE_F
Tt A=+ H IR EERHR
T A5 £ 5 1843 f 786,000 ¥ It (=
E LA 826,000 0T) ©

A HCE IR - AN T HE O R I
PRIE N A5 2 @ R a IR P~ A5
N Z B IR L A Be £ 5 N\ R 48 BT A
172 KEPSHI B - AT i 455w > A
BRI B I AR G A AR B
B Il K BT e BRI - A AR
B MBS OR G 2 2 s IR A 1 A
E 1218 A FHE Bk 2 S e

=
H °

P 7 I 4 BE 2 M 8 A < R A Y
i (8 2 S > PRI > NI A
B PR A0 I 1R i o e AR AT Al R
1M -
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49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

0)

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. %5 B 4 PR H AR R BUE ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)
49.4 {5 B R B (%)
Maximum credit risk exposure of the Group () A 5w A R R
The maximum exposure to credit risk (excluding cash AR AR > BB 4 AR
and deposits as at the end of reporting date without taking PhAh 2 mcm s B R (R &1 &
into consideration of any collateral held or other credit AT AR T A5 A o A A
enhancement) is represented by the net balance of each type HA%) &5 A BB IR DL 3 P 4
of financial assets in the consolidated statement of financial B G RG22 AR IHE (841
position (after deducting any impairment allowance). A BRAEAT I (B R 12) 251 - e
summary of the maximum exposure is as follows: Yl
At 31 December 2021 R AETFH=4—H
Non-banking
Banking Financial  and financial
business business businesses Total
Fe T R
YTE S SMEH EMEH At
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
SR T T SR
Due from clients T F 3 3,068,719 - - 3,068,719
Due from banks JE Wit 8R A7 R 2,034,190 = - 2,034,190
Trading portfolio investments 22 5 4l & 1% & 9,558 20,281 56,291 86,130
Derivative financial assets i S & E 34,608 = = 34,608
Trade receivables JEN 3k = 6,030 372,197 378,227
Financial assets at fair e FEFA M2 IRA Z
value through other SHMEE
comprehensive income - - 504,117 504,117
Other financial assets at S B AR B e 2 H A 4
amortised cost B 1,852,934 - = 1,852,934
Other assets HA 18,354 6,869 209,765 234,988
7,018,363 33,180 1,142,370 8,193,913
Credit card commitments, fE R AR » Auf ik el
irrevocable commitment R LR 2 W (R
and guarantee provided 125,364 - 145,000 270,364
Maximum credit risk exposure % i {5 £ JE & 7,143,727 33,180 1,287,370 8,464,217
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. A% R B 4 B H B K BUR ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued) 49.4 1 B R B (%)
(i)  Maximum credit risk exposure of the Group (Continued) ()  AH P Z 5 s B Rk ()
At 31 December 2020 R_F_FES _H=1—H
Non-banking
Banking Financial and financial
business business businesses Total
JER1T R
SRAT A & TS SRES At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt Tt T T
Due from clients T % F 200 2,463,225 - - 2,463,225
Due from banks JE W SR AT 2R 5,466,260 - - 5,466,260
Trading portfolio investments &2 5 4l & 1% & 26,118 18,134 36,058 80,310
Derivative financial assets it & E 29,224 - - 29,224
Trade receivables JRE i B - 9,656 382,001 391,747
Financial assets at fair BT AR M2 TIA Z
value through other SMEE
comprehensive income - - 470,794 470,794
Other financial assets at RS A 5 e 2 Eo At
amortised cost B 1,449,886 - - 1,449,886
Other assets HibERE 43,402 12,792 202,615 258,809
9,478,115 40,582 1,091,558 10,610,255

Credit card commitments, fa R RS ~ Arl g

irrevocable commitment RIS R AR 2 8 1R
and guarantees provided 127,884 - 55,000 182,884
Maximum credit risk exposure % i 7 L&z 9,605,999 40,582 1,146,558 10,793,139
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 5 8RB (48)
(i) HBOTEBEEERI S
R T

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)
(if)  Credit exposure by quality of assets of the banking business
is as follows:

As at 31 December 2021 W2 —4t+-H=1+—H

Book value
No external of impaired
AAAt0 AA A+toBBB- BBt or lower rating [oans net Total
Ck{ B3
MARZEAAS A+BEBBB-%  BB+AKEIR  WHEHE  ZREFE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Due from banks FER R 73R 1,161,855 845,178 - 21157 = 2,034,190
Due from clients TElEF R - - - 3,066,802 1917 3,068,719
Financial instruments 4@ T 979,819 869,808 - 12,865 = 1,862,492
Other assets LibEeE = = = 18,354 = 18,354
Derivative financial it M TR
instruments 5203 17,148 - 11,657 - 34,608
2,146,877 1,732,734 - 3,136,835 1,917 7,018,363
Credit card ERYA
commitments UL (AR
and irrevocable TR AR
commitment and
guarantee provided 1,416 93,241 - 30,707 - 125,364
As at 31 December 2020 W2 FE+_H=1+—H
Book value
No external of impaired
AAAt0 AA A+toBBB- BB+ or lower rating [oans net Total
B {E AN
AMAREAAGL A+HEBBB-R BB+HEEMR IS ZRERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Due from banks BT 2,035,886 3,364,102 - 66,272 - 5,466,260
Due from clients e % PR - = = 2,461,063 2162 2463225
Financial instruments SHIE 669,870 715,315 2,849 21910 - 1,476,004
Other assets HibEE - - - 43402 - 43402
Derivative financial TR
instruments 147 293 - 28,784 - 29224
2,705,903 4,139,710 2,849 2,627,491 2,162 9,478,115
Credit card ElIRYSA
commitments AU R A
and irmevocable Rt R
commitment and
guarantee provided 2,376 - - 125,508 - 127,884
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(Continued)

494 5 BJRBE (4%)

The above table shows the quality of assets according to the
external ratings available. Financial instruments without a
rating are mainly instruments for which there is no external
rating available. Amounts due from clients are allocated to

the category “no external rating”.

Credit exposure by collateral of the banking business is as

follows:

As at 31 December 2021

(#8)

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

E R IR AR A SRR T AR
B AR - WRT e TR
LRI EREI AR < TH o
JE W 7 15 SR TR B 5y [ RS

R -

e BRAT SEHS A

BB

#2157

Ro2—#+ZH=+—H

Mortgage- Other
backed collateral  No collateral Total
DR MK RSG5 Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt T T
Due from banks JE SR AT RIH - - 2,034,190 2,034,190
Due from clients of which el B 2 IR P sk
mortgage loan
— Residential property —fEEYE 1,333,612 24 106 1,333,742
- Office and business property —WNE R RE 170,113 - - 170,113
— Commercial and industrial ~ T
property 460,380 - - 460,380
- Other — A 15,570 1,072,415 16,499 1,104,484
Financial instruments SRMTHE - - 1,852,934 1,852,934
Trading portfolio investments ZHHERE - - 9,558 9,558
Derivative financial instruments ik eMTHE - - 34,608 34,608
Other assets A - - 18,354 18,354
1,979,675 1,072,439 3,966,249 7,018,363
Credit card commitments and {5 R &S ~ AR
irrevocable commitment and TRIE R AR 2 #e (R
guarantee provided 18,930 89,455 16,979 125,364
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued) 49.4 5 8RB (48)
(iii)  (Continued) (i) (4
As at 31 December 2020 R_F_FES _H=1—H
Mortgage- Other
backed collateral No collateral Total
PSR AR SR 5 At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T Tt T
Due from banks JE W SR AT 2R - - 5,466,200 5,466,200
Due from clients of which Hein R 2 IR F 3R
mortgage loan
— Residential property —fEEYE 1,147,344 116 67 1,147,527
- Office and business property —WNE R RmE 128,096 - - 128,096
— Commercial and industrial ~ L%
property 191,082 - 15 191,007
- Other —HApth 7,112 982,094 7,299 996,505
Financial instruments SRTHE - - 1,449,886 1,449,886
Trading portfolio investments ZHHARE - - 26,118 26,118
Derivative financial instruments it TA - - 29,224 29,224
Other assets Hofth ¥ - - 43,402 43,402
1,473,634 982,210 7,022,271 9,478,115
Credit card commitments and fa RS ~ AT
irrevocable commitment and RIE R AR 2 S I
guarantee provided 34,122 93,762 - 127,884
The above table shows that secured lending represents b RN A A A KR A

constantly more than 90 per cent of the total due from clients. JEE W 7 5 K TE AR 248 90% o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

49.4 f5 &R BE (44)

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

Credit risk by geographical sector of the banking business is (iv) FEERAT LT Hh [ [k 1) 4y 2
as follows: {E&R T -
As at 31 December 2021 RoZ——p}—H=1—H
Europe
(excluding
Switzerlandand ~ Switzerland and
Liechtenstein Liechtenstein) Other Total
Bk
Wtk (Al k
P % B L% P % HA1%) Al Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tk Tik Tib
Due from banks JE N8R AT 3K 1,418,892 615,298 = 2,034,190
Due from clients e R 20 936,931 1,798,219 333,569 3,068,719
Trading portfolio investments THHEERE 9,558 = = 9,558
Financial instruments ST H 8,802 815,799 1,028,333 1,852,934
Other assets Hofth g 15,344 2,989 21 18354
Derivative financial instruments e T A 9731 24.802 75 34,608
2,399,258 3,257,107 1,361,998 7,018,363
Credit card commitments and B HFRME - K]
irrevocable commitment and e 7 A I
guarantee provided Rz R 110,534 14,441 389 125,364
2,509,792 3,271,548 1,362,387 7,143,727
As at 31 December 2020 wWo—Z#E+_H=+—H
Europe
(excluding
Switzerlandand ~ Switzerland and
Liechtenstein Liechtenstein) Other Total
B
Wtk (REfHEHL K
AR FI %) HAl A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fib Fib Fib Tt
Due from banks JE SR A7 7 2,964,806 2,501,454 = 5,466,260
Due from clients TR % F 30 508,759 1,954,466 = 2,463,225
Trading portfolio investments ZHMEHRE 26,118 = = 26,118
Financial instruments SRTH - 592,897 856,989 1,449,886
Other assets HAh 32,955 10,426 21 43,402
Derivative financial instruments e T A 507 27,119 1,598 29,224
3,533,145 5,086,362 858,608 9,478,115
Credit card commitments and fa RS ~ R
irrevocable commitment and e A B
guarantee provided fefit 2 R 116,775 10,039 1,070 127,884
3,649,920 5,096,401 859,678 9,605,999
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

V)

49. T35 Il B A BE H B B BB ()

49.4 5 8RB (48)
(Continued) (iv) (F&)
The above table shows a concentration in due from banks and b HUOR R B B S
clients as well as financial instruments outside Switzerland HEHLINRAT RRF &
and Liechtenstein. As at 31 December 2021, outside TH R e THREG - jh = F
Switzerland and Liechtenstein commitments amounted to ——%t+ZHA=1+—H: %
HK$4,719,459,000 (2020: HK$5,956,079,000), or 66% + B 3 S A B DA RYE B
(2020: 62%) percent of the total lending volume. 4,719,459,000% 76 (—F =&
£ 1 5,956,079,000 #570) > Bk A
BB 2 66% (& TAE
62%) °
Credit risk by counterparty of the banking business is as (v) IRBITEHLHB TG
follows: & BB T
As at 31 December 2021 R_F_—ET_A=1—H
Private and
institutional
Public sector investment
Central banks Banks entities clients Other Total
BAR
L7 i ABER WERXEER o Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Due from banks TEf AT R - 2,034,190 - - - 2,034,190
Due from clients FEW % F 38 - - - 3,088,719 - 3,088,719
Other financial assets 1% 4 & B4 51l i 2
at amortised cost Hio g - 1,014,986 334,076 503,872 9558 1,862,492
Derivative financial ~ fii 4B TR
instruments - 22,951 11,657 - - 34,608
Other assets K& - - 3 18,351 = 18,354
- 3,072,127 345,736 3,590,942 9,558 7,018,363
Credit card e fR7&YE A
commitments i e 4
and irrevocable it 2 07
commitment
and guarantee
provided - 6,370 88,287 30,707 - 125,364
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

V)

(vi)

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

494 5 BJRBE (4%)

(Continued) (v) (&)
As at 31 December 2020 REBDRETH=14—H
Private and
intitutional
Public sector investment
Central banks Banks entities clients Other Total
AR
R AT 17 NEEE BEREEF Hith M5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i Tl Tl Tl T T
Due from banks TEf AT R - 5,466,260 - - - 5,466,260
Due from clients Tl & F R - - - 2,463,225 - 2,463,225
Other financial assets ¢ B8 A5k 2
atamortisedcost ~ HAABBREE - 1,053,351 84,447 312,088 26,118 1,476,004
Derivative financial Ak 4 TR
instruments - 440 - 28,784 - 29,224
Other assets Hofh g - 8,200 3 35,199 - 43402
- 6,528,251 84,450 2,839,296 26,118 9,478,115
Credit card RS AN
commitments i I 4
and irrevocable REZBR
commitment
and guarantee
provided - 5890 - 121,994 - 127,884
The above table shows a concentration of bank EREURBIT RSB TFETH
counterparties, which is managed by a limit system. This B A PR R BB - SR AR AR
process ensures the diversification of the counterparties 28 5 3 F T BT g 4 T 43 o
themselves as well as the counterparty domiciles. Financial N A E R T 2 4 L H B
instruments issued by corporate entities are allocated to the K [ FAN R IE K | -
category “private and institutional investment clients”.
Offsetting (vi) K84

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

A A AR EHAT REA RS
i W 4B L % ) 4 O A L e
i > SR R R B A T
I - B A B il B
AR - BRI AR & MBS
AR DLR N H
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued) 49.4 5 8RB (48)
(vi) Offsetting (continued) (vi) &S ()

Financial assets subject to offsetting
WTEHZ 2l E
Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position

HERGEMBRAEHEHZ ML 8
Gross amount
of recognised ~ Net amount of
financial  financial assets
liabilities offset  presented in the Financial
Grossamount  in the statement consolidated instruments
of recognised of financial statement of otherthan ~ Cash collateral
financial assets position  financial position ~ cash collateral received Net amount

RRHRRRY  REAMH
O Mmeowd RRFPEAZ  SMTR(E

EHEEAR  SRARNE  SEEERE KRR CUBIEEAR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 31 December 2021
REBZ-EFZHZT-H
Type of financial assets M AR
Trade receivables from Fel & R R ok
clearing house 312 (249) 123 - - 123
At 31 December 2020

REF-FELZA=1-H
Type of financial assets HEEHE

%
Trade receivables from TE M B i
clearing house 8,010 (3:387) 4623 - - 4623
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)
(vi) Offsetting (Continued)

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

49.4 5 BJREE (47)
(vi) & ()

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

LRt P4 5o

Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position

SRR ARSI R 28
Gross amount
of recognised ~ Netamount of
financial assets ~ financial liabilities
Gross amount offsetinthe  presented in the Financial
of recognised consolidated consolidated instruments
financial statement of statementof  otherthancash  Cash collateral
liabilities ~financial position ~ financial position collateral received Net amount
A ¥ 3
BB I BB MR
(B T/ it AR 2z (B el
SHARAE  CHEEME  SRARTE Kb Bk HHl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 31 December 2021
e S B 8 Sl
Type of financial liabilities 474 & f Y
Trade payables toclearing  FEfT4E 8 ff 2 Bk
house 577 (249) 38 - - 38
At 31 December 2020
REZZREFA=-H
Type o financial liabiities 4B £ (7K
Trade payables toclearing M 455 2 B3k
house 3387 (3.387) - - - -
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(vi)

Offsetting (Continued)

49.4 5 BJRBE (4%)

The tables below reconcile the amounts of trade receivables
and trade payables as presented in the consolidated statement

8 (%)

TRAER

St 5 JE B 4 BE H BR M BOR ()

W 5 IR L 3 BT

52 51 JE SR L B A+ iR ik 2

of financial position: HEY
2021 2020
I St CE R
HK$’000 HK$°000
Trade receivables JREE WAL W 75k T L TUs I
Net amount of trade receivables from PR Wi 46 AL i R i AR
clearing house 123 4,623
Trade, loan and interest receivables not in the A 7E 14 1% 75 i & 2 1
scope of offsetting disclosure W RRAR - MBI
JRE i ) S 378,104 387,124
Trade, loan and interest receivables as disclosed £ & B IR Il 26 Fir 41 5%
in the consolidated statement of financial Z EYHRR ~ R
position N RE R B 378,227 391,747
2021 2020
- ey TR AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Trade payables JRE £5F W 3k T L THETT
Net amount of trade payables to clearing house  J {5} &% - It i 2 1 48 328 =
Trade payables not in the scope of offsetting A~ 7 F1% 814 % 2% i [ 2.
disclosure JRE AT HR R 409,227 360,624
Trade payables as disclosed in the consolidated %57 HA %5 4R i 2 T 43 &%
statement of financial position 2 WEAT R 409,555 360,624
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not able to meet
its obligation associated with its financial liabilities. The Group
manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled
debt servicing payments for long-term financial liabilities as well
as cash-outflows due in day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are
monitored on a day-to-day basis. Long-term liquidity needs for a
360-day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group maintains mainly cash to meet its liquidity requirements
for up to 30-day periods. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is
additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the reporting date of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flow (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Specially, for bank borrowings which
contain a repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at
the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based
on the earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

49.5 B & & B

B g B A O O SR AT
=l B A B AT 2 LB A B o A
AR ERERIN SR AL
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.5 i B) & < L B (7)
REZZ—#+"H=+—H

49.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021

Total contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year
amount cash flow or on demand Over 1 year
HHARIH LR
WKifE  BAeRERAH TR B4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$7000 HK$’000
T T Tt Tt
Non-derivative financial JeRi A R £ 18
liabilities
Due to banks JE A 6447 3 15,126 15,126 15,126 =
Due to clients JEfT % F 3 12,750,292 12,750,292 12,750,292 =
Trade payables JEE f Bk 409,555 409,555 409,555 =
Borrowings fE & 1,176,635 1,235,466 944,198 305,832
Lease liabilities HEARK 77,228 95,753 34,556 61,197
Due to directors JE {3 2 U 73515 77,190 77,190 =
Due to a shareholder JE A — 4 IR ok 2 R 12,000 12,600 12,600 =
Other liabilities Hi A5 586,133 586,133 = =
15,100,484 15,182,115 14,243 517 367,029
Maximum contractual BERARHEH
amount
Financial guarantee issued O3 A R = 145,000 = =
Credit card commitments fi R R YE - 94,657 = =
Irrecoverable commitments A BT 2 A - 30,707 = =
= 270,364 = =
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020

€

T

B RN

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

495 i B < LB (7)
REZZZFE+ZH=+—H

Total contractual

Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year
amount cash flow or on demand Over 1 year
BRAMB LTFEREL

JEHE  BHAeRELH BEK i 14E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SR Tt Tt THT

Non-derivative financial FEAT A 42 b £ 15

liabilities
Due to banks JE (8147 3R 2,639 2,639 2,639 =
Due to clients FEf % F 308 13,835,358 13,835,358 13,835,358 =
Trade payables JE i Bk 360,624 360,624 360,624 =
Borrowings (i8-8 1,564,822 1,599,691 1,589,593 10,098
Lease liabilities T A & 57,570 72,398 35,756 36,642
Due to directors JEE A} 3 5 2 3 12,000 12,600 12,600 =
Due to a shareholder JEA— 2 R 2 3K 21,233 22,026 22,026 =
Other liabilities H i 494,874 494,874 494,874 =
16,349,120 16,400,210 16,353,470 46,740
Maximum contractual BREHEH
amount

Financial guarantee issued CL 38 P O = 55,000 = =
Credit card commitments fa B R ARSE - 93,762 = =
Irrecoverable commitments AT g [e] 3 = 34,122 = =
- 182,884 = =

Liquidity risk also arises when there is mismatch between amounts
and maturity dates of financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Group manages liquidity risk by holding liquid assets
(including cash and deposits, financial instruments and other assets)
of appropriate quality and quantity to ensure that short term funding
requirements are covered within prudent limits.

UL 38 By T o S e il T
Fil B L R B F ST A

ACAE FB A R R R
VB E B (LA B B A7~ el
T e FOAt ) A P ) <
B > DA PR 7E K85 1 i 52 2 BRAE K

HEEMERR -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables indicates the analysis by remaining maturities

of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities:

As at 31 December 2021

49. T35 Il B A BE H B B BB ()

i B e R B (A
TRIURAL B LG T EWHFE

EMEERABEZ I

W HEt R

Repayable on Within Morethan  No maturity
demand 1 year 1 year date Total
HREOR R LR LA S A At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T Tl T Tl
Total financial assets 6 il % 4 9,633,469 2,091,692 3,000,720 - 14725881
Total financial liabilities 5 fl & 4% (15,005,175) (54732) (88,532) - (15148439)
Financial asset-liability 4l % 2 £ &5 1
gap (5,371,706) 2,036,960 2,912,188 - (422,558)
As at 31 December 2020 R_E_EHE+_H=1+—H
Repayable on Within More than No maturity
demand 1 year 1 year date Total
O BINP LR A 14 EIRENS 5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
T THET TET T TIET
Total financial assets S EEAHE 8,383,429 4,696,990 2,664,541 477,940 16,222,900
Total financial liabilities x4 (15470,543) (689,457) (237,219) - (16397,19)
Financial asset-liability 4% & €155 1
gap (7,087,114) 4,007,533 2,427,322 477,940 (174,319)

Fh A 4 il B AN 52 B AL 15 T e
T EI A SR AT ERAT R T K
VE AT REAE AN PR B IR 2
ERIEN F S R AR R AR B
ZHERE -

As the financial instruments such as trading portfolio investments
may be sold before maturity or due to banks and clients may mature
without being withdrawn, the contractual maturity dates do not
represent expected dates of future cash flows.



317 CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED  Jefdfifi &k ok B 4 Ml 47 PR A )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # & & ——4F+_F =+ —H IL4F ¥

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. A% R B 4 B H B K BUR ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 495 WENE & EEE (4H)
The below table summarises the maturity analysis of borrowings T R AR 20 R A R K Tt T K 17 o
with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled JE I8 R B ORER R 2 5 B
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The amounts included Z B H A o A RS REaE A
interest payments computed using contractual rates. As a result, KRR GHE 2 A B ZKE o B > 7%
these amounts were greater than the amount disclosed in the “Within SN EXBRMA S22 [—
one year and on demand” time band in the maturity analysis above. A A B 5K IR [ 66 R BT B R
X
The maturity analysis of bank borrowings is shown as below: SATEEIE T
Total
contractual Over 1 year
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1 year but within
amount cash flow  or on demand 2years  Over 2 years
HHA WS AL 14
WRTHG 514 A HER RN i ks
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T T Tt T Tt

Asat 31 December 2021 A & 4
+ZH=+—H 661,000 714,183 216,671 142,643 354,869

2 S 22

As at 31 December 2020 it —
+ZA=+—H 772,028 821,642 406,190 415,452 -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.6

49.7

Fair value risk

The fair value of the Group’s current financial assets and liabilities
are not materially different from their carrying amounts because
of the immediate or short-term maturity. The fair values of non-
current financial assets and liabilities were not disclosed because the
carrying values were not materially different from their fair values.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
change in market price (other than changes in interest rate and
foreign exchange rate). The Group is exposed to equity price
changes arising from equity investments classified as trading
portfolio investments and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Decisions to buy or sell trading portfolio investments are based on
daily monitoring of the performance of individual securities and
other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
are based on their longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after income tax and consolidated equity in response
to reasonably possible changes in the share prices of the listed
investments classified as trading portfolio investments and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income to which
the Group has significant exposure at the reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.

49. T35 Il B A BE H B B BB ()

49.6

49.7

AR RN

A A S5 T 7 T8 <l 0 T 4 i B
(R SN ER G I @ WA
R T (LS 8 Hh R 22 5 o R IR R )
<l 7 T M R T (LB T (L
A MR ZE T > B EE AP -

e A i A JEL B

S A A i e Bt < il T B 2 A3 F{H
SRR A B < i £ R T A7 2 58 17 904 )
() 25 % 1 ME 22 S B B A 2 R B
A B - AL BRI SR B o BUS AL
5 M5 BOE AR N TR A A 2
T A 2 4l 7 2 BBEAS B 2 ik
A MR A% 2 ) JL -

HEL AR RE LS H EE
I8 91 2 2 R R HAR AT SR B
LA WENE &7 AR - &
AFEFEA KA R T IR 2 5l &
JEE DA R 1 ) 2 S RV ) L
WM EE B ERBE GG HY -

FREF MBS AGHEL L
LRS-y VET T S EEl
T T KA 2 45028 T (B A A
BT A 2 4 2 A BT A
B 35 9 T2 I 15 1 0 L I
GO 2 BB - —F B
HEAT 2 43T 4R JF AR ] B o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. A% R B 4 B H B K BUR ()

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.7 Equity price risk (Continued) 49.7 B A fEAK BB ()
2021 2020
RO E “ECFE
Effect on fair Effect on fair
value through value through
Effect on loss other Effect on loss other
aftertax ~ comprehensive aftertax ~ comprehensive
and retained income and retained income
profits reserve profits reserve
HEBGER BRATHGA | BREZEHE HEATHERA
RAREaA  HibamEkA RUEEGR  HEf2EIA
ZE fi 2% & -z i ps 7%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
T SR Tkt TiBT
Trading portfolio investments: RuAlaRE
Increase in share prices of the listed b i £ & 2 (6 £ 7 30%
investments by 30% (2020: 30%) (ZZZFA: 30%) (1,370) - (1,551) -
Decrease in share prices of the listed & i 45t & 2 JEE(8 F 2% 30%
investments by 30% (2020: 30%) (ZFZFAF : 30%) 1,371 - 1,551 -
Financial assets at fair value i T A A 22
through other comprehensive oA 2 4 il
income:
Increase in share price of the listed b i £ & 2 It (6 £ 7 30%
investment by 30% (2020: 30%) (ZFZFAF : 30%) - 149,391 - 139,453
Decrease in share price of the listed & i 45 & 2 JEE(8 F 2% 30%
investment by 30% (2020: 30%) (% B4 © 30%) - (149,391) - (139,453)
49.8 Operational risks 49.8 & JE | b

Operational risk is the risk of losses due to faulty internal processes,
procedures and systems, inappropriate behaviour by employees, or
external influences. The definition includes all legal risks as well as
reputational risks. However, it excludes strategic risks. The ongoing
monitoring of operational risk is, whenever possible, embedded in
the operational processes. Separation of functions and a dual control
principle are crucial elements in monitoring. The directors oversee
the management of operational risk based on standardised reporting
and ad hoc information.

B JE B AR R R 58 AR
T~ Ry Bl - B AT /A E
B BB e R R 2 B o HLE
3% L5 T A5 A L B DA %
B > SR AS 60 45 M R B o
AT BRI R B
A A e o ik HE o el AT 1 42 5 i
B E By B BRI K o
A PR AL R o T R IR S
8 o L o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.8 Operational risks (Continued) 49.8 & R\ bR (48)
Capital management B B
The Group’s capital management objectives are: REEZ EAREHEES -
(i)  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going (i)  WEORASSE B R A Fralae e o
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and benefits o 2 T A 3 R A T R R
for stakeholders; fit 5
(ii)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and (i) XHRHALEBEHERE &
(iii)  To provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers and (i)  ZHTBTE A F RSUHHR LB 4 -
acquisitions.
The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to 7S 4 (o) AR 5 L R i A TS 45 i 2 E A
its overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital i e AS 4 o A B LG AR
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in T Slf7 R B 66 07 A L e A S AH [
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying JEE 2 JE B R AR R o s AR B
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may R AR S o A B e R )
adjust the amount dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to JBEHR S A 2 B A~ R A ]
shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debts. o~ BEAT R B A o
The capital-to-overall financing ratio at reporting date was as AR B B ARG R U LR A
follows: T
2021 2020
TR | DR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T
Capital &R
Total equity HE 1 % 4,623,540 4,736,227
Overall financing B3 Rl
Borrowings i & 1,176,635 1,546,822
Due to a shareholder JE AT — 44 I R 2 3K IH 12,000 12,000
Due to directors JE AT H#E % 2 ST 73,515 21,233
Due to an associate JRE ASh — [ B /88 A ) R IA 10,000 =
Due to a related company JRE Ash— [ [ 78 A ) KT 88,000 =
1,360,150 1,580,055
Capital-to-overall financing ratio 7S A o B L L R 3.40 3.00
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.8

49.9

Operational risks (Continued)

Capital adequacy of Bendura Group

Starting 1 February 2015, the calculation of regulatory
capital incorporates the capital requirements following the
Capital Requirements Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 (Capital
Requirements Regulation — CRR) and the Capital Requirements
Directive No. 2013/36/EU (CRD 4) as implemented into
Liechtenstein law. The minimum capital requirement is 8% of risk
weighted assets which consists at least of 4.5% common equity
tier 1 (CET 1) capital, 1.5% additional tier 1 capital and 2% tier 2
capital. In addition, the Bendura Group has to fulfill 2.5% buffer
requirements (capital conservation buffer). The buffer requirement
must be fulfilled with CET 1 capital.

Capital ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the the
Bendura Group’s eligible capital with balance sheet assets, off-
balance sheet commitments and market positions at weighted
amounts to reflect their relative risk. Assets are weighted according
to broad categories of notional risk, first being multiplied by
a conversion factor and then being assigned a risk weighting
according to the amount of capital deemed to be necessary for them.
Off-balance sheet commitments and default risk positions are also
multiplied and risk-weighted. Market risk is calculated with the
standard approach.

All results are based on the full application of the final CRR
and CRD 4 framework in the European Union and thus without
consideration of applicable transitional rules. The Bendura Group
has complied with all externally imposed capital requirements as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

. the fair values of listed equity investments, precious metal,
and debt instruments classified under due from banks,
trading portfolio investments, financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income and due to clients are
determined by reference to their quoted market prices at the
reporting date in active markets and have been translated
using the spot foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting periods where appropriate.

49. T35 Il B 4 BE H B B BB ()

49.8

49.9

2 B (48)

LA A TR
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

the fair value of investment fund units under trading portfolio
investments is determined by reference to their quoted market
prices at the reporting date in active markets and have been
translated using the spot foreign currency rates at the end of
the reporting periods where appropriate.

the fair value of certain equity investments under financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is
determined based on the fair value of their underlying net
assets.

the fair values of unlisted debt instruments classified under
trading portfolio investments have been determined using
significant inputs, which are market observable, directly or
indirectly.

the fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities
classified at level 2 financial assets are marked to market
using the foreign exchange forward rates ruling at the end of
each reporting periods.

the fair value of unlisted investment in insurance policy is
determined based on amount value as stated in cash surrender
value statement issued by insurer.

the fair value of unlisted financial product investments is
determined based on the latest transaction price.

HKFRS 13 introduced a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurement disclosures and additional disclosures about the
relative reliability of fair value measurements.

The hierarchy groups financial assets and financial liabilities into
three levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used
in measuring the fair value of these financial assets and financial
liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1:  unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2:  observable direct and indirect inputs other than

quoted prices included within Level 1; and

Level 3:  unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

49. T35 Il B A BE H B B BB ()
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. A% R B 4 B H B K BUR ()

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated 49.9 A A BB SR DU R e R 2 A P
statement of financial position (Continued) al & (40 ) o
The financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in @éﬂj%ﬂkiﬁ% L‘i’&ﬂ’*{ﬁ ﬁ*%z{ﬂi\
the consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into the %m;ég BB B LR AT E
fair value hierarchy as follows: s :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
% B % B=H At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt T T
2021 e SE i3
Assets Jogi
Due from bank - precious metal ~ FEURER T HIH— & & JE - 121,114 - 121,114
Trading portfolio investments Lo AATE 4,570 72,002 9,558 86,130
Derivative financial assets itk & WA - 34,608 - 34,608
Financial assets at fair value BN TEF AL M2 TH
through other comprehensive WA Z &R E R
income 497,970 6,147 - 504,117
502,540 233,871 9,558 745,969
Liabilities ffd
Due to clients — precious metal JEfI % F 3 — &4 6 - 121,250 - 121,250
Derivative financial liabilities itk e E - 47,955 - 47,955
- 169,205 - 169,205
2020 “RORE
Assets j2g3
Due from bank - precious metal ~ FEUTERATHIH - &4 E - 130,055 - 130,055
Trading portfolio investments Lo PATE 5171 49,021 26,118 80,310
Derivative financial assets itk & WA E - 29,224 - 29,224
Financial assets at fair value e FEF AR M 2T
through other comprehensive WA Z & REE
income 464,843 5,951 - 470,794
470,014 214,251 26,118 710,383
Liabilities fafi
Due to clients — precious metal TR % F 30H — 4 1 = 130,119 - 130,119
Derivative financial liabilities MEEmAR - 31,334 - 31,334
- 161,453 - 161,453
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. AR Be 4 B H B K BUR ()

AND POLICIES (Continued)

49.9 T f A A5 IR DL e R Z 2 P

49.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position (Continued)
There have been no significant transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in
the reporting period.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
assets and financial liabilities are categorised in its entirely is based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of
measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the previous
reporting periods.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds classified as trading
securities is Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A
reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balances are
provided as below.

A (4)
T HCE A - SR — AR T T
DIE PN LS

o T B T A
TG TR AT
S T K 2 A o A
4 o

RO S(EL BT JT 5 i Bt il X B
DAAE: #7450 ] 4R 52

SEATIEE AR LIRS
LU PR T A ]
ik o A BT AV 55 B 10 B
WA -

2021 2020
R AR TR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THs T
Opening balance (Level 3 recurring W &5 8% (55 = A8 w
fair value) NFE) 26,118 46,758
Fair value change during the year AN TE S E) (15,768) (23,457)
Exchange realignment e 52, 3 8 (792) 2,817
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair SRR AR (5 =
value) N FE) 9,558 26,118
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

50. A B5IR DL

2021 2020
TR TR R
Notes HK$7000 HK$’000
R 5 R THs 7T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % & K& £ fi
Non-current assets I By % e
Property, plant and equipment IESN &) 41,707 18,956
Interests in subsidiaries P A BB 2 ) 2 2,208,601 2,200,286
Financial asset at fair value through %23 (B &1 A Al 22 [ A 2
other comprehensive income 4 & 303,387 288,142
2,553,695 2,507,384
Current assets it B
Other assets HoAth ¥ 20,344 61,413
Trading portfolio investments T o A RE 343 293
Cash and deposits B KA 8,692 114,218
29,379 175,924
Current liabilities it B £ 15
Other liabilities HoAth 5 15 30,733 44,291
Borrowings [E58 243,838 1,125,028
Lease liabilities TH 5 4 i 13,309 18,569
Derivative financial instruments ~ fi7ZE & fl T H 1,647 -
Due to associates JRE A W 255 ) R K 10,000 =
Due to directors JEAS 2 22 I 56,300 =
Due to fellow subsidiaries JRE A5 7] 2R o e > ) Sk I 229,208 =
Due to a related Company JRE S — [H] B 2 W) R I 88,000 =
Due to a shareholder JEA— & B 2 3K E 12,000 12,000
685,035 1,199,888
Net current liabilities Wi B £ 6 (655,656) (1,023,964)
Total assets less current liabilities 48 & & I i B £ &% 1,898,039 1,483,420
Non-current liabilities JE U By £1 1%
Lease liabilities MHE AN 28,174 767
Borrowings Ry 451,350 -
479,524 767
Net assets g e 1,418,515 1,482,653
EQUITY HE 5
Share capital e A 40 435,189 435,189
Reserves it # 41 983,326 1,047,464
Total equity HE £ 48 51 1,418,515 1,482,653

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 30 March

2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hon Kwok Lung

i R
Director

HH

ARFHBRWER —F - F=H =T HH#
AN E R G HE AT W AT E S

RS

Siu Chun Wa
A
Director

#H
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited liability

company are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of issued/

51. FEE A ¥ &k

LMW AT (B RARAF) FEHIR -

Effective percentage of equity

Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
Hi R /REMS  CRG/BERARE  AAWRRREZEREAL  FEERREEEENE
2021 2020
Sgoof | C%o%K

Directly hele:

HERE

Qingapen Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment, PRC

BHRAEHRAT ik 28T R BB

China Haidian Commercial Network Services Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment, PRC

Limited
o B A A S A A ) itk 217t R BB
Haidian-Creation International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
(“BVI")
KB LRER 155 REBREER
(ERELRE)

Sure Best Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

W ERARAT itk LT REBREER

Jia Cheng Investment Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

FERBEARAA EBRELHE B REBREER

Citychamp Watch and Jewellery SwissCo AG Switzerland CHF100,000 100% 100%  Issuance of bonds, Switzerland

it 100,000%i1: i 55 IS RR{niien

Bendura Bank AG Liechtenstein CHF20,000,000 89.55% 85.44%  Assets management, accepting client
deposits, making investment and
granting loans, Liechtenstein

ERRTRGHRAR bE Ry 20,000,000 5 1: £ 5 RAZALREREE  B2%
Ffia AR

Shun Heng Finance Holding (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 60% 60%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

EFRBER (B HRAR &k 50,000,000 7 REELEER
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51. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 51. EEMBA &R (@)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/ Effective percentage of equity Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
w4 MR/ REILS  CBG/RRRARE  RARRERECEEAAL  FEEEREERENY
2021 2020
SRR | CECRE
Indirectly hel:
HERA -
EBOHR Luxuries International Co., Limited PRC HK$116,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution of watches
(notea) and timepieces, PRC
e (R A RA R (W Ea) it 116,000,000 ¢ B T B B
Shenzhen EBOHR Luxuries Onling E-commerce  PRC RMB19,000,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
Company Limited (note b) timepieces, PRC
PRI BB e 508 T T R il A RH19,000,0007 TR P 7 B 8 T o 2
(HfzEb)
Actor Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
ZEREHRAR i 100001 ¢ REBRELER
Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited (noted) ~ PRC RMB180,000,000 91% 91%  Manufacture and distribution of watches
and timepieces, PRC
IR SEA RA A (k) il AR 180,000,000 1T T B A T g 9 T
PAMA Precision Manufacturing Limited (noteb) ~ PRC RMB11,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution of watches
and timepieces, PRC
PRI B A o B A IR A (WD) il A RH 11,000,000 T B A T g0 T
Shenzhen Permanence Commerce Co., Limited PRC RMB23,000,000 91% 91%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
(note b) PRC
BRI BRI 5 A RAHE (WD) ails]| R 23,000,000 TR P 7 B B T o 2
Zhuhai Rossini Glasses Industry Limited (noteb) ~ PRC RMB1,000,000 91% 91%  Distribution of glasses, PRC
RIBRET IR EEA A A (kD) ails]| AR #1,000000 72 A e 73 85 R
Sino Swiss Clock & Watch Technology Limited ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 91% 91%  Provision of services in watch
(note b) maintenance and repairment and
technical advisory, PRC
5 (i) BHLAARAH (WD) ails]| AR 5,000,000 72 TR AR e B A O T A A IR
Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik Switzerland CHF6,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution of watches
and timepieces, Switzerland
it 6,000,000 1355 TSR B T g 0 T
Eterna Movement AG Switzerland CHF1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution of watches
and timepieces, Switzerland
it 1,000,000 5 1355 TSR B T g 64 T
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Particulars of issued/

Effective percentage of equity

51. EEMEA ¥ &R @)

Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
4R /GRS CRE/ARBARE  KAWRBREZERAAL  EERBRIESEAE
2021 2020
SRSk | CRO%E
Indirectly held: (Continueg)
g - (%)
Guangdong Juxin Watch Co., Limited (note d) PRC RMB15,000,000 51% 51%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
PRC
FORSEREFERARAH (Ed) il B 15,000,000 T o 98 T 1
Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Limited (noted) ~ PRC RMB25,500,000 51% 51%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
PRC
BEEEEFARAT (Hd) il R 25,500,000 B 9 T
Guangzhou Five Goat Watch Co,, Limited (noteb) ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 741% 741%  Manufacture and distribution of watches
and timepieces, PRC
BMILF A RAR (WD) il AR 100000000 B - B B
Eterna (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 0% 70%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
Hong Kong
G (S AR A W il 5,000,000% ¢ TR 9 B T 1 2
Centenaire Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (notea) ~ PRC RMB4,550,000 0% 70%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
PRC
LHEWE S (L) ARAF (Hika) il AR H4,550,0007C A B 9 T
Eterna (Beijing) International Trading Co., Ltd PRC RMB1,000,000 0% 70%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
(note b) PRC
G5 () BRE A HRAT (M) T ARH1,000,0007C B 9 T 1
Jilin Dayou Watch Limited (note d) PRC RMB15,000,000 51% 51%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
PRC
ERKEEFARAT (Bt d) il AR #15,000000 72 B A 9 B T o
Montres Corum Sarl Switzerland CHF3,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture, and distribution of watches
and timepieces, Switzerland
SURR 3,000,005 £:3%:E5 B S B o T o
Montres Corum (UK) Ltd. United Kingdom (GBP3,383 424 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
United Kingdom
Montres Corum (UK) Ltd. R 3,383 424 4555 TAJE R 73 B o T R 31 7
Corum ltalia SRL Italy EUR10,400 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
Italy
EXA 10,400 BRI SBT3 2



329 CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED  Jefdfifi &k ok B 4 Ml 47 PR A )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o S B A PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —%F ——4F 1+ H =1 —H IL4F

51. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of issued/

Place of incorporation/ Effective percentage of equity

51. F LM 2 B &R )

Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
4R /MRS CRE/ARBARE  AAWRRREZERAAL  IERBRIEEENE
2021 2020
SRSk | CROTE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
FEHE (4
Montres Corum Europe SA Switzerland CHF100,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland
SRR 10,0005 1: £ 55 TSk S B SR T T
Servicio de Importacion SA Spain EUR739,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
Spain
T3t 739,008k TSR o i o B e o 2
Corum Deutschland GmbH Germany EUR200,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
Germany
(] 20000080 B 7 T o 2
Corum (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
Hong Kong
#ik 1,000 7 TA i 9 T o
The Dreyfuss Group Limited United Kingdom GBP 221,541 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
United Kingdom
% 2154155 TABEIR 73 B 6 T ot 22
Rotary Overseas Limited United Kingdom GBP 1,000,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
United Kingdom
B 1,000,004 TSR A 88 B T o
Artemis Watch Company Limited United Kingdom GBP 100 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
United Kingdom
| 10035 TSR A 48 B T o
Rotary Watches LLC United States of America ~ US$ 10 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and timepieces,
United States of America
K (ESH T3 B A 4 B T o
Dreyfuss & Co SA Switzerland CHF 100,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of watches and
timepieces, Switzerland
Wt 10,0005 -3 5 AT SR B Tt 2
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INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 51. EZFEA &R 0
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/ Effective percentage of equity Principal activities and principal
Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
w4 MR/ REINES  CBG/BRRARE  RARRRREEEAAL  FEEEREEEENY
2021 2020
SR | Rk
Indirectly held: (Continueg)
HE#RE ()
Fabrique de Montres Rotary S.A. Switzerland CHF 1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and distribution of
watches and timepieces, Switzerland
Wt 1,000,005 55 S SR T 7 B B R 2
Bendura Fund Management Beta AG Liechtenstein CHF1,500,000 89.55% 85.44%  Providing investment counselling, acting

VFM Mutual Fund AG

LFM ALPHA SOLUTIONS AGmvk

Metasequoia Capital

KEERE

Shun Heng

T
<ok

Ernest Borel Holdings Limited
R RARA A

as technical administrator of fund
units, acting s  fund management
company and acting as an alternative
investment fund manager, Liechtenstein
IFE GR 1,500,0005 L H TP B R Bt - A
ERNZHNERE  BESE
AR REE AR EES AR

Liechtenstein CHF 500,000 89.55% 85.44%  Managing a particular fund as general
partner, Liechtenstein

VT R 50,000 % L Ef AL RIEA— AN EH—
B B4

Liechtenstein CHF50,000 89.55% 85.44%  Provision of asset investment and

management services for qualified
investors, Liechtenstein

LR 50,0005 1: B 5 IIBE GReVTIEN L5/ e i
ERERERRE

Hong Kong HK$800,000 60% 60%  Provision of asset management services,
Hong Kong

Fit 800,000 WA R R

Hong Kong HK$26,380,000 60% 60%  Dealing and advising in securities,
Hong Kong

&k 26,380,000 7 BT 5205 R PR

Cayman Island HK$3,474,000 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

i 34740003 ¢ &SGR
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51. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 51. EZFE A W &R a0
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/ Effective percentage of equity Principal activities and principal
Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
4R /MRS CRE/ARBARE  AAWRRREZERAAL  IERBRIEEENE
2021 2020
S | Rk
Indirectly held: (Continued)
B ()
Boillat Les Bois S.A. Switzerland CHF100,000 64.08% 64.08%  Development, manufacturing and
marketing of watches, Switzerland
Bt 100,005 £ TS L BB B T
Ermest Borel S.A. Switzerland CHF100,000 64.08% 64.08%  Manufacturing and trading of watches,
Switzerland
Wit 100,000 % g R
Ernest Borel (Far East) Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 64.08% 64.08%  Assembling and sales of watches,
Hong Kong
ffciset () A R Fil 20,000 REBAKRAE RS
Ernest Borel (Guangzhou) Trading Co., Ltd PRC RMB20,000,000 64.08% 64.08%  Distribution and sales of watches, PRC
s (B M) B AR RAR il R 20,000,000 T 7S R
Ernest Borel (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
i s (B i) ARAR Fil 10007 REERERER
Ernest Borel Watch Company Limited BVI US$100 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
KBRS 1005 7T REBREER
Swissmount Holdings Limited BVI US$100 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
KBRS 1005 7C REBHEER
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INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, results in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

Notes:

(@) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under
the law of PRC.

(b) These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability companies under the law
of PRC.

() This subsidiary is registered as foreign joint venture under the law of PRC.

(d) These subsidiaries are registered as sino-foreign joint ventures under the law
of PRC.

51. F: LW 2 B &R )

E RN E RN LS A AR
Z SRRSO A B I E KR 2
ARNTFME AT o EEGDS > FES ALK
J& AR 2 EROISE A B E RN TR -

T B 2 A A A B AT AT A RS A O o

ftik

() %5 B 2 AR v I ik R R 2 A
e AR -

(b) 3% BB 2 AR o o 3 A R
() X2 F AL o o A 8 O T
B

(d) % A 2 AR vl I ik R R 2 v A
HEAMRE-
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51. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

51. F LM 2 B &R )

T SCHRF AT AT S 6 i AT AR SR T
Ji&§ FE R 2 I R PR i 2 5 WA 4 R B S

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiaries
that had non-controlling interests which is material to the Group, before

any elimination. B
Zhuhai Rossini Watch
Ernest Borel Group Bendura Bank AG Industry Limited
ke o 45 BB RBARAF 7R3 T &) YA
w | am T TR
SROME | CECEE | D20 | CECRE | DR0-E | DFC%E
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tit T i it T Tt
Summarised statement of financial B8 IR M
position
As at 31 December RTZHA=Z4—H
Effective non-controlling interests BB 4 It HE 45 1 43
percentage 35.92% 35.92% 10.45% 14.56% 9% 9%
Assets B 459,338 468,149 13,814,393 15,051,728 1,395,618 1,333,248
Libilites fifi (350902) | (17462 | (12925.132) | (4146343) | 365601 | (352,680)
Net assets il 108,436 150,687 889,261 905,385 1,030,017 980,567
Accumulated non-controlling EEERCIL
interests 56,239 71,416 123238 117,692 17,375 75,266
Summarised statement of 2HEMARKE
comprehensive income
For the year ended RETAST—HILERE
31 December
Revenue g 149,252 122,596 353,731 347,534 601,485 582,452
(Loss)/profit hefore income tax B B 5L (ks 4) /A (33957) (13799) 36,210 822 104,497 75,781
Other comprehensive income LR (7,246) 11,140 12,778 78210 - -
Total comprehensive income LNt (42,253) 3,893 48,988 75,004 111,257 62,174
(Loss)/profit allocated to AW R
non-controlling interests (%) /Al (15.177) 1,398 75,120 10,936 10,037 5,596
Dividends paid to 1 M 2 2
non-controlling interests - - 644 11,677 10,988 27,085
Summarised statement of cash ReREREE
flows
For the year ended REF AT HIEAEE
31 December
Cash flows (used in)/generated from  BEEH () /EA L
operating activities HEnE 3,145 (22,040) | 1,162,069 1,013,062 256,167 186,537
Cash flows(used in)/generated from &R E (FT ) /E4Z
investing actvites Rang (5739) G2) | (5T | (149982) (74,189) (87,066)
Cash flows generated from/ MEEHEL/ () 2
(used in) financing activities REnE (6,803) 25838 (65,115) (84,433) (205,278) (232,307)
Net cash (outflow)inflow B4 (Fih) /WATH (9,3%) 1923)| 762380 718,647 (23299) | (132836)
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 December 2020, the Company entered into the sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
sell, and the purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, the shares and
certain loans of the following companies (the “Transaction”):

— International Volant Limited;

— EB Brand Limited;

— Jia Cheng Investment Limited;

— Joyful Surplus International Limited,;

— Sharptech International Limited;

— Unique Leader Limited; and

— Sure Best Management Limited.

On 3 January 2022, the Company received a written notice from the
purchaser, in which the purchaser proposed to terminate the Transaction.
The Company has entered into a termination agreement with the purchaser
pursuant to sales and purchase agreement.

Details of the Transaction are set out in the Company’s announcements

dated 16 December 2020, 25 March 2021, 27 June 2021, 30 September
2021 and 3 January 2022 and circular dated 25 February 2021.

Except for above mentioned, there were no material events occurred after
the financial report date.

52.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TAE A B BRI 2

A summary of the published results and financial position of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the last four years is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

AEEKRE_F - —FT_H=1T—HILFE
T 38 25 U 4F 27 B I 35 2 A T B 5 IR W MR 2 o 371
R o LM A AR AR B 4% A S ek 2 — T

)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE MR Bl
Year ended 31 December
BRET-H=1—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
it St N I S < - S| K e <A S o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SRV Tt Tkt SR T
Net interest income from hanking SRATEH 2 F 8
business hgNEE: | 94,164 128,028 183,462 180,831 94,992
Net service fees and commission income ~ $R47 275 2 MR H5 & &
from banking business AN 223,370 196,994 212,561 236,361 212,616
Trading income from banking business ~ R1TEH 2 5 ItA 36,197 21,702 57,230 63,172 65,227
Service fees and commission income S REER 2 IR K
from financial business IEAON 5,900 10,721 3,195 3,342 9,307
Interest income from financial business & B ZEH 2 F Bt A 330 184 165 193 128
Sales of goods from non-banking and FRIT B RERZ
financial businesses BB 1,555,114 1,405,812 2,249,737 2,444,364 2,583,495
Rental income from non-banking and FRITREMEEZ
financial businesses EEALUN 16,024 11,108 9,915 9,586 16,936
Total revenue AT 1,931,099 1,774,549 2,716,265 2,937,849 2,982,701
Cost of sales from non-banking and FRIT R MR 2
financial businesses A (745,224) (647,405) (1,004,030) (1,022,568) (1,226,494)
Other income and other net ot e A K HoAl
gains or losses W A 4 15 40,881 98,333 104,393 79,486 1,300,392
Selling and distribution expenses B R ER (535,895) (550,428) (817,889) (849,551) (800,923)
Administrative expenses T A (698,022) (728432) (777,114) (737,985) (774,012)
Share of loss of joint ventures TEAG &8 3R 1R (83) (494) (1,343) (2,678) (1,159)
Share of profit of associates OB A1 7 A ) A 323 3,180 17,675 8,387 20,711
Finance costs from non-banking business  JF 8R47 3675 2 I 7 2 il (67,351) (82,956) (95,320) (65,828) (68,453)
(Loss)/profit before income tax B i 5 B 8 O 3R) /e (74,272) (133,653) 142,637 347112 1,432,764
Income tax expense Jr B B X (31,104) (25,176) (71,456) (105,664) (221,566)
(Loss)/profit for the year AR (5 18) /Al (105,376) (158,829) 71,181 241,448 1,211,198
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ToAF BB & B2
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued) WA R B a0
Year ended 31 December
BET A= —HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SR | ZESZE R R0 ZR—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TG T T T
Other comprehensive income SRR ON
Item that will not be subsequently AERABRENIEE
reclassified to profit or loss i Al 2 T H
— Remeasurement of net defined — F i e AR A
benefit obligations B 42515 3,646 2,490 33,025 15,186
— Change in fair valug of financial — N TER A A
assets at fair value through other ZHAZ &/
comprehensive income BEATEES 33,127 47,933 (204,233) (123,352) =
— Revaluation gain upon transfer of — AR TR ST
owner occupied land and (L3 Ekva-¢/E
buildings to investment properties ZEAG I - - = 57,128 =
— Deferred tax arising from transfer of ~ — it H /il £ K # ¥
owner occupied land and LLERSV/ES
buildings to investment properties EAZEEHIE - - - (22,212) -
75,042 51,579 (201,743) (55,411) 15,186
Items that may be subsequently R RIS Z
reclassified to profit or loss i FI SR 2 T H
- Exchange differences on translation ~ — /A 251 ik~
to presentation currency I 54 2 5 (9,893) 279,862 (91,282) (162,086) 233,906
— Release of exchange reserve to profit ~ — i tH 4 it J& /> 71 4%
or loss upon disposal of fRBRAME R 2
subsidiaries IEY 2 (744) (405) = = (2.809)
— Share of exchange differences on — A B8 8 ) T B2
translation of associates =R 188 (490) (208) (117) 96
— Changes in fair value of available- — ATk S R
for-sale financial assets NTHEES) - - = = (5,041)
(10,449) 278967 (91,390) (162,203) 226,152
Other comprehensive income A BE Al 2 T W A
for the year 65,103 330,546 (293,133) (217,614) 241338
Total comprehensive income A e T BN A
for the year (40,183) 171,717 (221,952) 23,834 1,452,536
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T A S B R

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued) W H R B ()
Year ended 31 December
RETA=T—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
CROR | ZRCFRE ZEE ZFE ZFbF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
SRV Tt SR Tkt TiBT
(Loss)/prafit for the year attributable — PA A BEA A 47 B
to: (f&48) /Al -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE/ 2N (100,907) (169,233) 44,246 201,372 1,170,484
Non-controlling interests I P e 27 (4,469) 10,404 26,935 40,076 40,7114
(105,376) (158,829) 71,181 241,448 1,211,198
Total comprehensive income for DA N B A AR
the year attributable to: AT N B
Owners of the Company /NEIE: DN (35,727) 164,456 (243,713) (9,083) 1,395,850
Non-controlling interests I P e 43 (4,456) 7,261 21,761 32,917 56,686
(40,183) 171,717 (221,952) 23,834 1,452,536
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING TEe - A RIEE RS
INTERESTS
Year ended 31 December
BEFTZHA=Z+—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
CROR | CZ0FRE CEE SN CFbF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tt T SR TiBT
Total assets G 19,962,419 21,385,195 19,597,081 20,258,229 21,855,671
Total liabilities A E (15338,879) |  (16,648,968)  (14936,192)  (15448,738)  (16,707,545)
Non-controlling interests I e O 4 (262,407) (317,548) (405,817) (369,700) (343,245)
4,361,133 4,418,679 4,255,072 4,439,791 4,804,881
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FEREWENE
Group interest ~ Use Tenure
Description ki HEMER AR A
Flat B, 21st Floor, Jolly Villa BRI 8 9% 100%  Residential Medium term lease
No. 8 Tai Hang Road T RERE 21 B & EE H AT A
Hong Kong and Car parking space [F] — R I
No. 32 on 3rd Floor of 37 32 HEH
the same building
Industrial Complex g\ R FEA 100% Industrial/Residential  Medium term lease
including Dormitories in the ([ H ) T¥%/ k% H I A
Sixth Industrial Zone JE A
Houjie Town e
Dongguan County |8
Guangdong Province SN LR TR
The People’s Republic of China RPN
(the “PRC”) (45 1E &)
2nd Lower Ground Level 3 100%  Commercial Medium term lease
Jin Hua Building JE A [HES LAY
Yan He South Road Gl
Luohu District e [
Shenzhen TH ] B %
Guangdong Province SRAE R R
The PRC JET g~
Shops at Street Nos. 13, 14 and 15 il 100%  Commercial Medium term lease
New City Centre Plaza Garden JEHRE [HES AL 40
Nos. 459, 461 and 463 i
Xiang Hua Road 3 %
Zhuhai City 459 - 461 J% 4634
Guangdong Province T O 7E
The PRC &1 13 ~ 14 S 1545
Office B, 7th Floor Hh 3 100%  Commercial Short term lease
No. 78, Nanguan Road 1 55 i kT [ (HES bRkl
Shenhe District, Shenyang City i B B 78 5%
The PRC THEBEEHFA %
No. 1004, Block B H 100%  Commercial Long term lease
Xinnengyuan Building JiE A I T [EES RIAT A
Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District e L) [ R v K A
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province e IR K

The PRC

B Ji 1004 5%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FEBRE WM E
Group interest ~ Use Tenure
Description ik HERER AR A
Nos. 203, 204, 205, H 100%  Residential Medium term lease
206, 208, JE R A YT £ AR 49
Building 16, Dengliang Garden L[5 R B
Dengliang Road, Nanshan District % R 1651
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province 203 ~ 204 ~ 205~
The PRC 206 ~ 208 5%
Nos. 228, 229, 230, 231, il 100%  Residential Medium term lease
232, 233, 234, 235, JE R A I g I A
236, 237, 1 1L [ LR AE
Building A, Lifang Village h 5 A ABR

Nanshan Avenue, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC

228~ 229~ 230~ 231~
232233234~ 235~
236 ~ 2374E




CITYCHAMP

WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
BHERKEEEBR QA

FWILEE Units 1902 — 04, Level 19
M AEE 158 International Commerce Centre
WRIRYE 72 % 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon
19 # 1902-04 = Hong Kong

www.citychampwj.com
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